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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLFE

2014 2013 Changes
—®2-mE -—T-=% L)
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Revenue WA 475,769 236,300 +101.3%
Profit attributable to equity holders AATEEEFEA
of the Company FE 45 R 5H 35,052 +178.6%
Non-IFRS adjusted net profit* DT EGFERMERE
EREAEFRE" 144,481 42,734 +238.1%
Attributable to equity holders of the Company AR Bl#Ez A A 144,479 37,261 +287.7%
Attributable to non-controlling interests I 12 AR = 2 5473 -100.0%

The Board has decided to recommend a final dividend of RMB0.064 per Share of the EEFE @A TEZ A AATBRMIRETRAE

Company (2013: nil), and such proposal is subject to approval by Shareholders at ~ ¥ oopa Tt (—ZE—=F: &) KBAK S - A
the forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM"). BEZEFALRAKREREEREBAFRSE
((BRRBERG))HAE -

*  Non-IFRS adjusted net profit was derived from the audited profit for the year excluding (i) » JFEBEMBREERKLARIERAFEFANANKEE
share-based compensation expense; and (i) expenses relating to the Listing of the AAE AREOUARNDAEROM RS &
Company on the Stock Exchange. NEBARAIRNBZM EMHAX -
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Financial Highlights (continued) O\
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BB REE @
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEFE
2014 2013 Changes
—E-mE —E-=F 23
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETT
PC games revenue (Unaudited) PCEE B WA (REFEEH)
Self-developed PC games B = [ 2 PC 7&K
— Texas Hold'em — BN T 117,066 70,685 +65.6%
— Mahjong — i 1% 90,738 62,604 +44.9%
— Fight the Landlord — [ 3 & 39,657 26,932 +47.2%
— Other self-developed games —H B FFEEE 27,886 18,124 +53.9%
Self-developed games total BEMBEERE 275,347 178,345 +54.4%
Licensed games FEET I B 18,125 17,748 +2.1%
Third-party operated games EZHEEBNEE 12,288 14,576 -15.7%
Total PC games revenue PCEERL N A 48 &8 305,760 210,669 +45.1%
Mobile games revenue BEER WA 153,393 15,628 +881.5%
Total games revenue i3 AN R 459,153 226,297 +102.9%
Total revenue"” g A 475,769 236,300 +101.3%

(1) Total revenue includes income from sponsorship and third-party advertising income. 1 BRABREHRARE=ZFESKRA -
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Four Year Financial Summary . O\

MEMBGIHE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the lastfour AEEBENET B EE 2 XELREELE
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out below: EMEREBEETYERE SO T

2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-QmE —_T-—= —2-—F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARBTIT ARBTT AR®TE

Revenue A 475,769 236,300 205,810 153,948

Gross profit B 294,500 156,497 150,527 107,402

Profit before income tax bR BT 15 %4 A F1 8 111,599 44,767 37,163 31,045

Profit for the year FEHH 27,643 40461 30965 26,546
Attributable to equity holders of KRARIEZFAA

the Company FE1H 35,052 29,291 20,988
Attributable to non-controlling interests FEPEAR E R B AS 5,409 1674 5,558
Assets and liabilities EENMEBE
Total assets BEE 965,306 207,996 155,813 111,866
Total liabilities mEE 75,390 58,780 47,609 49316
Total equity HARE S 889,916 149,216 108,204 62,550

Non-IFRS Measure — Adjusted Net Profit FEBEMBEHREERNGE —

EHAERFE

Non-IFRS adjusted net profit was derived from the audited profit for the year FERIFR B RS LB EHABRFFIEREFER

excluding (i) share-based compensation expense; and (i) expenses relating to the IR Tt AE - TEFOUIRND AER OB

Listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange. A summary of the Group's non-IFRS ~ BISx » (VBB A QX & RSB F i e9F s -

adjusted net profit for the last four financial years is set out below: AN BT F 2 I B R B RS R A
FAEFEEI AT

2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-NFE —_FT—=F —T——F —_FT——F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARMTE ARBTIT AR¥TET AR®TE

Non-IFRS adjusted net profit I B B B 75 3R 45 #E A

=+ 24 7 5% F) 144,481 42,734 32,014 26,546
Attributable to equity holders of RATERTEA
the Company JE 1k 144,479 37,261 30,204 20,988

Attributable to non-controlling interests

TR R HE 25 PR A

2 5473 1,810 5,558
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Operational Highlights
EEME

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLEFE

2014 2013 Changes
—E-mE —E—=F g2
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&FEE) (REEEs)
MAUs (in thousands): BRERBAF
(F&5IR) :
Self-developed PC games B M PCEERL
— Texas Hold'em —fEMNER 111 56 +98.2%
— Mahjong — & 2,018 1,490 +35.4%
— Fight the Landlord — M= 3,578 3,222 +11.0%
— Other self-developed games —Hth g A 4,691 5,126 -85%
Mobile games 8 i B 15,415 10,466 +47.3%
Total #at 20,360 +26.8%
MPUs (in thousands): BRANEBAF
(AFH5IR) :
Self-developed PC games B EREPCER 256 +26.6%
Mobile games"” BEhiprE? 106 +480.2%
Total st 362 +159.4%
ARPPU (in RMB): NERAFEAHYWA
(MAR¥ IR :
Self-developed PC games B ¥ 3 PC ik 57.9 +22.3%
Mobile games? % &)z s 126 +55.6%

) The calculation of MPUs and ARPPU of mobile games does not include mobile games
on non-smart devices and third-party operated mobile games, for which data ware not

available.

BERHEENEANERPRNERP A9l
AN EI T BEIFLERBOBHEE R
F=ZNEENBHER MBABUERITTEIR
e



Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Ourgame International Holdings Limited, | am pleased to
present to you the results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

2014 was a milestone year for the Company. We enhanced our games portfolio
across the board, acquired many new users, significantly increased our revenue and
profit, solidly expanded our online/offline portfolio, and successfully took the
Company public by Listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 30 June
2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, we achieved substantial growth on almost
all major financial and operational metrics compared with the same period in 2013.
Revenue of the Group amounted to approximately RMB475.8 million, representing
an increase of 101.3% from RMB236.3 million in 2013. The non-IFRS adjusted net
profit of 2014 excluding share-based compensation expense and expenses relating
to the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange amounted to RMB144.5
million, representing an increase of 238.1% from RMB42.7 million recorded in 2013.
In the meantime, the MAUs for the year of 2014 achieved 25.8 million, representing
an increase of 26.8% compared with 2013. The MPUs for the year of 2014 achieved
939,000, representing an increase of 159.4% compared with 2013.

Due to continued refinement of monetization, and solid execution of our integrated
online/offline strategy, the revenue of PC games amounted to RMB305.8 million,
representing a 45.1% increase compared with the same period in 2013. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, the revenue of our major self-developed PC games
categories, namely Texas Hold’em, Mahjong and Fight the Landlord, all achieved
significant growth, earning revenues of RMB117.1 million, RMB90.7 million, and
RMB39.7 million, respectively, representing an increase of 65.6%, 44.9% and 47.2%
over the revenue generated from these categories in 2013. The MAUs reached 10.4
million, representing a 5.1% increase compared with 2013, which can be
attributable to the continued enhancement of our games and effective online-
traffic drawing from world-class offline tournaments and continued enhancement
of our user base. MPUs reached 324,000, representing a 26.6% increase benefiting
from the new high-quality users acquired through the integrated online/offline
tournaments such as World Poker Tour China ("WPT China”).

GRERZERAERAR

HERR:

AARKRBZBEBEZERERADNEEEMA
m EATREAQRABEE-_FT-OF+=-A
=T RLEFEMEE-

TE-MERARFRSEREKAMN —
FoARBRAEBES THRZHAR
RERSBRALTE HREL B TERAE
B UARYR-_FT-—OFAA=ZTHERX
PR EMR AR LT -

HE-_Z-—NF+_A=Z=+—HIEFE &
ZE-ZFAH BMRETHETENH
MEBEEZHGEEARER - AEBBAL
WARBEASSEETL B —=FHARK
2363A BT KI1013%c — T —MFEHIERE
W mEERNCHERNBCINRENRS AE
MO HAIRBEARARIRNEIMETH
AY)BARBIM4SEETL BT —=ZF&
BHARBL/BEETIER2381% AK - =
T-UFRNEAERAFPIENSSEES B
T-=FER6% —_T—NENETANE
FFE0939000% @ M- T — = F 1K 1594% °

BERBEMEELHENTE  URTE#H
AR LRI R PCREBIU A E AR
358EEL RZTE—=FRHEKR45.1% -
HE_ZT—NWHEF+_-_A=+—HIEFE %K
M e EmEErcoerl (BN EINER M K
M E) WA BRBE R DAlEARKE
MN71BEBL ARBw/AEB LR ARKE397
BELT R-_ZE—=FRPARENEEHN
I A B E K 65.6% - 44.9% } 47.2% ° & A& B
APEI4EER BR-ZE—=ZFHEKR51%-
BAERAPHEMEREENKMAEE
FEEE HALAGTHREZEFRIRIIAFL
ME UERERMOAFPEMRMNBERE -§A
ERFIE324000% B8 5E266% - FAMNE
BEHEMBRDNEZINEBRAE LB
T 8812 & (7 10t 5B 70 3K 4 2 AR B ok (T WPT
FEE)RATNSmBAR -

=
7

“E2-MmEFH 09
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
Eﬁ#ﬁ A /'“

With deepened monetization measures embedded in our mobile games, launch of
newer games and the closer cooperation with mobile carrier companies and other
major distributors, our mobile games business demonstrated breakout growth
momentum this year. The revenue in 2014 reached RMB153.4 million, representing
a 881.5% increase from RMB15.6 million in 2013. The MAUs reached 15.4 million,
representing a 47.3% increase compared with 2013, while MPUs reached 615,000
representing a 480.2% increase. We have launched more than 50 versions of our
mobile games onto the platforms of all top three mobile carrier companies, namely
China Mobile, China Unicom and China Telecom. In October 2014, the revenue of
our Tian Tian Fight the Landlord ranked number one on the networking mobile
games list of China Mobile. In addition, we also partnered with Guangdong Mobile,
Hubei Mobile, Shaanxi Mobile, Shanxi Mobile, Henan Mobile, Shandong Mobile and
Jiangsu Mobile in their college promotion programs. Furthermore, we have reached
in-depth cooperation with cellphone manufacturers like Xiaomi, Coolpad, VIVO,
OPPO, Lenovo, and Huawei, among which Tian Tian Fight the Landlord has been
chosen as the key product in the card and board game segment for Xiaomi and
VIVO.

In 2014, we hosted WPT China for the third consecutive year. Based on the success
of the 2012 and the 2013 WPT China in Sanya, the online entries and offline
participants of 2014 WPT China reached a record high. We live broadcasted the final
competition of WPT China with Youku, Letv, PPTV and other internet television
companies, and achieved a record high viewership with more than 700,000 viewers
per day. The success marked the milestone for Ourgame in extending our services
through broadcasting, amplifying the attractiveness of our quality content through
new media channels and effectively reaching targeted user audiences. Moreover, in
October 2014, we successfully co-hosted the 14th World Bridge Championship with
the World Bridge Federation and Chinese Contract Bridge Association in Sanya. The
World Bridge Championship is hosted once every four years, and is recognized as
the Olympics of Bridge. The event attracted global attention and was partly
broadcasted live on China's Central Television. In doing so, Ourgame is recognized
as a global leader in mind sports and it has demonstrated its ability to host and
operate the most professional and world class mind sport events. We also hosted
other high standard competitions like the World Poker Tour Dragon Series, the
China Chess and Cards Competition and the Electronic Sports Celebrity
Tournaments. The Company's success in acquiring the rights and successfully
conducting key offline mind sport events further elevated our brand, deepened our
market penetration to key user segments, and continued to strengthen Ourgame’s
industry leadership position.

BEERMTEELCLBDHEROBEL  HEH
s YEBHEZHALEMIZOHER
EREEZAE BMANBHEREBTNA

FERBEBEEAER -RZT—NF  RAE
ARBISSAEETL BRZE—=ZFHBHAR
MS6§%%F§%B%‘EHE%%ﬁEBA
ER-E:RN WR473% & A
BRPAE @Jmsooo% #2185 480.29% ° T

EEB-—FRTELERAHPEHEY B

BMEPBEEFE)ETTFE  BEMEBEHEA+ER
AeBsEE - R —WFE+ A RRIET
79[ & X [ 4 3 | 37 G U A 72 R B 5 B Bl 4 s
BAMTE— i BPITEERZE - 5
ke pEAEBE - LABE - TmEE - L
BB RIHBEHAEE FRREKETE -
BR Ut 2 S+ B AP O B T A A EE e (1 R /) oK

I -VVO-OPPO- BB RER)BRAAA
fE - ARBIHEEBTRRFME B K A/ KM
VIVO1E KR 32 B ) 4% 0 BE @ o

T -WF BMEBE=FRPWTHH
B - BREE-D8R_FT-_FN_F—=
FWPTHEIBEMR &R —F — HFEWPTH

HENG T RERRTL2EAHSAFELH
B RMEBER £G8 PPVREMELSK
ﬁﬁ“ﬂE%WW¢I%R%'EE%ﬁA@
E B AR SR Y 700,000 A K o IR N IZ 5

m&ﬁ@%%%@%%~ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ§
BRI N EREREBEEEAFFEAERTHN
BB RZE—ME+ A - KRS
ABEEcekTEBEBER =S XAE
MEMEERBEBRZE HABERBEES
ME—JE HRAEBEEEFNEMRILE - 2K
EHSREE HoBENEFEPRE
BERSEE - 2SREHEEY BMIEEKAS
KB NEGHWBELE  WEBHE I BPME
ERASEENERLE NEHESE - &M
MEREMSKFES  §laot FE TR
BRNE PRHEHBRBEABRERHALER
BB ANEEESIEEER ISR RS

TENEHEE EME-—FREARMANS
BER RMEEMARBARBPHEEBNTISEZ
BE O WERBZEMBOTEREM -



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
EFEHRE @)

In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Ministry of Culture of the PRC issued an opinion to
boost the upgrading of the Internet service industry. Right after that, we invested in
Wanyu Internet café, one of the largest upscale and leading internet café chains in
China. We believe Internet cafés have the potential to be one of the go-to leisure
destinations for the internet generation, and with the support from the
government, we believe next generation internet cafes will be a critical component
for our Online-To-Offline ("020") strategy. As such, it is one of the best means to
develop and expand a new marketing channel for our online games and online/
offline tournaments. In addition, we have obtained an eight-year exclusive license
from the World Poker Tour ("WPT") in 15 Asia countries and regions for organizing
tournaments and to provide WPT branded services. By entrusting the key Asia
region to us, Ourgame is being recognized as the best partner for entering the
China and Asia poker market by global industry leaders. Acquisition of the WPT Asia
rights will significantly accelerate our overseas expansion efforts. Moreover, based
on the success of organizing the 2014 World Bridge Series, we acquired exclusive
rights to host the World Bridge Contest ("WWBC") with the World Bridge Federation
("WBF"). The WWBC is one of the most professional bridge competitions. The
contest's new integrated online/offline format is jointly designed by Ourgame and
WBF, which once again indicates Ourgame’s expertise, brand value and ability to
innovate at the highest level in mind sports. As such, Ourgame’s global business
expansion is making concrete steps forward. On 27 December 2014, Ourgame
received the “"Outstanding Enterprise 2014" award, while our Co-Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. Ng Kwok Leung Frank (“Mr. Ng"), received the "2014 Outstanding
Entrepreneur Award". Our games “Ourgame Poker World” and “Ma Shang Fight the
Landlord” have been awarded “Excellent On-line Game 2014" and “The Most
Anticipated On-line Game” respectively by the China Software Industry Association.
The awards are regarded as the highest level of award in the software game
industry in China. These awards solidified Ourgame’s leading position in the
industry and Mr. Ng as a leading expert on online card and board games.

The Board proposes the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.064 per Share of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil), which is subject to the
approval of the Company’s Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

GREBRERAERAIR —E-EFFH
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
EFEHRE @)

Future Prospects

Building on 2014's momentum, while maintaining our core business growth, 2015
will be a year of laying down a broader foundation to further the Company's
leadership position, not only in online card and board games, but also in the mind
sports industry. In 2014, the State Council of the PRC issued a guideline to accelerate
the development of the sports industry, and encourage private capital to host
sports competitions. To capture this new momentum and opportunity for the mind
sports industry, on the one hand, we will continue to enrich our online games
portfolio and launch more creative games in order to attract new users and
continue to focus on the improvement of monetization and user experiences. Our
online games platform provides the foundation of our user base. We will continue
to fine tune our mobile games offering to capture the changing trends of user
experience and maintain a higher degree of growth. On the other hand, our online/
offline portfolio is our unique channel for attracting new and high quality users. We
will seek to add more and more world class online/offline mind sports events to our
line-up. We will continue to seek partnerships both domestically and abroad that
create value and strategic resources for the Company. We will also seek to leverage
our expertise in card and board games to create mind sports education programs
that will open up an entirely new business segment. Our online/offline events will
also generate high quality media content and we believe the TV screen, through
either broadcast TV or streaming media, is the ideal amplifier to extend these
contents to our intended users.

Our goal is to create a synergistic mind sports ecosystem that will cater to our
targeted users’ online and offline leisure and entertainment needs, from which
Ourgame will capture a significant share of our users’ leisure time and associated
spendings. We will be replicating our model to our overseas markets and accelerate

our overseas expansion‘

Yang Eric Qing
Chairman and Executive Director

27 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEAWmR S

Financial Review

1.

Overview

In 2014, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company increased
significantly and amounted to RMB97.6 million, representing an increase of
RMB62.6 million from 2013. Non-IFRS adjusted net profit* attributable to
equity holders of the Company amounted to RMB144.5 million, representing
a significant increase of RMB107.2 million as compared with RMB37.3 million
in2013.

*

Non-IFRS adjusted net profit was derived from the audited profit for the year
excluding (i) share-based compensation expense; and (i) expenses relating to the
Listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange.

Revenue

In 2014, revenue of the Group amounted to RMB475.8 million, representing
an increase of RMB239.5 million or 101.3% as compared with RMB236.3
million in 2013. The increase was due to a significant increase in revenue

from self-developed PC games and mobile games.

In 2014, the revenue from self-developed PC games amounted to RMB275.3
million, representing an increase of RMB97.0 million or 54.4% as compared
with RMB178.3 million in 2013. Revenue from mobile games amounted to
RMB153.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2014, representing an
increase of RMB137.8 million or 881.5% as compared with RMB15.6 million in
2013. The increases in self-developed PC games and mobile games were
primarily driven by steady growth in MAUs and strong growth in their
corresponding MPUs and ARPPU. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
MPUs for self-developed PC games and mobile games were approximately
324,000 and 615,000 respectively, as compared with approximately 256,000
and 106,000 in 2013. For the year ended 31 December 2014, ARPPU for self-
developed PC games and mobile games were RMB70.8 and RMB19.6
respectively, as compared with RMB57.9 and RMB12.6 in 2013.
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Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit Margin

In 2014, cost of revenue of the Group amounted to RMB181.3 million,
representing an increase of RMB101.5 million or 127.1% as compared with
RMB79.8 million in 2013. The decrease in gross profit ratio to 61.9% for 2014
from 66.2% for 2013 was primarily due to the relatively faster growth in
revenue derived from the Group’s mobile games which had a higher channel
commission costs than PC games.

Other Income

In 2014, other income of the Group amounted to RMB23.4 million,
representing an increase of RMB18.7 million or 403.3% as compared with
RMB4.6 million in 2013. This was primarily due to an increase of RMB11.2
million in interest income and RMB7.3 million in exchange gain as a result of
the appreciation in Renminbi on bank deposits held in Hong Kong.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

In 2014, selling and marketing expenses of the Group amounted to RMB70.4
million, representing an increase of RMB24.9 million or 54.8% from RMB45.5
million in 2013. The increase in selling and marketing expenses during the
year was mainly due to additional costs incurred for the increase in marketing
activities and employee compensation.

Administrative Expenses

In 2014, administrative expenses of the Group amounted to RMB71.0 million,
representing an increase of RMB36.3 million or 104.5% compared with
RMB34.7 million in 2013. The increase in administrative expenses during the
year primarily resulted from a one-time listing-related expenses and an
increase in professional fees, administrative personnel expenses and rental

Costs.

Research and Development Expenses

In 2014, research and development expenses of the Group amounted to
RMB35.8 million, representing a slight increase of RMB57,000 or 0.2%
compared with RMB35.7 million in 2013.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company

In 2014, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted to
RMB97.6 million, representing an increase of RMB62.6 million or 178.6%
compared with RMB35.1 million in 2013. The increase was primarily due to
the significant increase in revenue of our self-developed PC games and
mobile games.
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10.

11.

Non-IFRS Measure — Adjusted Net Profit

To supplement this annual report which is presented in accordance with the
IFRS, we also use unaudited non-IFRS adjusted net profit* attributable to
equity holders of the Company as an additional financial measure to evaluate
our financial performance by eliminating the impact of items that we do not
consider indicative of the performance of our business.

In 2014, unaudited non-IFRS adjusted net profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company amounted to RMB144.5 million, representing an increase of
RMB107.2 million or 287.7% as compared with RMB37.3 million in 2013. The
increase was primarily due to the significant increase in revenue. Our
unaudited non-IFRS adjusted net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for 2014 and 2013 were derived from profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year excluding their share of (i) share- based
compensation expense of RMB29.1 million (2013: RMB0.4 million); and (ii)
expenses relating to the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange of
RMB17.7 million (2013: RMB1.8 million).

¥ Non-IFRS adjusted net profit was derived from the audited profit for the year
excluding (i) share-based compensation expense; and (i) expenses relating to the
Listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange.

Income Tax Expense

In 2014, income tax expense of the Group amounted to RMB14.0 million,
representing an increase of RMB9.7 million or 224.1% as compared with
RMB4.3 million in 2013. The increase was mainly due to the increase in profit
before income tax.

Liquidity and Source of Funding and Borrowing

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's total bank balances and cash increased
by 1124.5% from RMB58.7 million as at 31 December 2013 to RMB719.0
million. The increase of total bank balances and cash during the year
primarily resulted from the increase in profit from operation, the repayment
from loans of RMB25.0 million by the Shareholders and the net proceeds
raised by the initial public offering of approximately RMB600.3 million.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

As at 31 December 2014, the current assets of the Group amounted to
RMB876.1 million, including RMB744.0 million in bank balances and cash and
available-for-sale financial assets, and other current assets of RMB132.1
million. Current liabilities of the Group amounted to RMB75.4 million, of
which RMB46.6 million were trade payables and deferred revenue, and other
current liabilities of RMB28.8 million. As at 31 December 2014, the current
ratio (the current assets to current liabilities ratio) of the Group was 11.6 as
compared with 2.5 as at 31 December 2013.

Gearing ratio is calculated on the basis of total borrowings (net of cash and
cash equivalents) over the Group's total equity. The Group does not have any
bank borrowings and other debt financing obligations as at 31 December
2014 and the resulting gearing ratio is nil (2013: nil). The Group intends to
finance the expansion, investments and business operations with internal
resources.

Material Investments

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has entered into an
agreement for the acquisition of 10% equity interest in each of Shanghai
Wangyu Information Technology Company Limited, (“Wangyu IT") and
Shanghai Wangyu Network Development Company Limited ("Wangyu
Network’) for an aggregate consideration of RMB35.0 million. As of 31
December 2014, the Group has completed the acquisition of 4.2857% equity
interest in each of Wangyu IT and Wangyu Network for an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB15.4 million. The remaining acquisitions
of 5.7143% equity interest in each of Wangyu IT and Wangyu Network have
been completed in January 2015.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries or associated companies during the year ended
31 December 2014.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Group's assets was pledged (2013: nil).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014 (2013:

nil).
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16.

17.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group mainly operated in
China and the majority of its transactions were settled in RMB, the functional
currency for the Company's operating subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2014,
except for the bank deposits denominated in foreign currencies, the Group
did not have significant foreign currency exposure from its operations.

Employee’s Remuneration and Policy

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 568 employees, 322 of which were
responsible for game development, 171 for game operation and 75 for
general administration. The total remuneration expenses, excluding share-
based compensation expense, for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
RMB82.7 million, representing an increase of 14.0% as compared to the
previous year.

We provide external and internal training programs to our employees. As
required by PRC law, we participate in various employee benefit plans,
including housing pension, medical, basic pension and unemployment
benefit plans, occupational injury and maternity leave insurance. Pursuant to
the Employee Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Management Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, there were 25,009,600 share options granted to employees
by Blink Milestones Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company and
50,042,553 share options granted to senior management during the year
ended 31 December 2014, respectively.

Accordingly, the Group's share-based compensation expense for the year
ended 31 December 2014 amounted to RMB29.1 million, representing an
increase of RMB28.7 million as compared with RMB0.5 million in 2013.

16.

17.
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EFEERE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are online card and board game
development and operation. The activities of our principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of the Group's revenues and segment information are set out in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 62 of this
annual report.

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.064 per Share for the year ended 31 December 2014. The dividend is
expected to be payable on 9 June 2015 to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 22 May 2015. Payout
ratio of our unaudited non-IFRS adjusted net profit* for the year ended 31
December 2014 is 35%.

*  Non-IFRS adjusted net profit was derived from the audited profit for the year
excluding (i) share-based compensation expense; and (i) expenses relating to the
Listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange.

Reserves

Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Changes
to the reserves of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements. As at 31
December 2014, the Company had reserves available for distribution of
RMB595.1 million (2013: nil).
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Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets

Changes to the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of the
Group during the year are set out in Notes 11 and 12, respectively, to the

consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Incentive
Schemes

Details of the Company's share capital and share incentive schemes are set
out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the paragraph
headed “Summary of the Share Option Schemes” on pages 21 to 25 below,
respectively.

Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are set out
in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Summary

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 30 June 2014 (the
“Listing”). A summary of the condensed consolidated results and of the

financial position of the Group is set out on page 7 of this annual report.

Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering

The total net proceeds from the Listing which involved the issue of
196,000,000 ordinary Shares of US$0.00005 each amounted to approximately
RMB600.3 million. During the period between the Listing Date and 31
December 2014, the net proceeds from the Listing were utilized in
accordance with the proposed applications set out in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The balance of fund
would be utilized according to the use disclosed in the Prospectus. The
Group held the unutilized net proceeds in short-term deposits with licensed
institutions in Hong Kong.
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9. Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company repurchased
910,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange for an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$2.4 million before expenses. The repurchased Shares were
subsequently cancelled on 19 January 2015. The repurchases were made for
the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole with a view to
enhancing the earnings per Share. Details of the Shares repurchased are as
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follows: FleBRIROFBEROT
Purchase consideration per Share
ERBENRE
Highest Lowest Aggregate
No. of Shares price paid price paid consideration
Date of purchase repurchased per Share per Share paid
ERER 28R
BERH BEoROEE EeE RIEE ENERE
HKS HKS HK$'000
BT BT TET
30 December 2014 —E-NE+ A
=+H 675,000 2.82 2.57 1,800
31 December 2014 —T—mF&E+_-A
=+—H 235,000 2.70 258 618
Total BEt 910,000 2418
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has Br £ TP ER A SN - AN A R kA B

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2014.
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10. Share Option Schemes

The Company has adopted three share option schemes, namely, (i) the

Employee Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, (i) the Management Pre-IPO Share EEXAHEBEEABRESTS  ()EIE

Option Scheme and (iii) the Share Option Scheme. B B R A E A AR R B R i) BE AR
REETE -

As at 31 December 2014, 41,702,128 share options were granted to the R-ZE—NWE+-_A=+—R0 BEZE

BE A AAEESABERETS mE
=% 141,702,128 17 B PR AE -

Directors pursuant to the Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

Granted Exercised
Exercise Price during during
Name of Directors  Grant Date per Share the year the year Exercisable Period
EEnA RHEBH BRITEE REARLE RERTE TEH
Yang Eric Qing 20 February 2014 US$0.16714303 20,851,064 — 20 February 2015-19 February 2024
HE ZZE-WFEZAR 016714303F T —ﬁi*ﬂ*+5§
-+A ZEZME=A+NAH
Ng Kwok Leung Frank 20 February 2014 US$0.16714303 20,851,064 — 20 February 2015-19 February 2024
HE R —WEZA  016714303% T fﬁi—ﬂ—wLElf\
—+H —ZE-WHE-A+AR
Total #at 41,702,128

Ris B 42 B &) 81k

Summary of the Share Option Schemes

Employee Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Purpose

The purpose of the Employee Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to give the
participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake in the Company and
help motivate such participants to optimize their performance and efficiency,
and to retain the participants whose contributions are important to the long-
term growth and profitability of our Group. The options entitle participants
to obtain existing issued shares in our Company from Blink Milestones

Limited and will not involve our Company issuing any new Shares.

Exercise Price

The exercise price per Share under the Employee Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall be RMB0.1276 per Share (adjusted for capitalisation issue as set
out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements).
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Exercise of Option

The Shares subject to the Employee Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be
vested on four equal annual instalments with the first instalment
representing twenty five percent (25%) of the Shares subject to the
Employee Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme vesting on the first anniversary of
the Listing Date; and an additional instalment vesting on each anniversary
thereafter, subject to the fulfilment of the grantee’s performance target for
the full calendar year before the vesting determined by the Company being
fulfilled and the grantee’s continuing to be an employee of the Company
and being in compliance with the terms and conditions of the option award
agreement dated 20 February 2014 through each such date.

Outstanding Share Options

On 7 March 2014, 25,009,600 share options (adjusted for capitalisation issue)
were granted to 29 key employees of the Company by Blink Milestones
Limited under the Employee Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements and the Prospectus.

Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Purpose

The purpose of the Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to give the
participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake in our Company and
help motivate such participants to optimize their performance and efficiency,
and also to help retain the participants whose contributions are important to
the long-term growth and profitability of our Group.

The principal terms of the Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
effective as of 20 February 2014 and approved by the Board on 7 March 2014,
are substantially the same as the terms of the Employee Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme except that:

(@)  the exercise price per Share under the Management Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is US$0.16714303 per Share (adjusted for capitalisation

issue);
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(b)  twenty five percent (25%) of the Shares subject to the Management
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be vested on the first anniversary
of the grant date and the remaining Shares subject to the
Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall vest on 36 equal
monthly instalments with the first instalment vesting upon the 13th
monthly anniversary of the grant date and each of the remaining
instalments vesting on each monthly anniversary of the 13th monthly
anniversary of the grant date thereafter. The option may be exercised
upon the Listing.

Outstanding Share Options

On 20 February 2014, 50,042,553 share options (adjusted for capitalisation
issue) were granted to certain members of our senior management and
Directors. Further details of the Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and the

Prospectus.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19 November 2014. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide key employees, directors
or officers of the Group (“Eligible Persons”) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage them to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit
of the Company and Shareholders as a whole. The Share Option Scheme will
provide the Company with a flexible means of retaining, incentivizing,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to Eligible
Persons.

Any individual, being an employee, director or officer of any member of the
Group whom the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to
have contributed or will contribute to the Group is entitled to be offered and
granted options.

Number of Shares Available for Issue Under the Share Option Scheme

Under the Share Option Scheme, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 78,400,000 Shares, representing approximately 10% of the
Company's issued share capital as at the date of adopting the Share Option
Scheme. No share options were granted under the Scheme Option Scheme

during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Maximum Entitlement to Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company to each Eligible Person
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue (the “Individual
Limit"). Any further grant of options to a Eligible Person which would result
in the aggregate number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to such Eligible Person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
exceeding the Individual Limit shall be subject to separate approval of the
Shareholders.

Determination of the Exercise Price

The amount payable for each Share to be subscribed for under an option in
the event of the option being exercised shall be determined by the Board
but shall be not less than the greater of: (a) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
grant date; (b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal value of a Share
on the grant date.

The option period is to be determined and notified by the Board to each
grantee at the time of making an offer, and shall not expire later than ten
years from the grant date of the Share Option Scheme. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised in
general. However, at the time of granting any option, the Board may, on a
case by case basis, make such grant subject to such conditions, restrictions or
limitations including (without limitation) those in relation to the minimum
period of the options to be held and/or the performance targets to be

achieved as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion.

Exercise of Option
The options may be exercised up to 25% of the Shares for each year after the
first anniversary of the grant date of the Share Option Scheme for four

consecutive years.

Payment on Acceptance of Share Option

An amount of RMB1.00 must be paid as consideration for the grant of the
share options and such payment must be made within 20 business days
from the date the share option grant offer is made to the Eligible Person.
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Life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme is effective for a period of 10 years from 19
November 2014,

Movements in the Share Options

Details of the movements in the share options during the year are set out in
Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Valuation of Share Options

Details of the valuation of share options during the year are set out in Note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors and Senior Management

The directors and senior management of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Eric Qing (Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ng Kwok Leung Frank (Co-Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jiang*

Mr. Zhang Rongming*
Mr. Fan Tai

Mr. Chen Xian

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ge Xuan
Mr. Lu Zhong
Mr. Cheung Chung Yan, David

¥ Mr. Liu Jiang and Mr. Zhang Rongming were re-designated from executive Directors
to non-executive Directors of the Company with effect from 27 March 2015.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, all the
Directors will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Board considers them independent.
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Biographical Details Of Directors

Executive Directors

Yang Eric Qing, aged 43, has been an executive Director, chairman of the
Board and co-chief executive officer since the incorporation of our Company
in 2013. Mr. Yang joined our Group in December 2010 and is responsible for
general operation, strategy and information technology of the Company. Mr.
Yang also holds directorship in Lianzhong International Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Lianzhong. Mr. Yang held various positions at
International Business Machines Corporation (IBM) (including a director of
global business services and a director of SMB, MBPS Asia Pacific), a company
listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: IBM), including Director
and Sector Leader of MBPS Asia Pacific from 2006 to 2007, Director and
Sector Leader of Industrial and Distribution Sector, MBPS, Global Emerging
Markets in 2009 and Director of GCG Managed Business Process Services in
Global Resources Department in 2010. Mr. Yang received his Bachelor of

Science degree from the University of California, Berkeley, U.S.in 1994.

Ng Kwok Leung Frank, aged 46, is an executive Director and co-chief
executive officer of our Company. Mr. Ng joined our Group in June 2004 and
is responsible for business development and PC operations and finance of
the Company. He also serves as the chairman of the board of directors of
Lianzhong's subsidiary, Shanghai Yaozhong Culture Broadcast Co,, Ltd.. He
holds directorship in Beijing Linghegu Online Technology Co. Ltd., a
company in which Lianzhong holds 14.21% interest, and Lianzhong
International Company Limited and Tianjing Lianzhong Enjoyment
Technology Development Limited. He has joined the Group since 2004 and
served as vice president and joint chief executive officer of the Group. Before
joining our Group, Mr. Ng served as the senior associate of Grant Thornton
LLP in the United States for approximately four years and the vice president
of PCC Skyhorse Limited, an associated company of PCCW, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0008), for three years. Mr. Ng received his
Bachelor of Science degree from the University of California, Berkeley, U.S. in
1992.

Non-Executive Directors

Liu Jiang, aged 47, has been an executive Director of our Company and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director from 27 March 2015. Mr. Liu joined
our Group in December 2010 and holds directorship in Blink Milestones
Limited and Sonic Force Limited which are the Controlling Shareholders of
the Company. He also serves as president and chairman of the board of
directors of Hehong Holdings Group, a real estate group. Mr. Liu received his
Bachelor of Economics from the East China Jiaotong University, China in
1991.
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Zhang Rongming, aged 52, has been an executive Director of our Company
and was re-designated as a non-executive Director from 27 March 2015. Mr.
Zhang joined our Group in December 2010 and holds directorship in Elite
Vessels Limited which is a Controlling Shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Zhang was an independent director on the board of Lancy Co., Ltd, a PRC
company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002612) and
resigned in December 2012. He also serves as chairman of the board of
directors and general manager of Beijing Aimer Lingerie Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang
received his Master of Applied Chemistry from Central South University,
China in 1987 and his Bachelor of Metallurgical Physical Chemistry from the

Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering, China in 1984, respectively.

Fan Tai, aged 43, joined our company as a non-executive Director on 7
March 2014. Mr. Fan serves as the chief investment officer in KongZhong
Corporation, a company listed on NASDAQ (stock code: KONG) since 2009,
and as the executive director for KongZhong Corporation since 18 December
2014. Mr. Fan served as vice president of finance from 2002 to 2009 and
executive director from 2003 to 2009 at TOM Online, a web portal. Mr. Fan
obtained his EMBA degree from State University of New Jersey, U.S. in 2003

and Bachelor of Economics degree from Beijing Institute of Economics, China
in 1994.

Chen Xian, aged 33, has been our non-executive Director since 7 March
2014. Mr. Chen also serves as managing director of CMC Capital Partners
since May 2013. From July 2009 to March 2013, he worked at Providence
Equity Asia Limited and served as a director by the time he left. Prior to that,
Mr. Chen served at Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia Division from 2004 to
June 2009. Mr. Chen obtained his Bachelor of Engineering degree in

Electronics Engineering from Tsinghua University, China in 2003.

REE 25 BRARAIRITES I
RZB—RE=ZA-++BAFEEH
TEE - RELAR -_E—ZF+ - FM
A K & B 7 ¥ (T Elite Vessels Limited (H &
ARABZEBRBRE)EE - RELE L TH
ZBRMBERAB(—RRFINRZ T E
mE B QA (RERE : 002612)) 2 B
VEE TR _ZT——F+_-A#T-
BHEFLERERAREBERAGHNES
GEFRBLE -REED IR — AN
+tERTFRAEABESERALELEEL
B4 PA R — U\ F AR Bl 8
BIRWMRAMESfemEBEER LA
fif o

BHE g RZE—WmF=AtHM
AXRREEFFERITES - HAEEFZ
TENFEREFHER(—XAPE
En EmHAa(RH KK KONG)) &
FRERE . G -_FT—OMFE+_-A+N
AEFEFEEENTES  BEER
ZEECFE-TTNFHEETOMOnline
(—EMF@EL) MBI RHRITR=F
E=FE_FETNFERRTES - B
EERZETE=FREBMNEAINZK
BREEBEMBASAN - R — A A FERSP

Bl R B B SRR R LB -

BRoZ- 33 BT —MWF=HAKtH
BEEARRAMENTESE  RELE
MEZE— =F A A B EFCMC Capital
PartnerstI BB ESZE - RZZTTNF t
BE-Z—=ZH=Z7 BRELERBRY
HREDMNER AR BRBERT#E
EEMERRGIBIES—H-Fitz
Bl BREER-_ZEZENFE_ZTZNF
7N A BB EE AR £ A A 25 0N L SR R
HeBMAEER T _FRPEHBEK

BREBSETIRISBLE-



28 Ourgame International Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2014

Directors’Report (Continued)
EEERE®

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ge Xuan, aged 44, has been our independent non-executive Director since
Listing. Mr. Ge serves as director of Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd. and
director general manager of Minsheng Tonghui Asset management Co.,, Ltd.
Mr. Ge served as vice general manager, investment management manager
and assistant to general manager in Guosen Securities Co., Ltd. from
September 1997 to September 1998. He also served as manager of trade
investment and assistant to general manager of Boshi Fund Management
Co,, Ltd. from January 1999 to June 2000. He was a member of the
Investment and Risk Management Committee, assistant to the president of
Penghua Fund Management Co,, Ltd. from July 2000 to March 2002, chief
investment officer of Jin Yuan Securities Co., Ltd. from August 2002 to
December 2003, and vice president of Huaxi Securities Co. Ltd. From
December 2003 to October 2010. He has been a director of Wangxiang Trust
Co., Ltd since 18 August 2012. Mr. Ge obtained his Bachelor's degree in
economics from Shenzhen University in 1993.

Lu Zhong, aged 52, has been our independent non-executive Director since
Listing. Mr. Lu was a computer system engineer at the General Planning
Bureau under the Ministry of Machine & Electric Industry of China from
August 1984 to August 1990; deputy chief executive officer of 8848.net from
May 2000 to May 2002; general sales manager of China and Hong Kong
region of Advanced Micro Devices, Inc,, a company listed on New York Stock
Exchange (stock code: AMD) from July 2003 to October 2004. Mr. Lu then
served as the chairman of the board and by HiChina.com and the chief
strategy officer from then to September 2009 as well as the president from
2010 until December 2012 at HiChina.com. Mr. Lu served as a vice president
of the Alibaba Group from December 2012 until July 2014. Mr. Lu became
the founding partner of Beijing Zhonghai Investment Ltd since August 2014.
Mr. Lu obtained his Bachelor's degree in computer and application from
Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering in 1984.
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Cheung Chung Yan, David, aged 39, has been an independent non-
executive Director of our Company since Listing. Prior to joining our
Company, Mr. Cheung has been the financial controller and the company
secretary of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0175) since 17 May 2005. Mr. Cheung served as
a director of DSI Holdings Pty Limited from June 2009 until August 2014. Mr.
Cheung holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration in Accounting
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Cheung has over 17
years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.

Biographical Details of Senior Management

Senior Management

Zhang Peng, aged 38, joined our Group as president in February 2014. Mr.
Zhang is responsible for mobile games operation of the Company. He also
served as assistant to general manager of Zhuowang Information Technology
Co,, Ltd. from April 2011 to November 2013. He founded and was the
executive vice president of Yisanjiu Mobile Internet Company from
November 2008 to April 2011. He served as deputy head of business centre,
deputy head of product development, deputy head of cooperation and
management centre of the monternet division of China Mobile
Communications Corporation, a company listed on both the New York Stock
Exchange (stock code: CHL) and the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0941) from
September 1998 to October 2008. Mr. Zhang received his Bachelor Degree in
electronics and information systems from Shandong University, China in
1998.
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12. Directors’ Service Contracts

13

14

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company under which they agreed to act as executive Directors for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date of the Company,
which may be terminated by not less than three months' notice in writing
served by either the executive Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date of the Company. The
appointments of Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of directors under the Articles of Association.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2014 or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Directors’ Emoluments

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and those of the five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements. The remuneration of the Directors are determined based on the
market price and contribution made by such Directors to the Company.
There has been no arrangement under which any Director has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments.

12.

13.

14.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they have taken, or
are deemed to have taken, under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of interestin the
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held Company®
EERQTE
R 5 RN
EEnA B EatE #E HWED D
Shares
gy
Mr. Zhang Rongming Interest of a party to an agreement regarding interest in the company'” 362,143,364 (L) 46.19%
SRR E AL —EENRRERAENBENTOERY
Mr. Liu Jiang Interest of a party to an agreement regarding interest in the company'” 362,143,364 (L) 46.19%
2Lk H4E —EENRRERAENBENTOERY
Share options
B R R
Mr. Yang Eric Qing Beneficial interest” 20,851,064 (L) 2.66%
BE T E BEanEn?
Mr. Ng Kwok Leung Frank  Beneficial interest” 20,851,064 (L) 2.66%

hEREE BamgEm"

Notes:

(M Pursuant to the Concert Party Agreement entered into among Mr. Zhang, Mr.
Liu, Mr. Shen, Mr. Li Jianhua, Ms. Long and Beijing Tongshengcheng Investment
Management Center (LLP) on 22 February 2014, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Liu, Mr. Shen
and Ms. Long undertook to vote unanimously for any resolution proposed at
board and shareholders meetings of the Company and Lianzhong.
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) The interest relates to the Management Pre-IPO Share Options granted by the
Company to the Directors on 20 February 2014.

(3) These percentages are calculated on the basis of 784,000,000 Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2014.

4) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2014, none of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company and their respective associates had or is
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors and
chief executives of the Company are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or
which will be required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (other than the Directors or
the chief executives of the Company) have interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares or debentures as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest

REREH 50 atE

-Q

Q ARARZZE—WOF_AZ+HET
EECEEBERAAHESATERE
R -

B HEASLEDIBBER-_ZT—NF+=
A =+ — A B 47 2 784,000,000 f% % 1
FTE

@ TURRZATRZEBROHZEE -

BRAEREEEIN R-F—MF+ A
=t—B BMEARREFTRIZTERA
BMBEZBAALTRARRSEBEE
E(EEAIHFRBEHEMNSEVE) 2
M HEEROAEFTEEXRERER
TMEARBEES RMEHEIEXVEE7 R
EDHAMBEARBAREBMER S
ERABDZERZIAR (BEARBES
LREBTBRABREBEES MR HEOIERE
BEXBEARBRRERNERIRE) X
ARBES MY E R F32F AL ER
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ETHIAME AR N i XA 2 i SOR
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198 48 % T2 HD 6 16 01 336 1 22 B0 A
N FIR U 5 ) 77 B 1 B B 0 e 3
KA

Approximate

percentage of

Number of interestin the
Sharesheld ~ Company®
LR NN

s R4 RN
HE HKEDES

Mr. Shen Dongi

Interest of a party to an agreement regarding interest in the Company” 362,143,364 (L) 46.19%

B AL —HEEARNRREEENHENTOTERE"Y

Prosper Macrocosm Limited Interest of a party to an agreement regarding interest in the Company” 362,143,364 (L) 46.19%
—IHEARARNFRERBRANBGENTOTER"

Ms. Long Qi Interest of a party to an agreement regarding interest in the Company” 362,143,364 (L) 46.19%

ETLL —HBEARREEEBNHENTH T EE"
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of interestin the

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held Company®
LR NN
Fris &R 45 RN
REREHE B EEMtE B WMBEZHLY
Golden Liberator Limited Interest of a party to an agreement regarding interest in the Company"” 362,143,364 (L) 46.19%
—IHEARNTERAENBRNTO T ER"
Elite Vessels Limited Interest of a party to an agreement regarding interest in the Company” 362,143,364 (L) 46.19%
—HERRNRERBEENGENTOTER"
Sonic Force Limited Interest of a party to an agreement regarding interest in the Company” 362,143,364 (L) 46.19%
—IHEARARNRERBEANGENTOTER"
Blink Milestones Limited Interest of a party to an agreement regarding interest in the Company"” 362,143,364 (L) 46.19%
—IHEARNTERAENBRNTO T ER"
CMC Ace Holdings Limited? Beneficial owner 117,600,000 (L) 15.00%
EmEA A
CMC Capital Partners, Interest of controlled corporation 117,600,000 (L) 15.00%
GP,LP? RREGDEENER
CMC Capital Partners, Interest of controlled corporation 117,600,000 (L) 15.00%
GP, Ltd.” PSP A B ) 2R
CMC Capital Partners, LP.2  Interest of controlled corporation 117,600,000 (L) 15.00%
REEGDEE N ER
La Confiance Investments  Interest of controlled corporation 117,600,000 (L) 15.00%
Ltd.” REZEHEBE S
La Bonheur Holdings Ltd”  Interest of controlled corporation 117,600,000 (L) 15.00%
MREZESEE S
KongZhong Corporation Beneficial owner 58,800,000 (L) 7.50%
s EmEA A
Notes: M

m

Pursuant to the Concert Party Agreement entered into among Mr. Zhang, Mr.
Liu, Mr. Shen, Mr. Li Jianhua, Ms. Long and Beijing Tongshengcheng Investment
Management Center (LLP) on 22 February 2014, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Liu, Mr. Shen
and Ms. Long undertook to vote unanimously for any resolution proposed at
board and shareholders meetings of our Company and Lianzhong.

REmREE BEE RELE T2
EELE EXIRIERABEKEREER
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RRELIRENEDRER -

(2)  The 117,600,000 Shares represent the same block of Shares. () #%117,600,0000% B& 15 B P Al — BL AR 17 ©
(3)  These percentages are calculated on the basis of 784,000,000 Shares in issue as B ZEOHDRBER-Z-—MNF+=A

at 31 December 2014.
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(4) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2014, the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company are not aware of any other person (other than
the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group conducts its online game business through the PRC Operating
Entity, Lianzhong. Because of the foreign investment restrictions, the
Company, as a foreign investor, was not viable to hold Lianzhong directly
through equity ownership. In line with common practice in industries which
is subject to foreign investment restrictions in the PRC, the Company would
gain effective control over, and receive all the economic benefits generated
by the business currently operated by Lianzhong and its subsidiaries through
a series of contractual arrangements between Beijing Lianzhong Garden
Network Technology Co. Ltd (the "WFOE"), the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary on the one hand, and Lianzhong and its shareholders on the other
hand. The Contractual Arrangements allow Lianzhong's financials and results
of operations, together with those of its subsidiaries, to be consolidated into
our financials as if it was a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Group. Reference
is made to the Prospectus.

The Contractual Arrangements currently in effect comprise six agreements,
namely (a) the Master Exclusive Service Agreement, (b) the Business
Cooperation Agreement, (c) the Exclusive Option Agreement, (d) the Share
Pledge Agreement, (e) the Proxy Agreement and (f) the Power of Attorney.
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Contractual Arrangements R
The following diagram illustrates how economic benefits flow from TEREARBEEOZH BRALAEH
Lianzhong to our Group under the Contractual Arrangements: R 2 R

m Covenants not to materially affect Lianzhong’s assets and business and
right to appoint its directors and officers (Note 1)

@) Power of attorney to exercise all Shareholders'rights in Lianzhong (Note 2)

(3) Exclusive option to acquire all or part of the equity interest in Lianzhong
(Note 3)

4) First priority security interest over the entire equity interest in Lianzhong
(Note 4)

(1) RHETLEHRBIEEREBURZAEESREMBE ZBFEK
BEAPE (M31)

(2 1IEBBABERRENZTE (fH:2)

(3) WBEEHMRP IO BB EERE (M53)

(4 HBMBIIRECFE-ERLERER (M54)

The WFOE P Original Shareholders (Note 6)
SNEBE R [RBAEER (KiEE6)

Management and consultation service
(Note 5)

B MK ARS (FES5)

100%

o>

<_________

Lianzhong
BR

" —— " denotes direct legal and beneficial ownership in the equity interest and “ ==>" denotes contractual relationship.

[— IRTRRBEERZEREERESEMARE [-D>IRTEOEE-
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Notes:

1. Please refer to the section headed “Contractual Arrangements — Business
Cooperation Agreement” of this annual report for details.

2. Please refer to the section headed “Contractual Arrangements — Proxy
Agreement and Power of Attorney” of this annual report for details.

3 Please refer to the section headed “Contractual Arrangements — Exclusive
Option Agreement” of this annual report for details.

4. Please refer to the section headed “Contractual Arrangements — Share Pledge
Agreement” of this annual report for details.

5. Please refer to the section headed “Contractual Arrangements — Master
Exclusive Service Agreement” of this annual report for details.

6. Original Shareholders are Mr. Zhang Rongming, Mr. Liu Jiang, Mr. Shen Dongri,
Mr. Bao Yuegiao, Ms. Long Qi and Ms. Wu Lan.

Master Exclusive Service Agreement

Lianzhong entered into a master exclusive service agreement with the WFOE
on 28 January 2014 (the "Master Exclusive Service Agreement’), pursuant
to which, in exchange for a quarterly service fee, Lianzhong agreed to
engage the WFOE as its exclusive provider for the following services:

providing technology development and transfer, and technical
consulting services;
providing occupation and pre-occupation staff training services;
. providing public relation services;
providing market investigation, research and consulting services;

providing mid- or short-term market development and market
planning services;

providing human resource management and internal information

management;

providing network development, upgrade and daily maintenance;
. providing sale services of self-produced products;

licensing of software;

providing maintenance services in respect of computer software and
hardware system, database and computer servers;
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providing maintenance and upgrade services in respect of the online

games;

providing training services in respect of online game technology and
operations;

providing research and development services in respect of online

game software and maintenance of the system;

selling and authorising Lianzhong to license software; and

other services determined from time to time by the WFOE according
to the need of business and capacity of the WFOE and its designated
affiliates.

Under the Master Exclusive Service Agreement, the service fee is equal to
100% of the consolidated net profits of Lianzhong. The WFOE may adjust the
service fee at its sole discretion with reference to the working capital
requirements of Lianzhong and in accordance with several factors relating to
the services provided, including (i) technical difficulty and complexity of the
services; (i) time spent in providing the services; (iii) contents and commercial
value of the services; and (iv) the benchmark price of similar services in the
market. Since Lianzhong's funding requirements are satisfied by their residual
operating cash after paying the service fee to the WFOE, we do not expect to
transfer any net proceeds from the Global Offering to Lianzhong.

Intellectual property rights are developed during the normal course of
business of Lianzhong since its daily operations involve, among other things,
research and development and game development. Pursuant to the Master
Exclusive Service Agreement, any intellectual properties developed by
performance of the Master Exclusive Service Agreement, including but not
limited to copyrights, trademarks, patents, technical secrets and knowhow,
belong to the WFOE. If a development is based on the intellectual properties
owned by Lianzhong, Lianzhong shall warrant and guarantee that such
intellectual properties are flawless and it shall bear all damages and losses
caused to the WFOE by any flaw of such intellectual properties. The WFOE
has the right to recover all of its losses from Lianzhong for liabilities to any
third party.
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The Master Exclusive Service Agreement can be terminated by the WFOE at
any time upon 30 days’ written notice to Lianzhong. The Master Exclusive
Service Agreement shall also be terminated upon the transfer of all the
shares of Lianzhong to the WFOE and/or a third party designated by the
WFOE pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreement.

Business Cooperation Agreement

Lianzhong, its shareholders and the WFOE entered into a business
cooperation agreement on 28 January 2014 (the “Business Cooperation
Agreement’). Under the Business Cooperation Agreement, Lianzhong and
its shareholders, jointly and severally, agree and covenant that, without
obtaining the WFOE's written consent, Lianzhong shall not, and Lianzhong's
shareholders shall cause Lianzhong not to, engage in any transaction which
may materially affect its asset, obligation, right or operation, including
without limitation:

any activities not within its normal business scope, or operating its

business in a way that is inconsistent with its past practice;

merger, reorganization, acquisition or restructuring of its principal
business or assets, or acquisition or investment in any other form;

offering any loan to any third party, incurring any debt from any third
party, or assuming any debt other than in the ordinary course of
business;

engaging, changing or dismissing any director or any senior
management officer;

selling to or acquiring from any third party, mortgaging, licensing or
disposing of in other ways tangible or intangible assets, other than in
the ordinary course of business;

incurring, inheriting, assuming or guaranteeing any debt that are not
incurred during the ordinary course of business, using its assets to
provide security or other forms of guarantees to any third party, or
setting up any other encumbrances over its assets;

making any supplement, amendment or alternation to its articles of
association and by-laws, increasing or decreasing of its registered
capital or changing the structure of its registered capital in other
manners;
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making a distribution of a dividend, or share interest or sponsorship
interest in any way, provided that upon the WFOE's written request,
Lianzhong shall immediately distribute part or all of its distributable
profits to its shareholder(s) who shall in turn immediately and
unconditionally pay or transfer to the WFOE any such distribution;

executing any material contract, except contracts executed in the
ordinary course of business (for purpose of this subsection, the WFOE
may define a material contract at its sole discretion);

selling, transferring, mortgaging or disposing of in any manner any
legal or beneficial interest in its business or revenues, or allowing the

encumbrance thereon of any security interest;

a dissolution or a liquidation and distribution of residual assets; or

causing any of its branches or subsidiaries to engage in any of the

foregoing or enter into any contract, agreement or other legal
documents which may lead to or result in any of the foregoing.

In addition, Lianzhong agreed and covenanted to the WFOE that Lianzhong

shall, and the shareholders shall cause Lianzhong to:

accept suggestions raised by the WFOE over the engagement and
replacement of employees, daily operations, dividend distribution and
financial management systems of Lianzhong, and Lianzhong shall
strictly abide by and perform accordingly;

maintain Lianzhong's corporate existence in accordance with good
financial and business standards and practices by prudently and
effectively operating its business and handling its affairs;

conduct Lianzhong's businesses in the ordinary course of business to
maintain the asset value of Lianzhong and refrain from any act or
omission that may adversely affect Lianzhong's operating status and
asset value;

provide the WFOE with information on Lianzhong's business

operations and financial condition at the WFOE's request;
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if requested by the WFOE, procure and maintain insurance in respect
of Lianzhong's assets and business from an insurance carrier
acceptable to the WFOE, at an amount and type of coverage typical
for companies that operate similar businesses;

immediately notify the WFOE of the occurrence or possible occurrence
of any litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings relating to
Lianzhong's assets, business or revenue; and

execute all necessary or appropriate documents, take all necessary or
appropriate actions and file all necessary or appropriate complaints or
raise necessary and appropriate defences against all claims so as to
maintain the ownership by Lianzhong of all of its assets.

According to the Business Cooperation Agreement, the shareholders of
Lianzhong shall only appoint persons designated by the WFOE as directors,
the general manager, the chief financial officer and other senior management
members of Lianzhong, and the shareholders shall dismiss any such directors
or senior management members upon the WFOE's request. Lianzhong and
its shareholders also jointly and severally covenanted that Lianzhong shall
seek appropriate approval from the WFOE prior to entering in to any material
contract.

Furthermore, the shareholders agree that, unless required by the WFOE, they
shall not put forward, or vote in favour of, any shareholder resolution to, or
otherwise request Lianzhong to, distribute profits, funds, assets or property
to the shareholders, or to issue any dividends or other distributions with
respect to the shares of Lianzhong held by the shareholders.

The Business Cooperation Agreement shall remain effective as long as
Lianzhong exists, unless the WFOE terminates it upon 30 days' advance
written notice or upon the transfer of all the shares held by Lianzhong's
shareholders to the WFOE and/or a third party designated by the WFOE.

Exclusive Option Agreement

Lianzhong and its shareholders entered into an exclusive option agreement
with the WFOE on 28 January 2014 (the “Exclusive Option Agreement’),
pursuant to which the WFOE has a right to require the respective
shareholders to transfer any or all the shares of Lianzhong they hold to the
WFOE and/or a third party designated by it, in whole or in part at any time
and from time to time, at the lowest price allowable under PRC laws and
administration regulations at the time of transfer.
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The Exclusive Option Agreement shall remain effective as long as Lianzhong REMBEETT BREREDZ

exists, and cannot be terminated by either Lianzhong or its shareholders. The TEAM  To] R Rk EPKRE T LA i%
Exclusive Option Agreement can be terminated (i) by the WFOE at any time e BREREHGZTUUAT AR T
Wi ORABRRERREEL = +X
RAZEBANEZETMEERIFTEE
TEFULL R MIINEBE %
M/SNEBECEEEZE = E R

upon 30 days' advance written notice to Lianzhong and its shareholders; or (ii)
upon the transfer of all the shares held by the shareholders to the WFOE and/
or a third party designated by the WFOE.

Lianzhong and its shareholders, among other things, have covenanted that:

without the prior written consent of the WFOE, they shall not in any
manner supplement, change or amend the articles of association and
bylaws of Lianzhong, increase or decrease its registered capital, or

change the structure of its registered capital in other manners;

they shall maintain Lianzhong's corporate existence in accordance
with good financial and business standards and practices by prudently
and effectively operating its business and handling its affairs;

without the prior written consent of the WFOE, they shall not sell,
transfer, mortgage or dispose of in any manner any assets of
Lianzhong (except in the ordinary course of business), or legal or
beneficial interest in the business or revenues of Lianzhong, or allow
the encumbrance thereon of any security interest;

without the prior written consent of the WFOE, they shall not incur,
inherit, guarantee or assume any debt, except for debts incurred in
the ordinary course of business;

they shall always operate all of Lianzhong's businesses during the
ordinary course of business to maintain the asset value of Lianzhong
and refrain from any action/omission that may adversely affect
Lianzhong's operating status and asset value;

without the prior written consent of the WFOE, they shall not cause
Lianzhong to execute any material contract (as defined by the WFOE
at its sole discretion), except the contracts executed in the ordinary
course of business;
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without the prior written consent of the WFOE, they shall not cause
Lianzhong to provide any person with any loan or credit other than in

the course of ordinary business;

they shall provide the WFOE with information on Lianzhong's business
operations and financial condition at WFOE's request;

if requested by the WFOE, they shall procure and maintain insurance
in respect of Lianzhong's assets and business from an insurance carrier
acceptable to the WFOE, at an amount and type of coverage typical
for companies that operate similar businesses;

without the prior written consent of the WFOE, they shall not cause or
permit Lianzhong to merge, consolidate with, acquire or invest in any
person;

they shall immediately notify the WFOE of the occurrence or possible
occurrence of any litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings

relating to Lianzhong's assets, business or revenue;

to maintain the ownership by Lianzhong of all of its assets, they shall
execute all necessary or appropriate documents, take all necessary or
appropriate actions and file all necessary or appropriate complaints or

raise necessary and appropriate defences against all claims;

they shall ensure that Lianzhong shall not, without the prior written
consent of the WFOE, in any manner distribute dividends to its
shareholder(s), provided that upon the WFOE's written request,
Lianzhong shall immediately distribute part or all of its distributable
profits to its shareholder(s) who shall in turn immediately and
unconditionally pay or transfer to the WFOE any such distribution;

at the request of the WFOE, they shall appoint any persons designated
by the WFOE as the directors and/or executive director of Lianzhong;
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they shall cause the meeting of shareholders and the board of
directors of Lianzhong to pass shareholders’ resolutions and board

resolutions in accordance with the instruction of the WFOE; and

unless otherwise mandatorily required by PRC laws, Lianzhong shall
not be dissolved or liquidated without prior written consent by the
WFOE.

Share Pledge Agreement

The shareholders of Lianzhong and the WFOE entered into a share pledge
agreement on 28 January 2014 (the "Share Pledge Agreement”). Under the
Share Pledge Agreement, the shareholders of Lianzhong unconditionally and
irrevocably pledged all of the shares of Lianzhong that they own, including
any interest or dividend paid for such shares, to the WFOE as a security for
the performance of the obligations by Lianzhong and its shareholders under
the Master Exclusive Service Agreement, the Business Cooperation
Agreement, the Exclusive Option Agreement and other agreements to be
executed among Lianzhong, its shareholders and the WFOE from time to
time (collectively the “Principal Agreements”).

The pledge shall remain valid until all parties have agreed to terminate the
Share Pledge Agreement, the Principal Agreements have been fulfilled to the
satisfaction of the WFOE or all of the Principal Agreements have expired or

been terminated.

Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an event of default (as
defined in the Share Pledge Agreement), the WFOE shall have the right to
require Lianzhong's shareholders to immediately pay any amount payable by
Lianzhong under the Master Exclusive Service Agreement, repay any loans
and pay any other due payments, and the WFOE shall have the right to
exercise all such rights as a secured party under any applicable PRC law,
including without limitations, (i) to sell all or any part of the pledged shares at
one or more public or private sales upon three days' written notice to the
pledgor, and (i) to execute an agreement with Lianzhong's shareholders to
acquire the pledged shares based on their monetary value which shall be
determined by referencing the their market price.
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Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney

Lianzhong, each of its shareholders and the WFOE entered into a proxy
agreement and power of attorney on 28 January 2014 (the “Proxy
Agreement and Power of Attorney’). Under the Proxy Agreement and
Power of Attorney, each shareholder irrevocably appointed the WFOE (as
well as its successors, including a liquidator, if any, replacing the WFOE) as its
attorney-in-fact to exercise on its behalf, and agreed and undertook not to
exercise without such attorney-in-fact’s prior written consent, any and all

right that it has in respect of its shares in Lianzhong, including without

limitation:

to call and attend shareholders’ meetings of Lianzhong, and receive

notices and materials with respect to the shareholders’ meeting;
to execute and deliver any and all written resolutions and meeting

minutes in the name and on behalf of such Shareholder;

to vote by itself or by proxy on any matters discussed on shareholders’
meetings of Lianzhong, including without limitation, the sale, transfer,
mortgage, pledge or disposal of any or all of the assets of Lianzhong;

to sell, transfer, pledge or dispose of any or all of the shares in

Lianzhong;

to nominate, appoint or remove the directors, supervisors and senior

management of Lianzhong when necessary;

to oversee the economic performance of Lianzhong;

to have full access to the financial information of Lianzhong at any

time;

to file any shareholder lawsuits or take other legal actions against
Lianzhong's directors or senior management members when such

directors or members are acting to the detriment of the interest of

Lianzhong or its shareholder(s);

to approve annual budgets or declare dividends;

to manage and dispose of the assets of Lianzhong;
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to have the full rights to control and manage Lianzhong's finance,
accounting and daily operation (including but not limited to signing
and execution of contracts and payment of government taxes and
duties);

to approve the filing of any documents with the relevant
governmental authorities or regulatory bodies; and any other rights
conferred by the articles of association of Lianzhong and/or the

relevant laws and regulations on the shareholders.

In addition, if any share transfer is contemplated under the Exclusive Option
Agreement and the Share Pledge Agreement that Lianzhong's shareholders
enter into for the benefits of the WFOE or its affiliate, the WFOE shall have the
right to sign the share transfer agreement and other relevant agreements
and to perform the Exclusive Option Agreement and the Share Pledge
Agreement.

The Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney shall remain effective as long as
Lianzhong exists. Lianzhong's shareholders shall not have the right to
terminate the Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney or to revoke the
appointment of the attorney-in-fact without the WFOE's prior written

consent.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) are of the
view that the Contractual Arrangements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder are fundamental to the Group’s legal structure and business
operations, that such transactions are on normal commercial terms and are
fair and reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the Group is concerned and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The independent non-executive Directors reviewed the Contractual
Arrangements and confirmed that (i) the continuing connected transactions
carried out during the year ended 31 December 2014 (“Connected
Transaction’) have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group, (i) the continuing Connected Transactions have been
entered into on normal commercial terms or better, (iii) the continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into according to the
Contractual Arrangements governing each of the continuing Connected
Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole, (iv) no new agreements within the
Group have been entered into from the Listing Date till the end of the year,
and (v) no dividends or other distributions have been made by Lianzhong to
the holders of its equity interests which are not otherwise subsequently
assigned or transferred to the Group.
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17

18

Further, the Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected transactions of
the Group for the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2014 has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The ultimate customers of the Group are individual players paying through
payment channels. The average MAUs for year 2014 for our self-developed
PC games and mobile games are 10.4 million and 15.4 million respectively,
MPUs for year 2014 for our self-developed PC games and mobile games are
324,000 and 615,000 respectively, and ARPPU for year 2014 for our self-
developed PC games and mobile games are RMB70.8 and RMB19.6
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the five largest payment
channels contributed a total of 68.5% of the Group's total revenue. Our
largest payment channel contributed 29.9% of the Group's total revenue for
the year 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the purchases from the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted a total of 36.9% of the Group's total
purchases from all of the suppliers. Our top supplier in 2014 accounted for
approximately 11.0% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's issued capital) had an interest in any of the major customers or

suppliers noted above.
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19. Audit Committee

20

21

22

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has
reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and
discussed the Group's internal controls and financial reporting matters with
the management. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
of the Company, although there are no restrictions against such rights under
the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 568 employees, 322 of which were
responsible for game development, 171 for game operation and 75 for
general administration. The total remuneration expenses, excluding share-
based compensation expense, for the year ended 31 December 2014 were
RMB82.7 million, representing an increase of 14.0% as compared to the
previous year.

We provide various employee benefits and social insurance to our
employees. We also provide share options to better motivate our employees.
Accordingly, the Group's share-based compensation expense for the year
ended 31 December 2014 amounted to RMB29.1 million, representing an
increase of RMB28.7 million as compared with RMBO.5 million in 2013.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of its directors, the directors confirm that the Company has
maintained the amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules

since its Listing until 31 December 2014.
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23. Closure of Register of Members

24

In order to determine the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote
at the AGM to be held on 14 May 2015, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 12 May 2015 to 14 May 2015, both dates
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.

In addition, in order to determine the shareholders who are entitled to
receive the proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 20 May 2015 to 22 May 2015, both dates inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.

In order to be qualified for attending and voting at the AGM and the
entitlement for the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.on 11
May 2015 and 19 May 2015 respectively.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited. A resolution for its re-appointment as auditors for the
coming year will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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25. Changes in Information of Directors

26

The Board announces that Mr. Zhang Rongming and Mr. Liu Jiang have been
re-designated from executive Directors to non-executive Directors with
effect from 27 March, 2015. Mr. Zhang Rongming would like to step down as
an executive Director so as to allow himself more time to pursue his other
personal and business objectives whilst still being able to contribute his
valuable skills and experience to the Company through his new position as a
non-executive Director. With the same reason as Mr. Zhang Rongming, Mr.
Liu Jiang also wishes to spend more time with his family and accordingly, he
will be devoting less time in the daily management of the Group by re-

designation from an executive Director to a non-executive Director.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
Directors of the Company are set out below:

(@ At the request of Mr. Liu Jiang, Mr. Liu Jiang was re-designated from
executive Director to non-executive Director with effect from 27
March 2015.

(b) At the request of Mr. Zhang Rongming, Mr. Zhang Rongming was re-

designated from executive Director to non-executive Director with
effect from 27 March 2015.

Qualification Requirement

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has no update to disclose in relation

to the qualification requirement.

On behalf of the Board
Yang Eric Qing

Chairman and Executive Director

27 March 2015
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the Company for the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2014.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining and promoting stringent corporate
governance. The principle of the Company's corporate governance is to promote
effective internal control measures and to enhance the transparency and
accountability of the Board to all Shareholders.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except
for a deviation from the code provision A.2.1 which requires that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual, the code provision A.5.6 which stipulates that a policy
concerning diversity of board members should be adopted and the code provision
A6.7 which requires that the independent non-executive Directors and other non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the Company for
the purpose of complying with the Code and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices of the Company.

Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules to govern securities transactions by its Directors. Having made specific
enquiry to all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they have strictly complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code from the Listing Date to the
date of this annual report.
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, four non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board is as followings:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Eric Qing (Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ng Kwok Leung Frank (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jiang*

Mr. Zhang Rongming*
Mr. Fan Tai

Mr. Chen Xian

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ge Xuan
Mr. Lu Zhong
Mr. Cheung Chung Yan David

* Mr. Liu Jiang and Mr. Zhang Rongming were re-designated from executive Directors to
non-executive Directors of the Company with effect from 27 March 2015

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 26 to 29 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer (“Co-CEO”)

Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should not be performed by the same individual.
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Mr. Yang Eric Qing is the Chairman and Co-CEO of the Company. Mr. Yang joined
the Group in December 2010 and is responsible for general operation, strategy
information technology of the Company and is instrumental to the Company’s
growth and business expansion. The Board considers that vesting the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer in Mr. Yang is beneficial to the management of
the Group. The balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
senior management and the Board, which comprises experienced and high-calibre
individuals. The Board currently comprises two executive directors (including Mr.
Yang), four non-executive directors and three independent non-executive directors
and therefore has a fairly strong independence element in its composition.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the Company for

the purpose of complying with the Code and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices of the Company.

Board Meetings and Extraordinary General
Meeting Held in 2014

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2014, the Board convened two meetings. A
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summary of the attendance record of the Directors is set out in the following table # =@ ZRMA@Zm - T EHF LB EH
below: SN T& :
Number of meetings
attended/held from
the Listing Date through Attendance
Name of Directors 31 December 2014 rate
BLETHEHE=-Z—0F
+=A=+-—8
EEnA HE BITEBRE HE =
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yang Eric Qing BESE 2/2 100%
Mr. Ng Kwok Leung Frank R £ 2/2 100%
Non-executive Directors FHITESE
Mr. Liu Jiang BT HE 2/2 100%
Mr. Zhang Rongming IRESER S A 2/2 100%
Mr. Fan Tai BREE 2/2 100%
Mr. Chen Xian BRIZ 54 2/2 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITESE
Mr. Ge Xuan B aE 2/2 100%
Mr. Lu Zhong BREE 2/2 100%
Mr. Cheung Chung Yan David RMEIC LA 2/2 100%
The Board will meet at least four times each year at approximately quarterly BEECEEARTFTAZTFAKRXEAG EF
intervals in accordance with code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance E8BFELBEITHREE WEFHH— R -

Code.
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Pursuant to the code provision A6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
independent non-executive Directors and other non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings. During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2014, the Company convened one extraordinary general meeting ("EGM"). Apart
from Mr. Yang Eric Qing and Mr. Ng Kwok Leung Frank who have attended the
EGM, all other Directors did not attend the EGM due to pre-arranged business
commitments.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors a
written annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term of three
years, which commenced on the Listing Date and will be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting at the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’
Re-election

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) have separately been appointed for a term of three years commencing
on the Listing Date and will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is the primary decision making body of the Company and is responsible
for overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. The Board makes decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

During the year, the Board has developed measures for implementing good
corporate governance policies and practices and has delegated to the Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of references.
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Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of our
business and is responsible for overseeing the general operation, business
development, finance, marketing, PC and mobile operations.

Induction and Continuing Professional
Development of Directors

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant

statutory requirements.

Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The joint company
secretaries update Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

Board Committees

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee,
and the Risk Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. Each of these committees are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee in compliance with Rule 321 of
the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
audit committee is to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal controls system of the Group, review and approve connected transactions
and provide advice and comments to the Board.

The audit committee consists of three members: Mr. Cheung Chung Yan David, Mr.
Fan Tai and Mr. Ge Xuan. Mr. Fan is a non-executive Director and Mr. Cheung and
Mr. Ge are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Cheung is the chairman of the
audit committee of the Company.
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2014, the audit committee

GREBRERABRA A

RETESME_T-—HWOF+_A=1t—HH

held two meetings. The attendance record of the meetings is set out in the table i B ZE@RITR A H - @2 FLH
below: R T &
Number of
meetings attended/
held attended from
the Listing Date through Attendance
Name of Committee Member 31 December 2014 rate
BETmHEHBE —mF
+= ﬂ = '|‘ —H
EEEHENRE HE BETEBRRE HE =
Mr. Fan Tai BREE 2/2 100%
Mr. Ge Xuan BlEkE 2/2 100%
Mr. Cheung Chung Yan David RUB{C A 2/2 100%

During the meetings, the audit committee met with the external auditor and
reviewed the financial results and reports for the six months ended 30 June 2014
and the nine months ended 30 September 2014.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee in compliance with Rule 3.25
of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee is to review and make recommendations to the Board the
terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to our
Directors and other senior management.

The remuneration committee consists of three members: Mr. Lu Zhong, Mr. Cheung
Chung Yan David and Mr. Ge Xuan, all being independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. Lu is the chairman of the remuneration committee.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2014, the remuneration
committee held one meeting. The attendance record of the meeting is set out in

the table below:
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Number of
meetings attended/
held attended from

the Listing Date through Attendance
Name of Committee Member 31 December 2014 rate
BLEHTHEMZE-_Z—IF
+t=A=+-8
ZEERENE HE BITEERK HE =
Mr. Lu Zhong BREE 1 100%
Mr. Ge Xuan BiERE 1/1 100%
Mr. Cheung Chung Yan David R A 1/1 100%
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During the meeting, the remuneration committee discussed the Share Option
Scheme which was approved by Shareholders and adopted by the Company on 19
November 2014.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

The Company has established a nomination and corporate governance committee
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
nomination and corporate governance committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and management of Board

succession.

The nomination and corporate governance committee consists of 5 members: Mr.
Lu Zhong, Mr. Yang Eric Qing, Mr. Cheung Chung Yan David, Mr. Chen Xian and Mr.
Ge Xuan. Mr. Yang is an executive Director, Mr. Chen is a non-executive Director and
Mr. Lu, Mr. Cheung and Mr. Ge are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Yang

is the chairman of the nomination and corporate governance committee.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2014, the nomination and

corporate governance committee did not convene any meeting.

Code provision A.5.6 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules stipulates that a policy
concerning diversity of board members should be adopted, but the Company did
not have such a policy during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2014. The Company adopted the diversity policy on 27 March 2015. The nomination
and corporate governance committee also reviewed and agreed on measurable
objectives for implementing diversity on the Board. The measurable objectives
identified by the nomination and corporate governance committee include: a
material number of members of the Board should have served as senior
management with companies; certain members of the Board should have
experience with listed companies; and certain members of the Board should have
experience with conducting businesses in the telecommunications industry. The
nomination and corporate governance committee is satisfied that the composition
of the Board is sufficiently diverse.

Risk Management Committee

The Company has established a risk management committee. The primary duties of
the risk management committee are to formulate policies on risk management
matters and to advise on matters raised by the Directors and the management that
may have an impact on the stability and integrity of the securities and derivatives
markets of Hong Kong.
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The risk management committee consists of three members: Mr. Ng Kwok Leung
Frank, Mr. Ge Xuan and Mr. Lu Zhong. Mr. Ng is an executive Director and Mr. Ge
and Mr. Lu are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Ng is the chairman of the
risk management committee.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2014, the risk management

committee did not convene any meeting.

Directors’ Responsibility in respect of the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue

as a going concern.

Auditors’ Responsibility and Remuneration

The Company appointed Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“Grant Thornton”)
as the external auditors for the year ended 31 December 2014. A statement by
Grant Thornton about their reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is
included in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 60 to 61.

The remuneration paid/payable to Grant Thornton, in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
RMB4,698,000 and RMB570,000 respectively, of which RMB3,825,000 represents
audit fees paid in relation to the audit for the initial public offering and listing of the
Company. The non-audit services mainly include the review of the interim financial
statements of the Company.

Internal Controls

The Board had conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 and
considered the system effective and adequate.

We have established internal control policies and risk management systems
covering our internal control environment, risk assessment, information and
communication, monitoring, anti-cheating programs, revenue and receivables,
purchase and payables, information security and intellectual property rights,
financial management, financial reports, fixed and intangible assets, human
resources, taxation, investment, legal management and research and development.
We have also established a risk management committee on the Board to oversee

the Group's risk management, risk tolerance and governance.
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The Directors are of the view that we have established procedures, systems and
controls that provide a reasonable basis to make a proper assessment of the
financial conditions and prospects of the Group on an ongoing basis.

Joint Company Secretaries

Ms. Li Jin, the joint company secretary, is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and ensuring that Board policy and procedures, and
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance with the
Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company also engages Ms. Ng
Sau Mei, a manager of KCS Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial services
provider), as the joint company secretary to assist Ms. Li Jin discharging the duties
of a company secretary of the Company. Her primary contact person at the
Company is Ms. Li Jin, the General Counsel and Joint Company Secretary of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Ms. Li and Ms. Ng have undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings (“EGM”)
by Shareholders

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, the Board may, whenever it
thinks fit, convene an EGM. General meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more Shareholders deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the

Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of a Shareholder
which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board and Contact
Details

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the

following:

Address: 17/F, Tower B Fairmont, No. 1 Building, 33#
Community, Guangshun North Street, Chaoyang District,
Beijing
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

Fax: +8610 8472 5350

Email: ir@ourgame.com

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors Relations

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the Group's business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) will be available to meet Shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

Changes in Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has adopted an amended
and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company on 12 June
2014, which became effective on the Listing Date. Save as disclosed in this annual
report, the Company has not made any significant changes to its constitutional

documents.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BIAZBENRSE

o GrantThornton
G

To the members of Ourgame International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ourgame International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 62 to 168, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
B BET RS (@)

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

27 March 2015

Lin Ching Yee Daniel
Practising Certificate No.: P02771
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HFEXEBRR

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2014
—E-—OF
Notes RMB’000
B 5 AR T
Revenue ON 4 475,769
Cost of revenue L ONPEN (181,269)
Gross profit EF 294,500
Other income H A A 5 23,398
Selling and marketing expenses HERMBGHEERR (70,416)
Administrative expenses TR X (70,986)
Share-based compensation expense ARt REROH S 25 (29,141)
Research and development expenses HEEE R (35,756)
Profit before income tax R P 45 B¢ A0 7 A 111,599
Income tax expense FriSfi & 7 (13,956)
Profit for the year FERH 6 97,643
Other comprehensive loss Hth2HEEE
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified HiEAEETIEA

to profit or loss: BmMIER :

Currency translation differences EHmE =8 (3,379)
Total comprehensive income fortheyear FEZHEUKFHE 94,264
Profit for the year attributable to: LTEENEERS:

Equity holders of the Company 2NN ESESES N
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR =
Total comprehensive income for theyear Ll T fE{h £ E 2 H W

attributable to: B
Equity holders of the Company RATEZIFEA
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR =

94,264
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary A AT EEBERERFEA
equity holders of the Company EHERAER

(expressed in RMB cents per share)
Basic

(AEBEBRARESTIR)

2N

Diluted

The notes on pages 69 to 168 form part of these financial statements.

e

o8

2013
—E—=F

RMB'000
ARET T

236,300
(79,803)

156,497
4,649
(45,476)
(34,714)
(490)
(35,699)

44,767
(4,306)

40,461

40,461

35,052
5,409

40,461

35,052
5,409

40,461

852

8.52

VEEFIBAZHARULETHRRZ —



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FeEMBRAR

Asat31 December2014 R=—ZF—HWE+=-HA=+—H

BREBREZERERA

—2-mEFH 63

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 7 AR®ET AR T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR 11 12,061 9,168
Intangible assets EmREE 12 47,942 43318
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEESREE 18 15,435 —
Interests in associates RN o - 14 13,682 7,000
Deferred tax assets IR TH B = 22 104 158
89,224 59,644
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 15 1,581 1,169
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H A e I8 16 130,522 58,467
Loans to shareholders BETREZER 17 — 25,000
Available-for-sale financial assets AfHESREE 18 25,000 5,000
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBR LIRS 19 718,979 58,716
876,082 148,352
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H fth f& 1 5B 20 44,581 27,829
Deferred revenue 5 FE LA 21 20,798 29467
Income tax liabilities IR =N 10,011 1,484
75,390 58,780
Net current assets REBEEFE 800,692 89,572
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 889,916 149,216
EQUITY s
Share/Paid-in capital NI = N 23 238 72,061
Reserves EE 24 889,588 77,067
Equity attributable to equity holders RATEREB AERER
of the Company 889,826 149,128
Non-controlling interests I 12 iR 90 88
Total equity DR 889,916 149,216
Yang Eric Qing Ng Kwok Leung Frank
BE HER
Director Director
E E

FOREFIBAZMERLZTHBHIREKRZ —

D o

The notes on pages 69 to 168 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
MERAE

Asat31 December2014 R=—ZF—HWFE+=-HA=+—H

2014 2013
—E-QmEF —T-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 7 AR®ET ARET T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AL NG X 13 _
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H 1th e Uk 2118 16 7,295 772
Bank balances and cash RITEBREES 19 622,380 —
629,675 772
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables E b fE 1 5K I8 20 2,069
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (BE8)EE 612,939 (1,297)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBAER 617,130 (1,297)
EQUITY s
Share capital % A< 23 bk} 61
Reserves & 24 616,892 (1,358)
Total equity B 617,130 (1,297)
Yang Eric Qing Ng Kwok Leung Frank
BE HER
Director Director
E E
The notes on pages 69 to 168 form part of these financial statements. FOBEEFIBELMFALZEVBHRE 2 —

D o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
TEEREDR

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARAEEREARERES

Non-
Share/ Share Statutory Translation  Share option Other  Accumulated controlling Total
Paid-in capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
B/
BYER  RIDEE  EERE  BRERE BRERE  HbRE  2HFE i ERRER  ERBE

RMB000 RMB00O RMB000 RMB000 RMBO0O RMB000 RMB00O RMBO0O RMB000 RMB00O
AREFT ARBTLT ARBTL ARETR ARBTR ARETI ARBTI ARBTRT ARETR AR¥TR

Balance at 1 January R-B-=%
2013 —-B-Hzit 62,640 1,266 2,065 = = 9658 14,831 90,460 17,744 108,204

Total comprehensive FEREAREAR
income for the year
Profit for the year EEME — — — — — — 35052 35052 5400 40461

Transactions withowners SHEEARH

Shares issued on AR R K B

incorporation of the B2k

Company (Note 23(()) (Bt 3E236)) 61 = — — — = = 61 - 61
Share-based compensation LA RR 3 B E 1K)

(Note 25) % (Hi3E25) = = = = - 490 - 490 - 490
Appropriation tostatutory D ERE A E

reserve - - 4075 - = = (4075) - - -

Acquisition of additional ARREREEA
interest in subsidiaries by WEHB AR
equity holders of the BIMER (M 5E23)
Company (Note 23) 9,360 — — — — 13,705 — 23,065 (23,065) —

Total transactions with BEEARS

owners B8 9421 — 4075 - — 14,195 (4,075) 23616 (23,065) 551
Balanceat31December R-BE—-=&
2013 +=A=t+-A
2t 72,061 1,266 6,140 — — 23853 45808 149,128 88 149,216
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

GAEES

Bk @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

Balance at 1 January R-E2-I%F
2014 —A-BZ&

Total comprehensive EEREREAR
income for the year

Profit for the year EEFHE

Other comprehensiveloss ~ E£EH it 2 EEE
for the year
Currency translation ERBEZER

differences

Transactions withowners SEEARH

Issuance of Series A Preferred 31T A R 51| 8 5t R
Shares (Note 23(ii) (Bt &£ 23(ii))

Capitalisation issue BERLES
(Note 23(iv)) (F #E230v))

Issuance of new shares HARDRRM £
in connection with the BIIHBRD
listing of the Company’s (H&E23)
shares (Note 23(v))

Share issuance expenses R8T E B
(Notes 23() & (v)) (GEPEDO)

Share-based compensation  LARR {3 A E R #)
(Note 25) B & (Fit 7 25)

Appropriationto statutory D EEEE
reserve

Reorganization (Note 23) E4 (M E23)

Share repurchasedandnot BB R $E2
yet cancelled &7
(Note 23(vii) (P &E23vi)

Dividends paid (Note 8) BRRE (B Es)

Total transactions with BREEARSBE
owners

Balanceat31December ~A=Z—MF
2014 +=A=+-A

2t

The notes on pages 69 to 168 form part of these financial statements.

Share/ Share
Paid-in capital premium
B&/

BEHEEX  RHERE
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR%TR

299,976

(93)

661,147

(41,998)

(1,266)

(1,916)
(296,498)

(71,823) 619,352

620,618

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

Statutory
reserve

BEMRE
RMB'000
ARBT R

12,743

18,883

ARARGHEEARGES
Non-
Translation Share option Other Accumulated controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
BEMAEE BRERE HeRE  RIAE Mt KEREE REREARE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®TR ARBTRT ARWTRT AR®TR AR®TR ARMTR

45,808 149,128 149,216

97,641 97,641 97,643

(3,379) (3,379) (3,379)

(3,379) 97,641 94,264

300,000 300,000

661,207 661,207
(41,998) (41,998)
29,141 29,141
= (12,743)

73,266 -

— (1,916) (1,916)
(3,500) (299,998) (299,998)

25,233 77174 (16,243) 646,436 646,436

(3,379) 101,027 127,206 889,826 889,916

FOREFIBAZMERLZTH KRR Z —

D o



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERaftER

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

Notes

3E=3

GREBRZERAERAA

2014
=k

RMB’000
AR¥ETR

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets
Interest income
Provision for doubtful trade receivables
Write off of intangible assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant

and equipment
Share-based compensation expense
Currency translation adjustment

RETBHFE2HERE
B P15 %52 A1 1) B
AT EBEEHFE
ME - BERREBITE
B A E
S A
B 5 e WRIA R AR B
BV EEME
HEME BB R&HE
H) W 28
ARt B ETE B2

BB ERE

111,599

6,134
12,604
(12,165)
2,155

92

29,141
(3,375)

Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease)/Increase in deferred revenue

LEESEPRNZKLENH

B 5 N Bl & WK IR IR AN
B 5 Ko Ho Al A BRIRIE N
B A O 4), /18 hn

146,185
(412)
(69,997)

15,559
(8,669)

82,666
7,951
(5,375)

Cash generated from operations wEMEzRE

Interest received 2 W F &

Income tax paid B ATEH

Net cash from operating activities RETHMEB2EELFH

Cash flows from investing activities RETEMEz2EESRE

Increase in time deposits with original REEA BB =EA 2 E
maturities exceeding three months 15 5038 AN

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Addition in development costs through
internal development

Investments in associates

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Repayment/(Addition) in loans to shareholders

BEME  WELEH
EEWE  BEREH
BT 15 %A
BEEFEE

BB EBHE 2 KA
3% 0
REEE R RINRE
BAHLESHEE
EEAHEESHEE
FT 5 %A

BRI EFREZER

(351,636)
(8,222)

(4,158)

(12,777)
(6,682)
(40,435)

5,000
25,000

Net cash used in investing activities

REZHMAZREFE

(393,910)

“E2-MEFHR 67

RMB'000
ARETT

44,767

5318

9,505
(989)

(149)
490

58,942
(533)
(36,479)
3314
8,747

33,991
989
(4,596)

30,384

(7,405)

151
(15,618)

(12,383)

(7,000)

(25,000)

(67,255)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
BERERER @

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2014 2013
—E—F —F—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

3E=3 ARET T ARETT

Cash flows from financing activities RMETBHREZRERE
Dividends paid BT B (299,998) =
Proceeds from issuance of Series A BIARNBERTE

Preferred Shares A 23 300,000 —
Proceeds from issuance of new shares in AR A RRD ETHET

connection with the listing of the AR 2 1S 518

Company's shares 23 661,207 —
Payment for repurchase of shares 5 RE R 23 (1,916) —
Payment of share issuance expenses X mEITE R (41,998) —
Net cash from financing activities RETHMESZ2RLFHE 617,295 —
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and REeRBRLEEY

cash equivalents B Cr D) F4E 308,627 (36,871)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRERBESEEY

of year 58,716 95,587
Cash and cash equivalentsatendofyear FARRERRLZEY 367,343 58,716
Analysis of balances of cash and RERBESEEYHEHRD

cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash IRITAEER R 2 718,979 58,716
Less: time deposits with original maturities BRI BHBEBEB=FAZ

exceeding three months 7E Bl 7 3k (351,636) =

367,343 58,716

The notes on pages 69 to 168 form part of these financial statements. FOBEEFIBELMFALZEVBHRE 2 —

B



GRERERERAR —E-EHFFH 69

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & M ¥ 8 =

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

1. General Information, Reorganizationand 1. —&EH - EH R 27
Basis of Presentation H A

11 —fRETH

1.1 General information

Ourgame International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 December 2013 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Ugland House, P.O. Box 309, Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, South Church Street, Cayman Islands. The Company's shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 30 June 2014 (the “Listing").

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the development
and operation of online card and board games (the “Group’s Game
Business”) in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

At 31 December 2014, the directors consider the ultimate controlling
party of the Company to be Mr. Zhang Rongming, Mr. Liu Jiang, Mr.
Shen Dongri and Ms. Long Qi (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) through their respective wholly-owned companies,
namely Elite Vessels Limited, Sonic Force Limited, Blink Milestones
Limited (“Blink Milestones”), Prosper Macrocosm Limited and Golden
Liberator Limited (the “Shareholders’ Companies”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 were

approved for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R HRERME @

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

1. General Information, Reorganization and

Basis of Presentation (continued)

1.2 Reorganization and basis of presentation

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and completion of the
group reorganization (the “Reorganization”) on 28 January 2014 in
preparation for the Listing, the Group’s Game Business was carried out
by Beijing Lianzhong Co., Ltd. (“Lianzhong”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Lianzhong Group”) which were under the control of
the Controlling Shareholders. Pursuant to the Reorganization, both
the Lianzhong Group and the Group’s Game Business are put under
the effective control of Beijing Lianzhong Garden Network Technology
Co,, Ltd ("WFOE"), and ultimately the Company, through a series of
contractual agreements signed on 28 January 2014 (the “Contractual
Arrangements”). The details of the Reorganization and the Contractual
Arrangements are set out in the prospectus issued by the Company
dated 18 June 2014 (the “Prospectus”) and Note 2.2(a)(i) to the

financial statements.

The Company has not been involved in any other business prior to the
Reorganization and its operations do not meet the definition of a
business. The Reorganization is merely a reorganization of the Group's
Game Business and does not result in any changes in business
substance, nor in any management or Controlling Shareholders of the
Group's Game Business, before and after the Reorganization.
Accordingly, the financial statements of the companies now
comprising the Group is presented using the carrying values of the
Group’s Game Business for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2014.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains/losses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. EXEAIHEBE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

RRZEGEUMBREMEANEES
ABRERNTX KA BEAIN ZF
S BRRREEZINFEEMER -

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 IREEE

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets which are carried at fair
value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and the
comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
accounting policies of the Group. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and

AEBEGAMBRRDREBER
M mEER(TBRYBEREE
ADmE - REMBREDIREE
SERAEOERE - WBBEMR
AREIENAHOESREE
m{EHERT -

AU BEEREBHRNGES M
BRRR BB BC(RBPIE)(F
RE)WERRBERERE

REBERVBERELENRR Y
BHREAFBERAE THRSHMG
e BERENAERBAKRE S
KR BAE F 1E th # - 8 Rm E H
Bk EMENER  KERAMB

BERBRERNBRERRMAGHEHE
BEN T XHE3 -

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures Q1 B BERNEECEH
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (@) ANEEFEKZFER
S ETER
AEBEEHMME AR
—E—MOFE—-—A—HH
1R B9 B B A X 54 I BR AR
B FTET A - H AR
BRI RBE - HMZzE
4= BI| ¥ 7 HA ) 2k 3@ 1% 5P
M 2 & & B ik 5 BT
AN ERFNLES

=7
A&

estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3 below.

The Group has applied all the new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations, which are
mandatory for the financial year beginning 1 January
2014. The adoption had no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (b) AR ERA 2 # AT E A
Rz

ZIEFET E R - E A &
B ARFER=-Z—
mME—A—B2&AK
MEFESHB AR BX

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2014, and have not
been adopted early by the Group. None of these is
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated E BV AR AN ZE
financial statements of the Group, except the following Ao FEEAZ S A -
set out below: B kRETZHAE
1) 4R S T IS MR B K
BERAFE ETHER
4
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RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

()

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

[FRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities. The complete version of
IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces the guidance in
IAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the
mixed measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial assets:
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income and fair value through profit or loss. The basis of
classification depends on the entity's business model
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are
required to be measured at fair value through profit or
loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income not
recycling. There is now a new expected credit losses
model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model
used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities there were no
changes to classification and measurement except for
the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss. IFRS 9 relaxes the
requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the
bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an
economic relationship between the hedged item and
hedging instrument and for the “hedged ratio” to be the
same as the one management actually use for risk
management purposes. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of the impact of this new
standard on the financial statements of the Group in its
initial application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. EXEMBREBEw
Policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation 22 HFAEA
(@) Subsidiaries @ KMELF
Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) Mt B A 7l 5 AN &£ B i 4 /5
controlled by the Group. The Group controls the entity when it FFEBRB(REEXKENE
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement Bl - BEAEBEABRET
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns BHEEmMESIARERNSG
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully Hu&Spsfk BB HERE
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to REENE AT EZZSOHR
the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control B Bl AEBIEHIZER-
ceases. MEAR REmlEEEEAR

SHEZARKAFE  AH
AIEHI AR 2 B AR EAR

AN
= al =+ °

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and EBRRNARBRS - EHN&
losses on transactions between group companies are ABINBIRIEE - B A A
eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been EHBREAVERERES
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the DA R B 7N 58 B R 49 /9 K2R
policies adopted by the Group. —F o
(i) Subsidiaries arising from Reorganization () EHELEHHBELA]
The wholly-owned subsidiary, WFOE, has entered into 2EMBRA - B
Contractual Arrangements with Lianzhong and their ErERHEBIRENESR
respective equity holders, which enable WFOE and the BREZFEAAGMNAEH
Group to: 2B ZARNTHEL I
HEECERNE EEE
%)
exercise effective financial and operational control . HERITER X
over Lianzhong; BB 7% B
il
exercise equity holders’ voting rights of Lianzhong; . TERERE A

N AR

receive substantially all of the economic interest . U BR B AR K BB
returns generated by Lianzhong and its BRABEENR
subsidiaries in consideration for the business K 2010 48 8 F 22
support, technical and consulting services B & 1E & 5N 7 B
provided by WFOE, at WFOE's discretion; BEhERBERM

EBIZE Kl

5 B8 AR 7% 7Y

B



74 Ourgame International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
(i) Subsidiaries arising from Reorganization (Continued)

2. EXEHBFREBEw

22 FERAB @

obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to
purchase all or part of equity interest in and/or
assets of Lianzhong from the respective equity
holders at a minimum purchase price permitted
under the PRC laws and regulations. WFOE may
exercise such options at any time until it has
acquired all equity interests and/or all assets of
Lianzhong;

obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of
Lianzhong from their respective equity holders as
collateral security for all of Lianzhong's payments
due to WFOE and to secure performance of
Lianzhong's obligations under the Contractual
Arrangements.

The Group does not have any equity interest in
Lianzhong and its subsidiaries. However, as a result of
the Contractual Arrangements, the Group has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with Lianzhong
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over Lianzhong and is considered to control
Lianzhong and hence the Lianzhong Group.
Consequently, the Company regards the Lianzhong
Group as indirect subsidiaries under IFRSs. The Group has
consolidated the financial position and results of the
Lianzhong Group in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2014. Please refer to Note 1.2 for

@ MKB2QT @
() BHELGHE AR
(%)
. ESTEHHEHES

BRERN AR
hEDE & ROER
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details of the related presentation basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. EXEHBFREBEw

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued) 22 KA m

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(@ KMBQR @

(i) Subsidiaries arising from Reorganization (Continued) () EHELEHH B A A
(%)
Nevertheless, the Contractual Arrangements may not be A BRNETHERNBE
as effective as direct legal ownership in providing the BUEELEFNMABEZ
Group with direct control over the Lianzhong Group and WM AR A& B &
uncertainties presented by the PRC legal system could BREBMEEES
impede the Group's beneficiary rights of the results, BEFRFRZEERBENT
assets and liabilities of the Lianzhong Group. The M T REh e AN & B
directors of the Company, based on the advice of its REREENESE &
legal counsel, consider that the Contractual ENBENERERD -
Arrangements among WFOE, Lianzhong and their RARRESREBEELERE
respective equity holders are in compliance with relevant BERNERRE I
PRC laws and regulations and are legally enforceable. BECFEBEREES
BERERE AR LS
A B & HE P BEDE
BIE R B 0] 4% 58 Hll
1T °
(i) Subsidiaries other than from Reorganization (i)  FEEHHELRINE N F]
Except for the Reorganization of which the accounting REANSTEE RN
treatment is described in Note 2.2(a)(i) above, the Group (A £ XXM 5E2.26)0))

applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the

IV SR g 9
KRB A G AR - IR

acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets —HMBRAEEAN
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners BAEZELEENLAR
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the B W E R #ES
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair AEENBBERRNS

value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

BERTHEE - EEN
REBRIARRELH
EEMEREESKAE
R ARME XA G T
W B B 1] 38Rl B B
EHNREMKABETD
RWBEHNRABNE

5 -
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RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries other than from Reorganization (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured at either at fair value or the
present ownership interest's proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by IFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement are

recognised in profit or loss.

2. EXEHBFREBEw
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. EXEHBFREBEw

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

22 FERAB @
K= NGIRE )

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a)

(i)

Subsidiaries other than from Reorganization (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

(i) FEEHELLINE LA
(#&)
N5 G 88 SR A (R R 3K
ARERUBERRR
REHR - WRS— A
BESBBENIAKE
RRERERY Kk
AR B & T 2E A1 553957
HWRE RS BER
HitzmbmEs - o
BRESHNIARER
ABHTE MERE
ERiEE AR

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the EENEEZENERE
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the K U B |9 BT G5 BN F & EE
amount of non-controlling interest over the net B FE 2 IR 1 28 & 5 M
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this EradEzEmNEEY

consideration is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s non-

controlling interests mainly represent Suzhou Hongda Jiuding

Venture Investment Centre (LLP)'s (“Jiuding”) share of interest in

Lianzhong before the completion of the Reorganization (Note

23) . No summarised financial information about the Lianzhong

Group is presented as its inclusion, for the purpose of these

financial statements, is not considered meaningful due to

substantially all the Group's financial information are from the

Lianzhong Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & Z =

Z-NFE+-A=+—-HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounting for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group's investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Goodwiill is initially measured
as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount of non-controlling interest over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this
consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
associate acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.
The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the
investment.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive

income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & Z =

E-NFEF+-A=+—-HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of loss in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further loss, unless it is incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises as
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Diluted gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.

2. EXEHBFREBEw
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(©)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their
capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying values of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss. Cost is adjusted to
reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition
profits are recognised in the Company's profit or loss.

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
entities within the Group are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The functional currency of
the Company is United States dollars (“USD"). The Company’s
primary subsidiaries were incorporated in the PRC and these
subsidiaries considered RMB as their functional currency. As the
game development and operation of the Group during the
years are within the PRC, the Group determined to present the
consolidated financial statements in RMB, unless otherwise
stated.
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. EXEHBFREBEw

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

23 SR E @)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances b) RERZE&
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional INER SRR 5 S hE (W
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the HBETENE) BHANE
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign RpE ATHeEE g E
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of ZERSGELE N REINE T
such transactions and from the translation at year-end BENESEEEMABNER
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated EERHmEEENINERE K
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated BERESEZERZ R AR
statement of comprehensive income. Foreign exchange gains R-HIRGNIREEEME
and losses that relate to cash and cash equivalents are B HY 9N EE UL 2 K BT 1R Th Y 4R
presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive ErEUWHRAZS -
income.

() Group companies (0 HEEBEARAA

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the

dates of the transactions); and
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Cost includes
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the

asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, as

follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of remaining term of

the lease and the estimated

useful lives of the assets

Computer equipment 3-5 years

Furniture and 3-5 years
office equipment

Motor vehicle 5 years

The asset’s residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of

the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs, such as

repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.5 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(a)

Computer software

Acquired computer software are capitalised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over the shorter of their license
periods or estimated useful lives (ranged from 1 to 5 years), and
recorded as amortisation in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Game intellectual properties, trademark and
licenses

Game intellectual properties, trademark and licenses are initially
recorded at cost and include internally generated intangible
assets (i.e. capitalised development costs as detailed in Note 2.5(c)
below) that are available for use. These intangible assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their
license periods or estimate useful lives (ranged from 2 to 10
years).

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in profit
or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable to
development activities (relating to the design and testing of
new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets

provided they meet the following recognition requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sale;

(i) there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

(i) the Group's ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

(iv)  the intangible asset will generate probable economic

benefits through internal use or sale;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are

available for completion; and
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.5 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(c) Research and development costs (Continued)
(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities. The costs of development of internally generated
software, products or knowhow that meet the above
recognition criteria are recognised as intangible assets.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. Capitalised
development costs are recorded as intangible assets and
amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use on
a straight-line basis over its useful lives.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

2.6 Financial assets

The Group's accounting policies for financial assets other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates are set out below. Financial
assets of the Group are classified into loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases of financial assets are recognised on trade date
(the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset).
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.6 Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive

cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred and

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess whether

there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,

an impairment loss is determined and recognised based on the

classification of the financial asset.

(a)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date,
which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for inclusion
in any of the other categories of financial assets are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment matures or management
intends to dispose of it within 12 months after the reporting
date.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.6 Financial assets (continued)

(b)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

All financial assets within this category are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising from a change in the
fair value excluding any dividend and interest income is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the revaluation reserve in equity, except for
impairment losses (see the policy below) and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting date

subsequent to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair value through

profit or loss are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective

evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets

includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group

about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganization;

significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
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2. EXEHBFREBEw

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

26 £MEE @@
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A H 25 B B R 2 28 B % %ﬁ‘l
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2.6 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the payment
status of debtors in the Group and, national or local economic

conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the Group.

If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss is measured and
recognised as follows:

(@)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the impairment occurs.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.6 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or
loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial
asset has been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, an amount is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment loss. That amount
is measured as the difference between the asset's acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale and stated at fair value are not
recognised in the profit or loss. The subsequent increase in fair
value is recognised in other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses in respect of debt securities are reversed if
the subsequent increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversal of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. EXEMBREBEw
Policies (continued)

2.6 Financial assets (continued) 26 EHEE W@

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 2 il & R 18 ()

(¢)  Financial assets carried at cost © MUERANEZESHBHEE
The amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference HMEBENSERSMEE
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the EEEEGEgFRRE SR
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the ERRESREERITMS
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such B R EEBIRAIBE 2 ZF
impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods. E-AZSEREBEREES

A& EmE -

Impairment losses on financial assets other than trade and other & @b & E (0D B R 8E K AR P AR
receivables that are stated at amortised cost, are written off against ZEBESREMEWIZIE) ZREE
the corresponding assets directly. Where the recovery of trade and B EEEEREEME 585
other receivables is considered doubtful but not remote, the REHEMEWZRBEIRRSAE OB
impairment losses for doubtful receivables are recorded using an W IETREUR [B] - BI| BB FE U 7k T8 R BR
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade JHREBERTLARER - 5KEH
and other receivables is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable HEE S5 K HEMEWKRIEH A K
is written off against trade and other receivables directly and any B MHRE - BRI KRE NS
amounts held in the allowance account in respect of that receivable BOEEBEES K E M EWRIE
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to R dY WO Bt ER R IBE A
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. BIERANER &5 - LRiat ABE
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries M e EmNAEHZIE - BIHEE
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or BRED - BERMNEMmEH R HER
loss. WEIERIEMIERN SR HEERE
BRER -
2.7 Inventories 27 &8
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. FEUKABEE)SHE FEHMRE
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO") method. Net FRER R & B BR o B ANER AR 2 2
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of (THhELELDZEET - AIEEFE
business, less applicable variable selling expenses. AEFEEEBRETFNMGAEER
HRMAEHEEER -
2.8 Cash and cash equivalents 28 HeRAESFR/D
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand, demand BB EEBEMBERITER
deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with EFEBES ST 5HEFEEREE
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible BB A=EAAT  ATEER X
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant BAEBNBERSBEAEZEFSE

risk of changes in value. BERIOMEHSERBERE -
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities included trade and other payables.
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest related
charges are expensed when incurred. A financial liability is
derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as

non-current liabilities.

2.10 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is
or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the

legal form of a lease.

(@) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases.

(b) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
time pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
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2. EXEHBFREBEw

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.11 Share capital 211 IR &

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is determined
using the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Preferred shares are classified as equity if it is non-redeemable and any
dividends are discretionary. Dividends on preferred share capital
classified as equity are recognised as distributions within equity.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related income tax benefit)
to the extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the
equity transaction.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's
own equity instruments.

2.12 Revenue recognition

The Group is engaged in the development and operation of online
card and board games that consist of PC and mobile games. Our
games include self-developed games, licensed games and third-party

operated games.

The Group's revenue is principally derived from the sale of in-game
virtual goods. Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of related surcharges
and discounts. Substantially all of the Group’s games are free to play
and players can pay for virtual goods for better in-game experience.
Players purchase our universal virtual currency for PC games, Ourgame
Coin, or our virtual currency for mobile games (collectively, the “Virtual
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Currencies”), through third-party payment channels or the purchase of

pre-paid game cards. The Virtual Currencies can be used to exchange

for virtual goods such as personalised avatars and membership plans.

Paying players usually exchange their Virtual Currencies for the virtual

goods shortly after purchase. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

PC games

Self-developed games and licensed games

The Group has an integrated online game platform with
multiple distribution channels. The Group distributes locally
installed PC games and provides services through our
proprietary PC client portal, Ourgame Hall. The Group also
offers web games playable on web pages served by the Group
on ourgame.com and lianzhong.com and by third-party
distribution channels, which include websites and web-based
portals such as Baidu, Sina Weibo and Qihoo 360.

For self-developed games and licensed games, the Group is
responsible for hosting the games, providing on-going updates
of new contents, technical support for the operations of the
games, as well as preventing, detecting and resolving in-game
cheating and hacking activities. Third-party distribution and
payment channels are responsible for distribution, marketing,
platform maintenance, payer authentication and payment

collections related to the games.

Third-party distribution channels and payment channels collect
the payments from the paying players and remit the cash to
the Group, net of commission charges which are pre-
determined according to the relevant terms of the agreements
entered into between the Group and the third-party
distribution or payment channels.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

PC games (Continued)
Self-developed games and licensed games (Continued)

Upon the sales of Virtual Currencies, the Group typically has an
implied obligation to provide the services which enable the
virtual goods exchanged with the Virtual Currencies to be
displayed or used in the games. As a result, the proceeds
received from sales of Virtual Currencies are recorded as
deferred revenue. With the pre-paid game cards, paying players
can credit their user accounts with virtual currencies and
exchange for virtual goods in the same way. Proceeds received
from the sale of pre-paid game cards are recorded as deferred
revenue. The attributable portion of the deferred revenue
relating to values of the virtual goods consumed are
immediately or ratably recognised as revenue only when the
services are rendered to the respective paying players.

For the purposes of determining when services have been
provided to the respective paying players, the Group has
determined the following:

Consumable virtual goods represent items (i) that have a
predetermined service period; or (i) where no service is
rendered by the Group for the virtual goods immediately
after purchase by the paying players. Revenue is
recognised (as a release from deferred revenue) when
the goods are consumed and the related services are
rendered, or ratably over the predetermined service

period of the respective consumable virtual goods.

Durable virtual goods represent items that have no
predetermined service period and are accessible and
beneficial to paying players over an extended period of
time. Revenue is recognised ratably over the expected
life of the respective durable virtual goods (“Player
Relationship Period”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

PC games (Continued)
Self-developed games and licensed games (Continued)

For self-developed games and licensed games, the computer
system of the Group captures all player data, such as log-in
data, purchase and delivery records for the Virtual Currencies
sold and the virtual goods exchanged with the Virtual
Currencies. The Group estimates the Player Relationship Period
based on an overall game by game basis and platform by
platform basis and re-assesses such periods annually. If there
are insufficient data to determine the Player Relationship
Period, such as in the case of a newly launched game, the
Group estimates the Player Relationship Period based on other
similar types of games developed by the Group or by third-
party developers until the new game establishes its own
patterns and history. The Group mainly considers the paying
players' spending and consumption behaviour in estimating
the Player Relationship Period, which typically represents the
time interval between paying players' consecutive recharges of
their user accounts with additional Virtual Currencies and
represents a reasonable estimate of the average expected life
of the durable virtual items for the applicable game.

If the Group does not have the ability to differentiate revenue
attributable to durable virtual goods from consumable virtual
goods for a specific product, item or game, the Group
recognises revenue from both durable and consumable virtual
goods ratably over the average life of the durable virtual
products or goods, or over the Player Relationship Period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

PC games (Continued)
Self-developed games and licensed games (Continued)

For revenues relating to self-developed games and licensed
games, the Group has evaluated the roles and responsibilities
of the Group, the game license holders and the third-party
distribution and payment channels in the delivery of game
experience to the paying players and concluded the Group
takes the primary responsibilities in rendering services. The
Group is determined to be the primary obligor and, accordingly,
the Group records revenue on a gross basis, and commission
charges by game license holders and third-party distribution

and payment channels are recorded as cost of revenue.

Third-party operated games

The Group also distributes games developed and operated by
third-party developers on the Group’s own web proprietary
platform including the Group's client portal and websites. The
Group's revenue mainly consists of pre-determined portions of
total player payments according to the relevant terms of the
agreements entered into between the Group and the game

developers.

The games distributed on the Group's platform are hosted,
maintained, operated and updated independently by the game
developers, and the Group mainly provide players with access
to the Group's platform to download the third-party developers’
games and limited after-sale basic technical support to the
paying players. The Group has evaluated and determined it is
not the primary obligor in the services rendered to the paying
players as a platform. Accordingly, the Group records its
revenue net of the portion of sharing of revenues with the
game developers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

PC games (Continued)

Third-party operated games (Continued)

As the Group provides merely the first contact point by the
players to gain access to download the third-party developers’
games, the Group believes that its implied obligation to the
game developers do not correspond to the game developers’
implied obligation to provide the service which enables the
virtual goods to be displayed and used in the games. Given that
games are hosted, managed, administered and operated by the
game developers, the Group does not have access to the data
on the consumption details and the types of virtual goods
purchased by the paying players. The Group only maintains
individual paying player's purchase history of the Virtual
Currencies which are used to exchange for virtual goods in the
third-party operated games. As such, the Group has adopted a
policy to recognise revenue when the paying players exchange
the Virtual Currencies for consumable or durable virtual goods
for the relevant games.

Mobile games

The Group distributes mobile games and provides services
mainly for Android and iOS operating systems through third-
party distribution and payment channels, including mobile
operators in the PRC (“Mobile Operators”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

Mobile games (Continued)

Self-developed games — Single player games

During the year, substantially all of the Group’s mobile games
are single player games or have single player modes (“Single
Player Games”). Virtual goods of the Single Player Games are
purchased when the players are online and can be consumed
irespective of whether or not they are connected to the
internet. Only the purchase of such virtual goods requires
connection to the internet. Once the players confirm their
purchase requests via Mobile Operators’ payment channels, the
purchased virtual goods are automatically available in the
downloaded game. Future play and use of the purchased
virtual goods do not require internet connectivity or any
involvement from the Group. Players do not need to connect
to online servers to play the game or utilize the purchased
virtual goods on their mobile devices and hence the Group has
no obligation to deliver any further services to the paying
players. As a result, all services are rendered immediately upon
the sale and delivery of the virtual goods.

2. EXEHBFREBEw

2.12 Y¢ A T B2 ()

(b)

% By B ()

B HEA LR — EREE
RAFE  AEBBAHLN
W1 B BT R B
K ABERBA(ER I
BLl) - BB E B Y
HIRA LEEEE B TR
HREBBEXREHERIGA®
B-REBEAHWERY S
7 RBEEI A TR
—BEBBHELHMNNTR
REBREBERNR B
ENEHRYREBHNE T
HOEBTHR - AEEN
R MmN B RED & E A
B AHERERDERABR
AEEMNEMSHE- ITRE
AEERRLERBB[IAARE
BERHEL2EZERKE
RABENERY® B
AEBEYEEERNETR
RHUEMES RS - Bk
FERBHNEERRINE
B & S B4R o

“B2-MEFH 97



98 Ourgame International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & Z =
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

Mobile games (Continued)
Self-developed games — Single player games (Continued)

The gross revenue from mobile games includes provision for
doubtful debts or bad debts as assessed by the Mobile
Operators. For mobile games, the computer system of the
Group captures limited data such as certain purchase and
delivery records of the virtual goods. The Group contracts with
the Mobile Operators which include billing and collection
services. The Mobile Operators provide the Group with monthly
statements that represent the principal evidence that virtual
goods has been sold and delivered. The Mobile Operators remit
to the Group only amounts net of channel commission charges
and an allowance that Mobile Operators have made for the
doubtful debts in respect of the amounts due to the Group
from the paying players. The Mobile Operators do not provide
an itemised analysis of their remittances and the usage of the
virtual goods and the Group is therefore unable to determine
what allowance, if any, for doubtful or bad debts should be
recorded with respect to services delivered through them. As a
result, based on the amounts reported on the Mobile Operator’s
monthly statements, which are net of doubtful debts and
represent the amounts the Group reasonably believes will be
collected, the Group records the gross proceeds (net of
provision for doubtful debts) as revenue and the channel

commission charges are recorded as cost of revenue.

Self-developed games with connected internet game play

For revenue derived from self-developed mobile games with
connected internet game play, the Group follows the policies
of PC games — “Self-developed games and licensed games” as
the operations of the two types of games are similar. The Virtual
Currencies can be used to exchange for virtual goods such as
symbol and membership plans. Paying players usually
exchange their Virtual Currencies for the virtual goods shortly

after purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

Mobile games (Continued)

Self-developed games with connected internet game play
(Continued)

Third-party distribution channels and payment channels collect
the payments from the paying players and remit the cash to
the Group, net of commission charges which are pre-
determined according to the relevant terms of the agreements
entered into between the Group and the third-party
distribution or payment channels. For paying players who use
payment channels of the Mobile Operators, cash remitted to
the Group are also net of provision for doubtful debts or bad
debts as assessed by the Mobile Operators as detailed in single

player mobile games above.

Upon the sales of Virtual Currencies, the Group typically has an
implied obligation to provide the services which enable the
virtual goods exchanged with the Virtual Currencies to be
displayed or used in the games. As a result, the proceeds (net of
provision for doubtful debts assessed by Mobile Operators, if
applicable) received from sales of Virtual Currencies are
recorded as deferred revenue. The attributable portion of the
deferred revenue relating to values of the virtual goods are
recognised as revenue (as a release from deferred revenue)
when the goods are consumed and the related services are
rendered, i.e. ratably over the predetermined service period of
the respective virtual goods.

For revenues relating to self-developed mobile games, the
Group has evaluated the roles and responsibilities of the Group,
and the third-party distribution and payment channels in the
delivery of game experience to the paying players and
concluded the Group takes the primary responsibilities in
rendering services. The Group is determined to be the primary
obligor and, accordingly, the Group records revenue on a gross
basis, and commission charges by third-party distribution and
payment channels are recorded as cost of revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FRE M BEHRERNE @

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Mobile games (Continued)

Third-party operated games

For revenue derived from third-party operated mobile games,
the Group follows the policies of PC games — “Third-party
operated games” as the operations of the two types of games
are similar. The games distributed on the Group’s and third-
party distributors’ platform are hosted, maintained, operated
and updated independently by the game developers, and the
Group mainly provide players with access to the Group's
platform to download the third-party developers’ games and
limited after-sale basic technical support to the paying players.
The Group has evaluated and determined it is not the primary
obligor in the services rendered to the paying players as a
platform. Accordingly, the Group has adopted a policy to
recognise revenue when the paying players purchase the
virtual currencies for consumable or durable virtual goods for
the relevant games and records its revenue net of the portion
of sharing of revenues with the game developers.

2.13 Interest income

Interest income mainly represents interest income from bank deposits
and is recognised using effective interest method.

2.14 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that the grants are intended to

compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B IR R MR @)

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. EXEHBFREBEw

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.14 T ¥ # Bh ()

2.14 Government grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are included in
liabilities as deferred government grants in the statement of financial
position and are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under

"Other income” in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and the Company’s
interests in subsidiaries and associates are subject to impairment
testing. Intangible assets with indefinite useful life or those not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they are impaired.
All other assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

assessment of time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent from those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generate cash inflows independently (ie. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses recognised is charged pro rata to the assets in the

cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will

not be reduced below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value

in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change

in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount

and only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not

exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of

depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.

2.16 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group has various defined contribution plans in accordance
with the local conditions and practices in the municipalities and
provinces in which they operate. Defined contribution plans are
pension and/or other social benefit plans under which the
Group pay fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund)
and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. The contributions are recognised as
labour costs when they are due.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present contractual or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for
bonus are expected to be settled within twelve months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are
settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(9

Equity-settled share-based compensation
transactions

In 2012, Mr. Zhang Rongming and Mr. Li Jianhua, transferred
part of their interests in the Group’s Business indirectly to
certain employees of Lianzhong in return for their continuous
services to the Group (Note 25). The Group also operates
equity-settled share-based compensation plans, the
Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the 2014 Share
Option Scheme, under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the services received in exchange
for the grant of the equity instruments is recognised as

expense.

In terms of share options and shares awarded to employees,
the total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments granted including any
market performance conditions; excluding the impact of any
service and non-market performance vesting conditions; and
including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options and shares that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options and shares that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. The Group recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(©)

Equity-settled share-based compensation
transactions (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the
Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of
employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity (share option reserve) in the
separate financial statements of the Company.

2. EXEHBFREBEw
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. EXEFBFHEE @
Policies (Continued)

2.17 Accounting for income taxes 217 iR REdER
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Fr 5% 8 45 BN HA ¢ 78 MR JE A 78 o
Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations BB HEER KA BRIER
to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior Mgy A AREAB(ERSREEH
reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They are HMASXM) AP eE RGNS
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the HWEF skBEfFHESHERN - 5
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the RO FERNERBAE A @H
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a R BA R 3 A B R R FOE AT E - BN AR
component of tax expense in profit or loss. HREEEXABENMEEZHHE
ARERY —E3fH - RiEmETE
R e
Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary RLEHEDNERBREEHEERA
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts of EEVERROEEAEEE RSB
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their respective tax FREAZENEEE=Z3AE G4
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable FTE—REBEAT TEERTE
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all HREEZEHEEENEEREARY
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be carried TRER - T A AT B & I 1 = %8 -
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is Al A E R B K E fth ok A AN IE K
probable that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary RELAZELERBEEE RegR
differences, will be available against which the deductible temporary Al RE A AR B A E (B IER A EF
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. MEREESE) BIEEEZEH

MR EZRR  RAARENMRAD
BERBZIERT » 4 TARER

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary EFRHEIRN SRR SF5PENRER
difference arises from goodwill or from initial recognition (other than (XBEHBRINNEERBBEELE
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that MEREEET I ERERMT
affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss. g st A E s EE - Bl e Rt

BRELHAEERAE-

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences REWB AR REEE QRFTES
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where MEGSHE R T =8 EARRBEL
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary differences BB ARG S 2NE B Al LA 5|8
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the EEREMHMEZENRERELERETEE
foreseeable future. Al PR R g REEE R
BRoh e
Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are BRERIB(HMEFTR)EZRAEEE
expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset EBREEFREEmEHERKRX
realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the AECMEBREEANRHRSES BHEEM

reporting date. HEELEDHIE -
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. EXEMBREBEmw
Policies (continued)

2.17 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 217 REFEE @)
Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in profit or ELEHEAEXNEBEEZSEER
loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in equity if they AFER  siA B BN HE {2 WU
relate to items that are charged or credited to other comprehensive Aek BEEREZRT GG AR
income or directly in equity. JHE AR - A7 H b 2 WS oo
= EP E‘E s ©
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if, and EHEEZHIBETIIERE  BNEAF
only if, BEEERNBHEBEAGRFIES
3l -
(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the @ AEEHEAIEED EE R =
recognised amounts; and VESEITERER
(b)  intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and b WMRFBEELE KFHEF
settle the liability simultaneously. BHEERSERE-
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in AEBRBEERNATERAFRE
net if, and only if, 2IELERBEEERELERIB A
&
(@)  the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax @ TBERBAEEEETEHE#ENBE
assets against current tax liabilities; and BB EESEBAEEAEE
(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to b)) EBELERMEEEHRETCHRIES
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either: BHE— RS EEE A TE

fa] — I8 P M O P 1S A AR R

() the same taxable entity; or i)y FR—ERHEE: X

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to settle iy FrEIATEHEE Sk Uk
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to RERELEFHIBEEERE
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, EZARAKRHEBAEEE
in each future period in which significant amounts of EFERNETIE A EH
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled BENRBEHEEER
or recovered. BEBENTEERM

o

?E‘RE

=
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2. EXEHBFREBEw

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

218EHEMT R

2.18 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.19 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's ordinary and preferred
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company's financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the company’s shareholders or board of directors,
where appropriate.

2.20 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-makers,
who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that make strategic decisions.

2.21 Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

2.19

BB A TE AJ ORI 1T HE A T K 88
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B B 5 ik
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2.21
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.21 Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third-party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.

2. EXEHBFREBEw
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3. Ciritical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on

historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

3.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes accounting estimates and assumptions concerning

the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal to the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

Estimates of Player Relationship Period for revenue
recognition

As described in Note 2.12(a), the Group recognises revenue
from certain durable virtual goods derived from its self-
developed and licensed PC games over the Player Relationship
Period. The determination of Player Relationship Period in each
type of virtual goods is based on the Group's best estimate that
takes into account all known and relevant information at the
time of assessment. Such estimates are subject to re-evaluation
on an annual basis. Any adjustments arising from changes in
the Player Relationship Period as a result of new information
will be accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting
estimate.

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment of trade
receivables (Note 16). This estimate is based on the credit
history of the customers and the current market condition.
Management reassesses the adequacy of provision on a regular
basis by reviewing the individual account based on past credit
history and any prior knowledge of debtor insolvency or other
credit risk which might not be easily accessible public
information and market volatility might bear a significant

impact which might not be easily ascertained.
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3. Ciritical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

3.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(@]

Recognition of share-based compensation expenses

As detailed in Note 25, the Company and certain controlling
shareholder have granted share options to the Group's
management and employees in February 2014. The directors,
with the assistance of an independent professional valuer, have
used the discounted cash flow method and market approach
to determine the underlying share value of the Company and
have used the Binomial option-pricing model to determine the
total fair value of the options granted, which is to be expensed
over the vesting period as appropriate. Significant estimate on
assumptions, such as underlying equity value, risk-free interest
rate, expected volatility and dividend vyield, is required to be
made by the directors in applying the Binomial option-pricing
model.

Current and deferred income taxes

As detailed in Note 7, the Group is subject to income taxes in
several jurisdictions. There are many transactions and events for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Significant judgment is required
from the Group in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Significant influence over Beijing Linghegu Online
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Linghegu”), Tianjin
Huandu Network Technology Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin
Huandu”) and Beijing Wei'a Times Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing Wei'a")

The investments in Beijing Linghegu, Tianjin Huandu and
Beijing Wei'a are classified as interests in associates although
the Group owns less than 20% ownership interest in these
companies. The Group has significant influence over Beijing
Linghegu, Tianjin Huandu and Beijing Wei'a by virtue of its
contractual right to appoint director(s) on their respective
boards.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

3.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(f)  Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite
useful lives are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account the estimated residual value, if any. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group's historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation and amortisation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from

previous estimates.

Revenue and Segment Information

The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single reportable and
operating segment focusing primarily on the development and operation of
online card and board games in the PRC. This operating segment has been
identified on the basis of internal management reports reviewed by the chief
operating decision-makers (the “CODM"), being the executive directors of
the Group. The CODM mainly reviews revenue derived from PC games and
mobile games, which are measured in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies. However, other than revenue information, no operating
results and other discrete financial information is available for the assessment
of performance of the respective type of revenue. The CODM reviews the
overall results of the Group as a whole to make decisions about resources
allocation. Accordingly, no segment information is presented. An analysis of
the Group's revenue is as follows:
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4. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 4.

KA B9 EEEw

2014 2013
=k —T=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARBTTT

PC games PC % B
Mobile games % B i B
Others (note) oA (Bt 5E)

305,760 210,669

153,393 15,628

16,616 10,003

475,769 236,300

Note: Others mainly represent miscellaneous revenue derived from game
tournaments organised by the Group, which includes sponsorship income
received.

The Group has a large number of game players, no revenue from any
individual game player exceeded 10% or more of the Group's revenue during
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

As of 31 December 2014 and 2013, majority of the non-current assets (other
than financial instruments and deferred tax assets) of the Group were located
in the PRC.

B AE : Hofth 3 B 18 2R B R A 5% B 58 O O R B
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5.

BRERZERERAA

—E2-mEFE 113

RMB'000
ARBTT

989

3,172

488

3,660

4,649

EB RS R HRRE SRR

2013
—ET—=F

RMB'000
ARBET T

54,454
15,688
2,350
490

72,982
342
1,783
5318

9,505

(149)

Other Income 5. it A
2014
—E-mF
RMB’000
ARET T
Other revenue Hebg A
Interest income B A 12,165
Other netincome Hib g A F 5
Subsidy income from government (note) R 7S 7 B e A (Bf 3%)
Net foreign exchange gain HNEE W a0 R
Sundry income A
11,233
23,398
Note: Subsidy income mainly relates to cash subsidies in respect of operating and Mok : MBI AEE KR E BT A& LR %
development activities from governments which are either unconditional
grants or grants with conditions having been satisfied. Bhsk B ER A BRI 2 fRh -
Profit for the Year 6. FEFH
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): FEERE & GEA) AT &IE :
2014
—E-F
RMB’000
AR®T T
Employee benefit expenses BEIEFMEX
Salaries, bonus and allowances e JEAL K ERL
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRRR A ET & LR
Severance payments BB
Share-based compensation expense VAR 1 7 B 5 60 B 2
111,812
Other items HitiE B
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 2R B 1,443
Listing-related expenses AR 17,697
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « = KR BT E 6,134
Amortisation of intangible assets A B B 12,604
Provision for doubtful trade receivables B 5 W GRIB R R H 2,155
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment & ¥ % - & B & &R & W =5 —
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss SNEE (W 28), 518 F 58 (7,301)

Operating lease charges on office premises

MAMELLHEE N

11,057

177
6,404
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7. Income Tax Expense 7. RS MAX
2014 2013
=k —T=%F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

o 5k AR T ARBTTT

Current tax — PRC enterprise income BEBE— R
tax iEEE
Current year RE 3,706
Under-provision in respect of prior year BEFERETR —
13,902 3,706
Deferred tax BB IR
Origination and reversal of temporary TRMEENESERED
differences 347
Effect on deferred tax balances at R-_ZE—=F—HF—H
1 January 2013 resulting from a change A it =R & B) BB Y
in tax rate BEFRIBEHRNTE 253
22 600
Income tax expense S BB % 4,306
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7. Income Tax Expense (continued) 7. FR™RBEAZ W
The difference between the actual income tax charge in the consolidated CEAELHKWRERNERRESHE R &K
statement of comprehensive income and the amounts which would result F @ A R B P15 4 B A1 B A9 R B A R 5
from applying the enacted tax rate to profit before income tax can be BEELMMBEROEBEEREDOT

reconciled as follows:

2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETT

Profit before income tax B P 18 %% A0 7 8 111,599 44,767

Tax on profit before income tax, calculated B BT 15 B4 AT R E B 18 (1248 4

at the statutory rates applicable to profits TS Bl A RE R @ R A &) B

in the tax jurisdiction concerned EEMEFE 11,836
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses TAIHNBRHATAREEE 150
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences AR ZANBERE=Z2H

not recognised M & 54 —
Tax effect on preferential income tax rates HRRBARIMNERMEH

applicable to a subsidiary BENTIEE (20,979) (7127)
Tax effect on super deduction in research and HE T IR HE S 2

development activities (1,600) (806)
Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 January 2013 R -_Z—=F—F —HRAM X

resulting from a change in tax rate SEEYHREHIEARNTE 253
Under-provision in respect of prior year BEFERETR —
Income tax expense FRiS BB X 4,306
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e

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & Z =

7.

Z-NFE+-A=+—-HLFE

Income Tax Expense (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Cayman Islands income tax

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
accordingly, is exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013. Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group had no
estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013

PRC enterprise income tax

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of its operations in the PRC
has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable
profits for the year based on the existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof. The applicable income tax rate is 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Lianzhong was
accredited as a “Key Software Enterprise within National Planning Layout” (BZ%
HEGRANEBEF D) in December 2013. Pursuant to the above
entitlement, Lianzhong enjoys a preferential income tax rate of 10% for the
years 2013 and 2014.

According to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, enterprises engaging in
research and development activities are entitled to claim 150% of the research
and development expenses so incurred as tax deductible expenses when
determining their assessable profits for that year (“Super Deduction”). Lianzhong
has made its best estimate for the Super Deduction to be claimed in
ascertaining their assessable profits for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

PRC withholding tax

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group is also
liable to a 10% withholding tax on dividends to be distributed from the Group's
foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC in respect of its profits generated from 1
January 2008. If a foreign investor incorporated in Hong Kong meets the
conditions and requirements under the double taxation treaty arrangement
entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant withholding tax
rate will be reduced from 10% to 5%.

7. Fi™ R

F

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

B

HEHRSMER

AARRBERESHERRERHS &
SEMRLAREERAR  Eit#He
BAREREREH -

ERREH

HE-_ZT-—NWNER-_T—=F+=A8
=+ BLEEE EAFNGSHMERA
165%° AR AEERBE_T—NF
F=—ZT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

FEREILE M ERTAE - Hib W&
BEFBMNEH -
MBI ETEB

AEBBREAEPEOERFTIEL SR
BHBEEDRBERITHBER RER
B OB AN F T ERB R EiEE
A ETE - EAMNATEHRE B25% -

RIEPEBRERER BIRR_F—
=FE T ARFIRIBERREAMBEAE
B EE|REBEAEER BIRR

TR CFRTMFEEEZZI10%H
BEMEHBE-

RIE R B ARER  REHEES
M ERE T X F SRR EE
BB ESRHE BB &150%7E 7]
MBAZBRME MR - HE=ZT
*@i&*-*?¢+*ﬂz+*a
IEFE BRERETEBRBFEH
1 F 1 &0 AN ETF0BR BR SR 1E H S E
AT e

REENH

BEPBREBBAEEER  AEBEARR
FRENEEECEEBR =TT NG
—A—HBHREEANFHESETSIKRK
BB 1008) TENEL o fini 1 B B sE K
VUK EEREEFTERBEEABF BT L
MNEEBH RO ENIGERETE B
78 TE 1 8 B K A A 109% & = 5% ©
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2014 2013
= .k —T=%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR®BT T ARETT
Dividend declared by the Company KA EEIRAI R E a) 296,498 —
Dividend declared by Lianzhong B RS R AR B b) 3,500 —
299,998 =
Notes: Mt s :

(@) A special dividend amounting to RMB296,498,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$48,566,000) has been proposed, approved and paid to the ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2014. The
preferred shareholders of the Company and Blink Milestones have waived their
entitlement to the special dividend. Blink Milestones is a company wholly
owned and controlled by Mr. Liu Jiang, a controlling shareholder of the
Company.

(b) Dividends disclosed during the year ended 31 December 2014 represented
dividends declared before the Contractual Arrangements (as defined in the
Prospectus) were entered and paid by Lianzhong to its then shareholders.

The rates for dividend and the number of shares ranking for dividends are
not presented as such information is not considered meaningful for the
purpose of these financial statements.

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of RMB0.064 per share
amounting to approximately RMB50,118,000 has been proposed by the
Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) after the reporting date. The
proposed dividend will be accounted for as an appropriation of accumulated
profits in the year ending 31 December 2015 if it is approved by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

@ RBEz-FT-mME+-_A=+—A1
FE - —HLEAR A RM2964980007T
(%9 18 & 1 48,566,0003% 7T ) M) 45 BIl % &
DEEZ BHELTIHFARAANE
B R o AR A)E S B RR B K Blink
Milestones B 1 & % Jk 5%z & #F 5l i B /Y
# FI| © Blink Milestones /& B 2N 22 &) H) 22 A%
BREZTEE2EHB RIEFHZ QA -

b BE_ZT-OF+_A=+—HLF
JZ P B2 BR O BRRT Bk R B EE B AR
RAENRHF(EERBRER) FFT A
BRI X ERRR ©

BREEMERRENRNBELRZ
) ARLFEMUAMBHERERMS R
BEE-

AAREFE(EF)ERREBRH
BEBRERREEE—_T-—NE+-_A=1+
—HBLEFESBRBHB ARG A
H4 AR ¥50,1180007T 2 K HR% B o 1
EEREERRENARQ A EREKREBRF
AeE EBtERBE-_T—AF+
ZA=+—HLFEEZZ:FFBEDE
E-Ec
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9. BRAETF

9. Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity AT ERESSBARE
holders of the Company EEREF

For the purpose of computing basic and diluted earnings per share, ordinary ,?f STEEREAREERMNNS BRXR
shares were assumed to have issued and allotted on 1 January 2013 as if the EERER-_ZE—=F—H —B%17T

Company has been established by then. In addition, the number of ordinary

shares during the respective year have also been adjusted retrospectively for

the proportional change in the number of shares outstanding as a result of

the share sub-division and the capitalisation issue as detailed in Note 23, in

the computation of both basic and diluted eamings per share for the years

RELE - MWARRRNEREKIL - It
S R EBE T =Kk _ZF—@
FT+_A=t"RLFEZEBRELR
BERBAE REAFENEBERDH
A EBMA BB DK EEA LS E

ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 1T H B 10 BR B 3% b B 2 4L 1 B
#® o

(@) Basic earnings per share (@) EREXZR
Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated by dividing the profit ERNGRERERN T EKNAND G #
attributable to equity holders of the Company of RMB97,641,000 (2013: =EA AEMATE AR 97,641,000
RMB35,052,000) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares T(ZZ—=%: A K #¥35052,000
of 600,346,342 shares (2013: 411,600,000 shares) in issue during the JC) B A A B 31T B 48 A% N A
year, excluding the ordinary shares purchased by the Company and F 9 A% 86003463402/ ( = F — =
held as treasury shares (Note 23(viii)). F 1 4116000000% ) 5 H T B &
$"ﬂ BB R EEFRMD (KT

3(vii)) Z E AR o

(b) Diluted earnings per share b) BREBERF

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. There were no dilutive
potential ordinary shares for the year ended 31 December 2013. For
the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has two categories
of dilutive ordinary shares, the Series A Preferred Shares and the
Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

ERESBANDRBREREMEEA
BEHEISYE2NEAREEER
MARBRBEZTEBRINEFHK
BB -BHEz_T—=F+_-_A=
+—E|¢$f¢ﬂ%?ﬂi#£&ﬁ&;§%i“
WEBR - HE_T—WF+=A
z+—a¢¢r'm A A M
BEEBETBEYENEER BIAR
NELERKREEEEAARES
AR A pE ST &l o
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SREMNm

9. Earnings Per Share (continued) 9.

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued)
Diluted earnings per share for the year is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of RMB97,641,000
(2013: RMB35,052,000) by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 688,673,471 shares (2013: 411,600,000 shares) in issue during
the year, calculated as follows:

EANFIBEERESRBAR

SRR

by ER#BHERF @
FRN - BREERF THIEAR R R HE
w= A AR FE A R 97,641,000
T(ZZE— =% A K %35052000
J0) B DA (B B 1T 9 3 AR hn 4
T ¥ g E688673471 K ( = & — =
4 411,600,0000%) st E 0T ¢

Weighted average number of ordinary shares gt & G IR E A & F 2 T8 MK

for the purpose of basic earnings per share N HE I 25 B 2
Adjustment for Series A Preferred Shares
Adjustment for Management Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme

FRAZR DB R AE L AR
REREEERAFMESH
BRESFL AR

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

AN 15 B B

for the purpose of diluted earnings per share

A ESREERRN 2 BAR

Earnings per share attributable to Series A
Preferred Shares holders of the Company

As detailed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company
has completed the issue of 85,714,284 Series A Preferred Shares to the
investors on 10 February 2014. On 30 June 2014, upon the Listing of the
Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”), all the Series A Preferred Shares were automatically
converted into ordinary shares, on a one-for-one basis. As the Series A
Preferred Shares were issued and fully converted into ordinary shares during
the year ended 31 December 2014, earnings per share (basic and diluted)
attributable to Series A Preferred Shares holders of the Company are not
presented as such information is not considered meaningful for the purpose
of these financial statements.

2014 2013
—g-mE  —F-=
600,346,342 411,600,000
67,660,274 =
20,666,855 =
688,673,471 411,600,000
FLFARIBERISE AR

EEEREA

B E M BREMF2BMERE AAQ
FAER-ZE—NE_A+BZKARE
B EEIT85,714284 AR T B R B - N =
T—MEXNAZTH  ARQaARE B
AERGMBRAR([BRAT]) R E™M
% FTEARFIEBERE KB —KE
EpHEmLsLTAEAR REEZE-Z
F+_A=+—HLFE ARIEL
BEFUBITEERERALT AR &~
RAIARGIBEREE ARG ETRAF
(EAR#EB) T A2 BALEER
HZEUBHRERMELELERE -
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10. Directors’ Remuneration and Employees’

Emoluments

(a) Directors’ remuneration

(a) EEMS
BE-F MER-F-=F+

The remuneration of each director for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013 are set out below:

Name of director

BEEns

Basic
salaries and
Fees allowances

EXFeE
ik R
Notes ~ RMB00O RMB'000

faE ARBTT ARETR

10.EFMe R ER FHM

TAZST - HLEEEZRESEM

LW

Retirement
benefit

contribution

BAKEF
e
RMB'000

ARETL

Share-based
compensation
BB GA&
HERWMe
RMB'000

Total

L
RMB'000

ARETTT ARETT

Year ended 31 December BE-ZE-0OF
2014 +t=A=+—-H
LEE
Executive directors: HITEE :
Mr. Zhang Rongming REAELE — -
Mr. Liu Jiang BTk — -
Mr. Yang Fric Qing BELE 10,512 11,264
Mr. Ng Kwok Leung Frank hEREE 10,512 11,174
Non-executive directors: HEHITEE -
Mr. Fan Tai BREE
Mr. Chen Xian PR 5% % &
Independent non-executive BUHNTEE -
directors:
Mr. Ge Xuan BlELE
Mr. Lu Zhong BREE
Mr.Cheung Chung Yan David ~ 3RAB{= %4
21,024 22,663
Year ended 31 December BE-E—-=%
2013 +t=HA=+—-H
LLFE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Zhang Rongming SRR E 0] — — — - -
Mr. Liu Jiang 2Tk AE (i) — — — - -
Mr. Yang Eric Qing )b (i) — 670 57 - 727
Mr. Ng Kwok Leung Frank HBIREE (i) — 604 — - 604
— 1,274 57 — 1,331
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10. Directors’ Remuneration and Employees’ 10.EEME&REEF M
Emoluments (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a) EFEME W

Notes: B2

(i) Appointed on 4 December 2013. The remuneration shown above (i) N—_E—="F+-_ANBEZ
represents remuneration received from the Group by these directors in F-WERMTRNTEMIEZSES
their capacity as employees or directors of the group companies during REBEE-_Z-—NFER-_ZE—=F
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. Mr. Yang Eric Qing and T A=t+—HIEFEETEE
Mr. Ng Kwok Leung Frank are also the co-chief executive officer of the ANAlEERESFHBULARNER Y
Group. A - BELERBRARE

ENMBRE BB EITRAR -
(i)  Appointed on 7 March 2014. (i) RKRZE-—HF=AtAEZL{E-
(i) Appointed on 7 March 2014 with effect upon the Listing. iy M-_ZE—NEFE=ZALtBEZT-
B Em&ER-

There were no arrangements under which a director of the Company HEr—T-—mMER T —=F+

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended —B=+—BItEE  WEIIVE

31 December 2014 and 2013. ML BHEENERRSHE

R E -
(b) Five highest paid individuals b) ARESHFHMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group ERAREBRELZESFMA TS

for the year include two (2013: two) directors whose emoluments are FBEREG(—CE—=F ML) E

reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid/ = OHMADRMR X oL o

payable to the remaining three (2013: three) individuals during the ERNEN/ BB T=Z4(=Z—

year are as follows: =E =) ATHMEeHT DT :

2014 2013
—E-lmEF —ZE—-=
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETT

Basic salaries and allowances HEAXRF & KERM 1,288
Discretionary bonus )15 AT 45
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R RAE A ET & 5k 235
Share-based compensation expense LARR 12 7= B ) B & 116

1,684




122 Ourgame International Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A SRR M @

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

10. Directors’ Remuneration and Employees’ 10.EEME&REEF M
Emoluments (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) ABEEEHFMA L@
The emoluments fell within the following bands: [ Rl e o N = 1
2014 2013
= .k =F—=

Emolument bands B < 48 7

Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 7T 3
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 78 7T 2 1,500,000 7% 7T —
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T Z 2,500,000 7T —
HK$6,000,001-HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7 JT & 6,500,000 % 7T —
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the FAREERERETRNESS A
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining H = B A = 2 R A B A
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the year (2013: EREMAREEIMARSE
nil). EHREBSIEAMBNHECCZE

—=F 8-
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11. Property, Plant and Equipment MN.YE BERKE

Furniture
Leasehold = Computer  and office Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicle Total
BRIMR
HEMELE SBEIZE BLZERE "E M
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
At 1January 2013 HN-—ZE—=%—H—H
Cost B 7R 3,690 36,366 1433 191 41,680
Accumulated depreciation and 2EMERRBERE
impairment losses (2,522) (30,637) (1,263) (175) (34,597)
Net book amount REEE 1,168 5729 170 16 7,083
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-ZE—-=5+=8
=Et+t—HLEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 1,168 5,729 170 16 7,083
Additions NE — 6,089 716 600 7,405
Disposals = - @ - = @)
Depreciation e (861) (4,278) (125) (54) (5318)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 307 7,538 761 562 9,168
At 31 December 2013 and R=-—B—=H+=A
1 January 2014 =S+—-HR=Z-—D0OF
—-A-H
Cost B 7R 3,690 38,837 2,115 600 45,242
Accumulated depreciation and 2 IMEMREEE
impairment losses (3,383) (31,299) (1,354) (38) (36,074)
Net book amount REFE 307 7,538 761 562 9,168

Year ended 31 December 2014

BZE-_Z-ME+=A

=t+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYREEE 307 7,538 761 562 9,168
Additions NE 57 5,410 3,564 — 9,031
Depreciation e (326) (5,143) (545) (120) (6,134)
Exchange differences & i =% — — (4) = (4)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 3,776  PX

At 31 December 2014

Cost
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses

R-ZZE-NE+=A
Er=F

B A
ZHFERRERRE

Net book amount

AREDFE{E

3,747

(3,709)

39,927

(32,122)

5,612

(1,836)

600

(158)

49,886

(37,825)
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11. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Depreciation charges recognised is analysed as follows:

MN.Y9E BEREM@

EHINEERINAOT
2014
= ik
RMB’000
AR¥TR

Cost of revenue U A B AR
Selling and marketing expenses HEKRMHHEEER
Administrative expenses THR X
Research and development expenses i3 &

RMB'000
ARETT

3,495
263
1,200
360

5318
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BRERZERERAA

12.ELEE

Game
intellectual
properties,

“2-MEFH 125

Computer trademark Development
software  and licenses costs Total
R A B
BB &5 A & ol %N wE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT ARETT
At 1 January 2013 R=-—Z—=5—8—H
Cost B AR 5,299 27,883 2,198 35,380
Accumulated amortisation and Rt B E KRR EEE
impairment losses (1,439) (9,119) — (10,558)
Net book amount REFE 3,860 18,764 2,198 24,822
Year ended 31 December2013 HZ—-Z—=+=A
=E+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 3,860 18,764 2,198 24,822
Transfers B — 8,904 (8,904) =
Additions NE 1,287 14,331 12,383 28,001
Amortisation i (1,013) (8492) — (9,505)
Closing net book amount FREEMFE 4134 33,507 5677 43318
At 31 December 2013 and R-—ZFBE—=F+—A4
1January 2014 =+—BE=—ZE—N&E
—HA—H
Cost BN 6,586 51,118 5677 63,381
Accumulated amortisation and 2T E i NMRERE
impairment losses (2452) (17,611) — (20,063)
Net book amount BREFE 4134 33,507 5677 43318
Year ended 31 December2014 HE_-—ZT—NE+=A
=E+—HLEEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 4,134 33,507 5,677 43,318
Transfers o R — 8,665 (8,665) —
Additions A= 2,176 2,367 12,777 17,320
Written off i 58 — (92) — (92)
Amortisation 5 (1,326) (11,278) — (12,604)
Closing net book amount FARERMEFE 4,984 33,169 9,789 47,942
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZE—NE+ZA
Er=1
Cost DN 8,762 61,176 79,727
Accumulated amortisation and R R EEE

impairment losses

Net book amount

FREFE

(3,778)

4,984

(28,007)

33,169 9,789

(31,785)

47,942
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12. Intangible Assets (continued)

13

The development costs represented all direct costs incurred in the

development of webgames, mobile games and software products.

Amortisation charges recognised is analysed as follows:

12. & E & )

REBERAEMEER BB REMT

Cost of revenue W A BK AR
Selling and marketing expenses HERMIZHERESR
Administrative expenses THHRAX
Research and development expenses &

EmPARELNMABENRA
ERRBHERAIMOT
2014 2013
= ik —T=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBF T
12,233 9,269
30 18
298 185
43 33
9,505

Interests in Subsidiaries — Company

Unlisted shares, at cost (Note (i)
Deemed investments arising from share-based

compensation (Note (ii))

BAERE (B EEG))

FEETRG  RIREFEEE)
BR DA BB £ 70y 25 T ) B 2 T 22 A A

(if)

The Company's investment in a subsidiary represents the investment
in Lianzhong Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong on 18 December 2013. On incorporation, 100 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each were issued at par to the Company.

The amount represents share-based compensation expense arising
from the grant of share options of the Company to certain
management (Note 25(b)) in exchange for their services provided to
certain subsidiaries of the Group, which were deemed to be
investment made by the Company to these subsidiaries.

(ii)

2014 2013

—E-NF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREBT T ARBTT

(ragens)

RRBRWERRNRE B R
ZR(BB)ERRAR — KR _-F
—ZF+ AT NBREEZM
BXIZE) R A) o R EET AR SZ I - B [
RRAAREESREITTEITI00K

ZeBEAESAEBETH B
AERENRYE  WZSEWEA G
ETEBAERHARABRKE
(M 7E2500)) T 2= £ B9 A BR 1D A EL
MBS - W8 BARRRREEM
BARMEENIEE -
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B.REELRAMNER —F

13. Interests in Subsidiaries — Company
(Continued)

>
]l
@

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Country/
Place and date of Issued and Equity
incorporation/ paid in capital/ interest Principal activities and
Name of company establishment Type of legal entity registered capital held place of operation
REM AR SRR LK ERITREM
RE BB BxR /HERAH ZAER X/ ZMEEL HERE FEEBRELEHE
Directly held by the Company
AAREERSE
Lianzhong Holdings Hong Kong/ Limited liability 100 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited 18 December 2013 company
i RIER (BR)BR QA =8/ EREERF 100 /% 3 58 A% 100% & ZK
—ET—=F
+=A+N\B
Indirectly held by the Company
AARBEERE
WFOE PRC/ Limited liability US$350,000 100%  Provision of computer related
21 January 2014 company technical support, in PRC
EINEE ST S B EREERAR 350,000 7T 100% KBRS %ER
—A=+—H
Lianzhong PRC/ Limited liability RMB72,000,000 100%  Development and operation of
23 March 1998 company online card and board games,
in PRC
i R HmES EREMERF AR 100% RABERAERELER
—hNF 72,000,000 7T 1R b2 s B
=A=+=AH
Shanghai Yaozhong Culture PRC/ Limited liability RMB2,000,000 51%*  Provision of cultural events
Broadcast Co., Ltd. 6 July 2012 company organization and consulting
(Formerly known as Beijing Yaolian services, in PRC
Interactive Culture Broadcasting
Co, Ltd)
FEKREB X LEERR mE BREMERA] AR 519%* RPEREXEEB AL R
EHERAR —E-CZF 2,000,000 7T i o) AR 75
(A1 & BRI kB B &) > fk +tAXE
BEEREERRD
Lianzhong International BVI/ Limited liability US$1,780,000 100%  Provision of advisory services,
Company Limited 11 July 2011 company in BVI
BRERERAF HKBHARKES/ HBRAERAR 1,780,0003 7T 1009% 1A 2 4 R B S B A
—T——%+H R R

+—8
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

13. Interests in Subsidiaries — Company

+tA=+-~8

(Continued) ,.l} EJ (48)
Country/
Place and date of Issued and Equity
incorporation/ paid in capital/ interest Principal activities and
Name of company establishment Type of legal entity registered capital held place of operation
M AR SLRR LK ERITREM
DA BB BxR /HERAH ZAER BA/EMEEL HERE FEEBRELHE
Indirectly held by the Company
(Continued)
AAREESE (E)
Lianzhong Treasury Land Co,, Ltd. BVI/ Limited liability US$100 100%  Inactive
29 June 2012 company
BHRESHERAA RBEBRES/ AREEAF 1003 7T 100% EMmED
—T——FXA
—+NH
Shanghai Lianzhong Garden PRC/ Limited liability RMB10,000,000 100%  Mobile games operation, in PRC
Computer Technology Co., Ltd. 23 October 2013 company
LR R EE R FE ABREERF] AR 100% R BRSBTS
BREERA —T—=F 10,000,0007T
+A=+=8
Nanjing Shouyou Interactive PRC/ Limited liability RMBS5,000,000 100%  Mobile games operation, in PRC
Network Co,, Ltd. 24 February 2014 company
BMRENEDBEEERRAR HE EREERF AR 100% PO H BE & B B 1R B
—ZT—mF 5,000,000 7T
—A=+mMH
Tianjin Zhangzhongshangku PRC/ Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100%  Mobile games development and
Technology Co,, Ltd. 9 April 2014 company operation, in PRC
REERHERMRBRDAE HE BREMERA AR 100% A BERERELB R
—T—mF 1,000,000 7T
MANR
Tianjin Wanlianshifang PRC/ Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100%  Mobile games development and
Technology Co., Ltd. 9 April 2014 company operation, in PRC
REBH T HRRBRAA B EREMERFA AR 100% A BERERELB R
—FmE 1,000,0007T
MANR
Tianjin Juxian Tongchuang PRC/ Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100%  Mobile games development and
Technology Development Co., Ltd. 31 October 2014 company operation, in PRC
AREBBRANMKEEARAR $EH/ EREERFA AR 100%  H AR B R G 2 1S B i B
=55 —[wf4E 1,000,0007T
+A=+—H”
Tianjin Miaoshou Kuyou PRC/ Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100%  Mobile games development and
Information Technology Co., Ltd. 31 October 2014 company operation, in PRC
REYFHECERMARAR FEH/ EREMERFA AR 100%  H AR B R GE 1S B 8K
=55 —[wfas 1,000,000 7T



GREBRZERAERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R HRERME @
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13. Interests in Subsidiaries — Company

(Continued) l.l} EJ (48)
Country/
Place and date of Issued and Equity
incorporation/ paid in capital/ interest Principal activities and
Name of company establishment Type of legal entity registered capital held place of operation
M AR SLRR LK ERITREM
DA BB BxR /HERAH ZAER BA/EMEEL HERE FEEBRELHE
Indirectly held by the Company
(Continued)
AAREESE (E)
Tianjin Shouyou Shikong PRC/ Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100%  Mobile games development and
Information Technology Co., Ltd. 31 October 2014 company operation, in PRC
REEEREGERRMARAR £E/ BEREMERF AR 100% R BERERELBHER
—E—F 1,000,000 7T
+A=+—8”
Tianjin Lianzhong Yidong PRC/ Limited liability RMB10,000,000 100%  PCand mobile games
Technology Development Co.,, Ltd. 11 November 2014 company development and operation,
in PRC
RAREBBRBURBERARAA HE/ BREMERA] AR 100% RAERAERELERES
—T—mF 10,000,000 7T &
+—A+—H
Tianjin Lianzhong Enjoyment PRC/ Limited liability RMB100,000,000 100% Mobile games development and
Technology Development Limited 4 December 2014 company operation, in PRC
REBMBLBRRBERARAA HE/ BREMERA AR 100% RABERAERELEIER
—E—OF 100,000,0007T
+=—AmA
Dalian Zhangzhong Youshi PRC/ Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100%  Mobile games development and
Technology Development Co,, Ltd. 9 December 2014 company operation, in PRC
REEFELRRBERARAA HE/ BREMERA] AR 100% RABERAERELEIEE
—E—F 1,000,000 7T
+=ANH

The directors of the Company consider that the non-controlling interests of
Shanghai Yaozhong Culture Broadcast Co, Ltd. during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2014 were insignificant to the Group and thus no separate
financial information of this non-wholly owned subsidiary is presented.

The English name of certain companies referred herein represent
management's best effort at translating the Chinese names of these
companies as no English name has been registered.

* ARAEERR LBEREEH E
BAERRERAIZHEREZNEE
T =FRZTE-MEFZR=F
—RAULEFEHAEEMSTLTEKX @ &
YARRUFZEAMBAREBZ58
BEF -

AREFIEROET A ANHELERED
MEREERAZE N MRS E
XA BB B A XA
-

“2-MEFH 129
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

14. Interests in Associates

14 RBELFHER

Share of net assets
Goodwill

SIEEEFE
o

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
1,840 1,840
11,842 5,160

7,000

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had interests in the following associates,

all of which are considered not individually material to the Group:

R-ZE-—NFE+_A=+—HB &x&EH
BENTHRARERBEARELTERXN
)R W/NEIE: o

Attributable equity

Country of interest held by Principal activities and
Name of company establishment Paid in capital the Group place of operation
AEERFEN
NEEH RIMER BHRE Bz FIEXEBRELEHE
Beijing Linghegu (note a) PRC RMB1,731,429 14.21%  Provision of technology
(2013: RMB1,142,857) (2013:17.05%) development and
consultation services,
in PRC
ERBRR (FiFta) aalEY ARM1,7314297C 1421% 10 Hp B4 B9l e 3
(ZE2—=%: (Z=2—=%: Ko 5 = AR 75
AR ¥1,1428577T) 17.05%)
Tianjin Huandu (note b) PRC RMB17,000 17.0% Operation of billiards
(2013: nil) (2013: nil) business and development
of mobile games, in PRC
REEE (M 5Eb) [ AR #17,0007T 170% MR BEKSEREBR
(ZZ2—=%:8\) (ZZ2—=F:8) FREBHEH
Beijing Wei'a (note b) PRC RMB319,149 6.0% Development of VR
(2013: nil) (2013: nil) smart glasses in PRC
b T A B (B 52 b) B AR®319,1497T 6.0% P B R EVRE BER i
(Z2—=%:8\) (ZZ2—=%:8)
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FRE M BEHRERNE @

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & Z =

E-NE+ZA=+—HLEE

14. Interests in Associates (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's interest in
Beijing Linghegu was diluted from 17.05% to 14.21% upon the
additional contributions by the new investors. The Group retains

14, 1Y Bk &

GREBRZERAERAA

AFINER @

BE-_FT-HNF+t-_A=+—H
LFEE EHRREEFLRINEE
B AEBERIERTRARNERH

significant influence over the associate through representation on the 17.05%# B E1421% - B A B =2
board. The share of Beijing Linghegu’s loss by the Group for the years AR R ANEBE Y EQBRE
ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 and the financial effect on the BATE N REFBDFEERE

share dilution during the year are considered to be immaterial. During
the year ended 31 December 2014, the revenue sharing for licensed

ABRBE_ZT— =Kk _F—@N
FT-_A=+—-BIEFENEIE

games paid/payable to Beijing Linghegu amounted to RMB395,000 FEABRMEBEZHBZEL T
(2013: RMB147,000). BRABE_Z-—HNOF+ZA=

T-HLEFE EN/EHILERE
ABDENBEABEBRRER AR

#395000c(Z T —=F: ARK
147,0007T) ©
(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has acquired by REBEZE-_ZEZ—HNF+_-_A=+—

17.0% and 6.0% equity interests in Tianjin Huandu and Beijing Wei'a,
for total cash consideration of RMB6,682,000. The Group retains
significant influence over Tianjin Huandu and Beijing Wei'a through
representation on their respective boards. The share of Tianjin Huandu
and Beijing Wei'a's loss by the Group for the year ended 31 December

HIEFE - K‘E@LM'W??J%AE
#6,682,0007T 7 B s R 2B E K&
1t R 4B 17.0% K 6.0% FIHE 5 © 5 1B
RZERFTNEZTEHNNRE  A5H
HRXEEERILEZEMNRIFERKR

—E-mEFH 131

2014 are considered to be immaterial. FEH - BE_T—NFE+_A=
T—BIEFEE  AEESHRER
ERIERGEMH BB TERX -

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:

I FE 8 Il B R 2 Bk 2 X B HE A HY

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually RERE B 73R 3k A 3E & A
immaterial associates in the consolidated BAZEE AR ZREERE
financial statements 7,000

REBEEZEHER
BI 2 (M)
FABERE2HBRARE

Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of a3l
those associates (note):

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year

M 82T —WOF+-_A=+—HILF
B AEBENAERREE R RNER
/\Eﬁ%3470007_ﬂ(:=§—:¢'}\ﬁ’§5
1300070) c R=ZE—WMNE+=-_A=1+—
H - ARERZEEE AR 3600007
—ET—=%F: AR%130007T) °

Note: The Group has not recognised losses amounting to RMB347,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB13,000) for the associates. The
accumulated losses not recognised were RMB360,000 as at 31 December 2014
(2013: RMB13,000).
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

15. Inventories

16

15. 8
2014 2013
—F-NF —T=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Finished goods

X &

-!!II 1,169

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the cost of inventories recognised as

expense and included in selling and marketing expenses amounted to
RMB2,532,000 (2013: RMB2,592,000).

Trade and Other Receivables

HE-_Z-—NF+=-_A=+—HLF
B HRRAAIHNGEERANGTABE R
MZEEZER S Al & AR25320007T
—E—=%F: AR%¥259,0007T) °

16. 8 5 & H i FE 4y #% IR

Group Company
RE b NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —FT—= —E-mE —FT—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
M ARMTR AR®TT AR®TR ARETT
Trade receivables 5 EWRE @)
From third parties EUE =7 100,259 36,325 —
Less: provision for impairment BB B RE W R IE
of trade receivables BEEE (2,738) (583) —
35,742 —
Other receivables H {th FE W FRIE (b)
Deposits, prepayments e FBNZELE
and other receivables H b pE Ui 1B 27,846 21,094 —
Advances to employees m{E B {EL /B K 1,324 1,755 —
Amounts due from shareholders i U i% 3 7K 38 1 61 61
Amount due from a subsidiary & Ug — R BB A A
KIA —
Amount due from an associate & & — FE1 B & A A
RIE —
Interest receivables JiE W FI B —
Deferred IPO costs BEERXARAEE
B AR 711
34,001 772
Less: provision for impairment & : E b & Ug X IE
of other receivables VR (1,000) =
772
130,522 772




BRERZERERAA —T-NFFH 133

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A SRR M @
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16. 8 5 & H fth FE U 2 18 ()

AEFBEEARE S R EMERFIER

16. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

The directors of the Group considered that the fair values of trade and other

receivables are not materially different from their carrying amounts because AAhEEHEERETESEREZE )
these amounts have short maturity periods on their inception. HARZESBENELBEHERNEH -
Group =K

(@) Trade receivables @ BZEWIRIE

B 5 W R IR K B £ AR 5 I R
X -BRTOHEHRBRINHER
ME S EEFRNEREEE /30
BEOR RBEAMREESHE
WHRIEAENERBRZRED

Trade receivables were arising from the operation of online card and
board games. The credit terms of trade receivables granted to
distribution channels and payment vendors are usually 30 to 90 days.
Ageing analysis based on recognition date of the gross trade
receivables at the reporting dates is as follows:

T :

2014 2013

—E-NF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBTT
0-30 days 0&30H 10,589
31-60 days 31£60H 9,308
61-90 days 61290 H 8,772
91-180 days 91£180H 6,832
181-365 days 181 2365 H 164
Over 1 year i1 F 660
100,259 36,325

The movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables is

as follows:

B RBFAREREESOT ¢

2014
—E-mE
RMB’000
ARMT R

Balance at the beginning of the year F )4 R
Provision for impairment B E
Amount written off during the year FAME SR
Balance at the end of the year FRE R

2013
—g-=
RMB'000
AR T

2,193

(1,610)

583
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

16. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Group (Continued)

(a)

Trade receivables (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group reviews for evidence of impairment
on both an individual and collective basis. As at 31 December 2014,
the Group has determined trade receivables of RMB2,155,000 (2013:
nil) as individually impaired. Based on this assessment, provision for
impairment loss has been recognised accordingly and has been
included in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. The impaired trade receivables are due
from distribution channels and payment vendors experiencing
financial difficulties that were in default or delinquency of payments.
The Group did not hold any collateral as security or other credit
enhancements over the impaired trade receivables, whether
determined on an individual or collective basis.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables that were past
due as at the reporting date but not impaired, based on due date is as
follows:

16. 8 5 & H fth FE U #2180 ()

X EE @)
() EZEWFIE @

1-90 days past due BHEI1E 90 H

91-180 days past due w91 =180 H
181-365 days past due #HI181 2365 H
Over 1 year past due B R B

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables that were neither past due
nor impaired were RMB37,335,000 (2013: RMB24,133,000). These
related to a number of distribution channels and payment vendors for
whom there was no recent history of default.

REREBH  AEEE FH @5
MARBEMNZE KT —EOF
+—A=t+—8 AEEEBETES
BRFENENRED N AEAR
#2,155000L (ZFE —=4F : &) o
RIFWIET G REGEREGEE R
BRI EFAGAEEZEREXRT
BRAY] - BERENE S EKRKIE
DEEERYBRBENEERE
ML ER - AR -
REBVTARERENE S EK
FE(TwENXKEREE)FE
F {a] #5 #7 an 1F & (R 3 H fib {5 A 38

AREENZEZREEKFERRE R
HE B ERRE R HA MK
BROMTIT

2014 2013
—E-F =%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMET T ARET T
30,458 11,368
21,091 164
8,637 25

= 52

11,609

R—_ZE—NFE+_A=+—8"
BMEINARRENE S EUWRRIES
Al & A K #37,3350000 (=& —
£ NR#0241330007T) ° 3% F X
BATHATEENDHEONBEEER
BRI HRER -

[ S
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16. 8 5 & H fth FE U 2 18 ()

16. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Group (Continued)

EEE @

(@) Trade receivables (Continued) (a) EZEWIEG@E)
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a EBBERRENE S EKRZE
number of distribution channels and third-party payment vendors ERAEBHERIFEERLHEN
that had a good track record of credit with the Group. Based on past HEEBERF-"HFXNNEERESB
credit history, management believe that no impairment allowance is e RBEATREERSE TEER
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a RERNKREEELERT RELES
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still RNEH)  ZEERDWR R BE
considered to be fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any W B] - B ZE BE A% S AL AR MR A
collateral in respect of trade receivables past due but not impaired. EER - AEBEIWARFE @ EE
RBEHE Z FEWFHIEFEEEM@
B e
As at 31 December 2014, 86% (2013: 85%) of trade receivables are due RZE—NMNE+=ZA=+—8"
from three (2013: three) major distribution channels and payment 86%( TE—=F:8% WE 5 E
vendors in cooperation with the Group’s online card and board games WEEIEKE=X(ZE—=
business. F = R)HEKNEE G RE
BEBEGENETEHERBERX
TR ER -
(b) Other receivables (b) HfthEEUWFRIR
Advances to employees mainly represent advances for various MEEFHANBRRAEZTEHLENE S
expenses to be incurred in the ordinary course of business. These ¥ BRPELESERMIOR
advances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. R ZERFRABERR 25 HA
BRERER-
The amounts due from shareholders and an associate are unsecured, FEWARER & — BB & R BRI RIER
interest-free and repayable on demand. MK R B ABIRERKES -
There were no movement in the provision for impairment of other BE T =K _ZF—NFE+
receivables during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014. “RA=+—BItFE " E i, & W 5K
B ER GRS -
Company b /N
The amounts due from shareholders and a subsidiary are unsecured, interest- J‘E Hﬂz BREEIEB AT RE AEEKE . ¢
free and repayable on demand. BHERERER-

17. Loans to Shareholders

Loans to shareholders were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

17.FTFRRZER

f& ?HQ%ZT/TM%ETR# % B BER

demand. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of the amounts due ERERE R_E—=F1+=-_A=1+—
approximates its fair value and were expected to be recovered within one H - JE W= IE E’] FEHEEEARBEHEE

year. The loans have been fully repaid by the shareholders during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

WEAR —FARE - RBE_—F
FHT_A=t—HALFE ZEHXEE
BHREREE
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

18. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

1. A ESRMEE

2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARBTTT

Included in non-current assets FAAERBEE
Unlisted equity investments, at cost less FEEMRAIEE LA
impairment losses MR EEE 15,435 =
Included in current assets FTARBEE
Unlisted trust funds, at fair value FEMEFEES KRAAE 5,000
Unlisted equity investments, at cost less FELETRAKRE - AR
impairment losses G RN —
5,000
40,435 5,000

The directors determined that the fair value of the unlisted trust funds as
issued by financial institutions are not materially different from the carrying
amount as stated above. The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost
less impairment losses as these investments do not have quoted market
prices in an active market and the range of reasonable fair value estimates
are so significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that its
fair value cannot be measured reliably.

RESET SRBBERITZHFLTE
REER DR EEN AT EREELE
BEAZR - FLETRAREZKANR
BMEBEINEK BAZRERFERT
LHRE MEBRARAAENSEEE
HEEX ARBAEERR/EIAET

B A E -
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

19. Bank Balances and Cash 19.(ITHRGRREE
Group Company
AEE KA T
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-mE -T--4 —B-QNE -T_=
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARB®TI AR®TRE AR®TE

Cash at bank and on hand HITREFRS 67,477 58,716 —
Term deposits with bank with REBAABUATERZ
original maturities EBRITIE K
Less than 3 months SR =1E A 299,866 299,866 —
Exceeding 3 months BB =18 A 351,636 321,636 —
718,979 622,380 =
The Group's major subsidiaries are based in the PRC and majority of their AEBFZNWBARIBANRFE - B
transactions are denominated in RMB. Included in bank balances and cash of HRAXIEDRGAARKESBE - AEEH
the Group is RMB96,165,000 (2013: RMB54,591,000) of bank balances RITEBRER S BREFHRAF HART
denominated in Renminbi placed with banks in the PRC. The conversion of LAAREGE 2 AR ®96,1650007T (=
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign T —=4F: AR¥54591,0007T) A 8R1T 45
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. As of 31 December B o AR KR HNE S E R B BT A8 4
2014 and 2013, other than the restriction from exchange control regulations, HINEE GIERI RBEENRE - RZF
there is no significant restriction on the Group. —mERZTE-—=F+=-A=+—H"
R 5 B S EE B il {6 I &9 BR &l Sh - AR &
I B ] = AR
Included in bank balances and cash of the Company is RMB621,681,000 (2013: ARARMBRTEHREBESBEUAAR
nil) of bank balances denominated in Renminbi. MAEZ AR®E621681,00T(ZF—=

FE)HIRITHERR
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20. Trade and Other Payables 20 S R HEMEMNRIE

Group Company
x&E VN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—®B-mE T4 -B-NF —T-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

e ARBTRE ARB®TTI AR®TRE AR®TE

Trade payables B S EMARIE
To third parties ENE=F 25,769 12,419 —
To an associate &R — R B & A A 20 79 —
Other payables H 1 P& 3 R 1E
Receipts in advance T8 YR IE -
Other payables and E A FE A~ 5RIE &
accrued charges TERE A 2,069
Other tax liabilities EMHEAE —
Staff costs and welfare accruals ~ FE3E 8 T Bk 28 & & &l —
Deferred income related to EHABUN B €&
government grants iR RE A —
Amounts due to subsidiaries J&E 15 BT /BB & R 3K 3B —
2'069
2,069
All amounts are short-term and hence the carrying values of the Group’s and FrERBEAAREL At AEERAK
the Company’s trade and other payables as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 AARZEBE—MNFER_ZT-—=F+_H
were considered to be a reasonable approximation of its fair value. =+ BZzESREMEMNKENER

BERERAREZAREDOE -
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20. Trade and Other Payables (continued)

Group
(@) Trade payables

Trade payables primarily related to the purchase of services for server
custody, outsourcing game development and the revenue sharing of
licensed and third-party operated PC games and which is payable to
cooperated game developers according to respective cooperation
agreements.

BRERZERERAA

*5%H
@ EBZEMNKE

—2-mEFH 139

20 B REMEMNRE @

BHRNRIAT R ARG =
B NBEBRERRESBAE
1 =% A 4 R B2 Bk & 5B = 05 & PC
BEENTEREOBRADKER -

SRN KRR ERB BN RE

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on recognition date is as =

follows: DA
2014
—EF-NEF
RMB’000
ARMT T
0-30 days 0&30H 10,986
31-60 days 31260 H 10,043
61-90 days 61290 H 1,440
91-180 days 912180 H 1,329
181-365 days 1812365 H 1,750
Over 1 year BiE—F 241
25,789

Company b /N

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

21. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represented service fees prepaid by the game players for
the Group's online games in the forms of prepaid game cards, Virtual
Currencies and virtual goods, for which the related services had not been
rendered at the reporting dates.

2013
—F-=
RMB'000
ARWTF T

5,395
2,673
611
912
888
2,019

12,498

EANMBARRBRELRR REAA

RERMERE -

21.EFEUT A

BEIEWAE AR EE@E BN BEBTTK
TR EE R ERE®E RERY®D
EABRNNREE MAKERHKRSE R

Hi ) RIR AR R RS -
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22. Deferred Taxation

The analysis of deferred tax assets are as follows:

22, ;B EHRIA

BERIBEEDITMAT

2014
—g-mE
RMB’000
ARMT R

Deferred tax assets FERIBE E

The net movement of deferred tax assets are as follows:

2013
—E—=4F
RMB'000
AR T T

158

BEREBHAEERNFESHOT

2014
—e-mzE

RMB’000
AR® T

At the beginning of the year F 4
Recognised in profit or loss 18 7 A 1R

At the end of the year FR

2013
—E—=F

RMB'000
ARETF T

758
(600)

158
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22. Deferred Taxation (continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as

follows:

Deferred tax assets

22, & §E ¥2 18 ()

RERNRERBEENES (Rt R HE
F—REEEAEERANERIEHE)

T~

RIERREE

—E2-mEFH 141

Provision for

impairment of

receivables

FE W Sk 1E

WERE

RMB'000

ARETT

At 1 January 2013 R=F—=%—H—H 758
Recognised in profit or loss NE = AR (600)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB—=F+"H=+—H 158
Recognised in profit or loss 18 7 N iR (54)
At 31 December 2014 R=-ZE-MNE+=-A=+-—H 104

As at 31 December 2014, no deferred tax liability had been provided for the
PRC withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
approximately RMB169,229,000 (2013: RMB58,039,000). Such earnings are
expected to be retained by the PRC subsidiaries to operate and expand its
business in the PRC and not to be remitted to a foreign investor in the

foreseeable future.

RZE—NF+_A=+—H TE&HR
BEHMPEBEHNBAORE TR A
R #169,229,0007T ( =
58,039,0007T) FH IR ERELEF HAE - &
BEFMNEEPENE R RBALE R

=F:AR%

BRENXNFEOES  LRARLRER

SETIHIEIRES
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23. Share/Paid-In Capital

The capital as at 31 December 2013 represented the Group's share of
nominal value of the paid-in capital of the companies comprising the Group
after elimination of investments in subsidiaries.

As part of the Reorganization, on 30 December 2013, the controlling
shareholders of the Company have completed the acquisition of additional
equity interest in Lianzhong from Jiuding. As a result, the Group's effective
interests in Lianzhong increased to 100%. Accordingly, a transfer of
RMB9,360,000 and RMB13,705,000 was credited to paid-in capital and other
reserve respectively.

With the completion of the Reorganization on 28 January 2014, the capital as
at 31 December 2014 represents the issued share capital of the Company.
The difference between the nominal value of the Company’s shares and the
then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries being acquired at the time of
the Reorganization was treated as capital contributions from the controlling
shareholders and included in other reserve.

23. 0¥ BEEX

R-E—=F+-"A=1+—BHNRAEAR
AEEDEREHERHBARNKRER
MARAEENARNEZRANEE -

EREMH —HBH RZE—=F+=
A=+H ARAZEBRBREERNLET
MBS B R A REINIR AR 2w o T - AR
SERNE RN ERE S E100% B
It A R % 9,360,000t & A K% 13,705,000

DR EREG A BB AR R E M H
ﬁc

AR == *@E*ﬂ_+ﬂﬁﬁﬁi
H RZE—NFT+ZA=+—HHR
Z’K#EIQ$A_]E§’\%TTHXZK AR MHE

BEEREARFKUERNBARERNGE

BEFEZERNGRERBREREZE
B WEF AHMEE -
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23. Share/Paid-In Capital (continuea) 23. & EBEREEXw

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company since its date

AARBEMKZAMEE —F—MF

of incorporation to 31 December 2014 are detailed below. T A=+ —HHRAZEFIEF L
—F o
Nominal
Number value of Equivalent nominal
of shares shares value of shares
RBEHE B 13 EE ROWEEERE
Notes US$'000 RMB'000
B 5 FET AR F T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of the Company: ARREHER
Ordinary shares upon incorporation S AR 32 18 B I B AR (i) 50,000 50
At 31 December 2013 R-_ZT—=%+—-HF=+—H 50,000 50
Share sub-division A& 1 5 ¥ (ii) 999,950,000 —
Re-designation and reclassification R=ZT—NF—-—A=+H
on 30 January 2014 BENEERENRDE (ii) (85,714,284) )
Re-designation and reclassification RZT—WFEANA=1H
on 30 June 2014 EEERETSE (vii) 176,400,000 9
Increase in authorised share capital 3 A0SE TE PR AN (vii) 8,909,314,284 445
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MNE+_-_A=+—8H 10,000,000,000 500
Non-redeemable convertible Series A K 2 &] 7 A & [0] °] #3 #4
Preferred Shares of the Company: ARZE LR -
Upon incorporation and at REMKIBEER_ZE—=F
31 December 2013 —A=+—8H — —
Re-designation and reclassification R-ZT—NF-—A=+H
on 30 January 2014 BEERETHHE (ii) 85,714,284 4
Increase in authorised share capital HANSE TE A (iv) 90,685,716 5
Re-designation and reclassification RZZE—WFERA=Z ‘f‘ =]
on 30 June 2014 BENEERENDRE (vil) (176,400,000) ©
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NME+_A=+—8H — —
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Ordinary shares: BER
Issued upon incorporation and at REMKZBERR - —=4
31 December 2013 +=—A=+—8 (i) 10,000 10 61
Share sub-division W& tn o 4 (ii) 199,990,000 — —
Issuance of shares upon RERLEEITE
capitalisation issue TR (iv) 211,600,000 10 65
Issuance of new shares in AR B RD ETHET
connection with the listing of R D
the Company’s shares v) 196,000,000 10 60
Conversion of Series A EIA RSB R
Preferred Shares (vi) 176,400,000 9 52
At 31 December 2014 RZE-—WFE+=RA=+—8H 784,000,000 39 238
Non-redeemable convertible T~ A] 4 [2] A] B2 44
Series A Preferred Shares: AR EBHEIR
Upon incorporation and at REMKZERR=_Z—=F
31 December 2013 +=ZA=+—H — — —
Issuance of shares on R_T—WHF—-—A=+—H
31 January 2014 BTN (iii) 85,714,284 4 24
Issuance of shares upon RERLBEITEETRG
capitalisation issue (iv) 90,685,716 5 28
Conversion of Series A EIA RSB SR
Preferred Shares (vi) (176,400,000) 9) (52)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZEBE—NME+=-_A=+—8 — — —
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NME+_-_A=+—H 784,000,000 39 238
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+_HA=+—8H 10,000 10 61
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23. Share/Paid-In Capital (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iiii)

Incorporation of the Company

The Company was incorporated with limited liability on 4 December
2013 with an authorised share capital of US$50,000 divided into 50,000
ordinary shares of US$1 each. On incorporation, 10,000 ordinary shares
of USST each were issued at par, equivalent to approximately
RMB61,000.

Share sub-division, reclassification and re-
designation of the share capital of the
Company

On 27 January 2014, the board of directors and shareholders of the
Company approved a share sub-division of the Company's share
capital at a ratio of 1:20,000. As a result, the authorised share capital
became USS$50,000 which was divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of par value of US$0.00005 each, while the issued share capital
became US$10,000 which was divided into 200,000,000 ordinary
shares of par value of US$0.00005 each.

On 30 January 2014, the board of directors of the Company approved
a re-designation and re-classification of authorised share capital into
914,285,716 ordinary shares of par value of US$0.00005 each and
85,714,284 Series A non-redeemable convertible preferred shares of
par value of US$0.00005 each (“Series A Preferred Shares”). The key
terms of the Series A Preferred Shares are summarised in note (iii)
below.

Issue of Series A Preferred Shares

On 31 January 2014, the Company entered into an agreement
("Subscription Agreement”) pursuant to which CMC Ace Holdings
Limited (“Investor 1") and KongZhong Corporation (‘Investor 27,
collectively with Investor 1, the “Investors”) have agreed to subscribe
for 57,142,856 Series A Preferred Shares and 28,571,428 Series A
Preferred Shares, respectively, of par value of US$0.00005 each at a
price of US$0.57330058 per share at an aggregate consideration of
approximately US$49,140,000 (equivalent to RMB300,000,000), of
which approximately US$4,000 (equivalent to RMB24,000) was
credited to share capital of the Company and the balance of
US$49,136,000 (equivalent to RMB299,976,000) was credited to the
share premium account of the Company. The issuance of Series A
Preferred Shares was completed on 10 February 2014.

(i)

(ii)

23.05F BREEX W

% 1> B BY & M RX 3L

ARAFWN-—_ZE—=+=-HAWMA
FRKABRAR  HEERAR
50,0003 JC * 9 450,000 B% & A% &
135 TT K A% o B R AR S B
1% T 18 3% 7710,000f% & IR 13E T 1Y
LT@AR - HER L AREEG1,0007T ©

FEATREHRHDH -
EHNHREHIET

R-ZTE—mWE—A=-++H8 AR
A E F g KRR EE 20000
MRS FARADE KA A It
& F I AR B500003% T » R A
1,000,000,000 i & A% [ & 4 0.00005
ETMETER MEFTKRAAE
10,0003E 7T * %3 #¥ /200,000,000 %
[i% 1 {8 /A 0.00005 3 7T A T @ A% o

RZE—WF—A=+H' A2
AEFeHAEREIERNENIE
E KRB D R914285716 8
fi% T {8 40000053 jT 1) & 8 Ik &
85,714,284 % & % ™ {& 4 0.000053%
JTCHIA R B S A] fE B A] 82 4R 48 5 R
(TARBIEERZ]) - ARFIE % B Y
= 2 (R Al 7 TS ST B Gi) e

RITARIIBER

RZFE—NMFE—A=+—H8B &2
AR ek ([REWZE]  Hit
CMC Ace Holdings Limited ([ #& & #&
—DEREFRPEE([HREE=]"
HEEE—SGBEAEEEDER
B 1% R E & 10573300583 T o
B3R B8 57,142,856 I% K 28,571,428 %
[i% T {8 4 0.00005 3 JT B A R 71| {8 5t
i% - 48 K (B 49 549,140,0003 T (48
= A R #300,0000007T) ¢ H A4
40003 7t (48 & ) A R % 24,0007T)
EFF AR REREA & #:49,136,000
E T (HHE R A R #299,976,0007T )
B ARRA RO BEER AR
BEABRZETER-_ZT—NE-
B+HB5%MK -
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23. Share/Paid-In Capital (continuea) 23. & EBEREEXw

(i) Issue of Series A Preferred Shares (Continued) (i) FITAR I E KB (@)

Share issuance expenses directly attributable to the issue of Series A BEERBITARIELERMEERN

Preferred Shares amounting to RMB607,000 was treated as a & 10 817 = A R 607,000 7T # 4%

deduction against the share premium account arising from the BRETEA ZKRMEBEE 2R

issuance. FRIH o

The major terms of the Series A Preferred Shares are summarised AZXRBNELEIEE E Z IR o

below: ~:

(@) Dividend rights (@) BRER
The Investors are entitled to non-cumulative preferential KEEBRERRQ T HNE
dividends out of the profits of the Company, of which amount ESIFERAEBLEKRE H
Investor 1, Investor 2 and the holders of ordinary shares of the R EE— KEE -
Company shall be entitled to be paid 40%, 20% and 40%, EXRAREBKREFTAE AL
respectively (“Aggregate Preference Amount”). After the BHEL B D R E X F40% -
Aggregate Preference Amount actually distributed equals 20% K 40%H) iR B ([ 2 5 &
RMB500,000,000, dividends available for distribution as and e EEBRHIKHER
when declared by the Board, shall be distributed to the holders T ELCBEHERARK
of ordinary shares of the Company and Series A Preferred 500,0000007C % - EE € T K
Shares on pro rata and as-converted basis. A F B 7 Ik & B B 7B 3% L 1

RBEAEBREESRT AR
A EBKRRARIE KL KT

BA

(b) Voting rights b) RE
The holders of Series A Preferred Shares may vote at general ARG BRRIZE A K E
meetings of the Company in the same manner as holders of AAFERRFEA AHERBD
ordinary shares of the Company on an as-converted basis and FRUATEBREER NEAS
not as a separate class. BYBENRARRRERSE

EERE-
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23. Share/Paid-In Capital (continued)

(iii) Issue of Series A Preferred Shares (Continued)

(©

Conversion feature

Each holder of Series A Preferred Shares shall have the right, at
such holder’s sole discretion, to convert all or part of its Series A
Preferred Shares into such number of fully paid ordinary shares
as is determined by dividing the original subscription price by
the conversion price which equals to the original subscription
price, subject to adjustment, including payment of share
dividend, consolidation or subdivision of ordinary shares. In any
of such events occur, the then applicable conversion price shall
be adjusted so that the holders of Series A Preferred Shares
shall be entitled to receive such number of ordinary shares to
which it is entitled upon conversion as it would have been
entitled to receive had the Series A Preferred Shares been
converted immediately prior to such event. All Series A
Preferred Shares will automatically be converted into ordinary
shares upon the completion of a qualified IPO, as defined.

Other rights

Each holder of Series A Preferred Shares shall have the right to
appoint one director of the Company (the “Investor Director”)
and shall have the exclusive right to remove and replace such
Investor Director. Each holder of Series A Preferred Shares also
have general veto rights and information rights to receive
certain financial statements of and other information about the
Company.

23.BE BEREEXw

(o]

(iii) EITAR I E KB ()

BRSH
BEARJIBERFTEATR
BEOBEREZHBABIAR
7 @R ER S ERE LK
P EEREBNEEELR
- ERBBRVGBEE
BUBERVEBEEENER
REET ARl THE 8
BRI B RE B A B
D MEAHEREEMFEL
& 2 A %R (E S
MR EILARTIE LR
A5 A HE R SR AR 1R AR
EHEMETRK BHEREA
RIBERITEARREZ
SEMhamk ENEEE
WHRZE BB ARSEB TR -
ERERBRAMEETK
(RER)E FiTEARSIEE
B BB EE B E B

H th #E
EARJBEBRFTBEARS
BREZE-—RBARAMES
(TREEEF]) BKE#
PRIBHZREEEEN
BHRER o FARTNE KR
BANE —RERERAMIE
EABRBERARRNET
MBHR REMER
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23. Share/Paid-In Capital (continued)

(iv) Increase in authorised share capital of Series A

(v)

Preferred Shares and Capitalisation Issue

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders passed on 12
June 2014, the total authorised share capital of the Company
(immediately prior to the Capitalisation Issue as described below) was
increased from US$50,000 to approximately US$55,000 by the creation
of an additional 90,685,716 Series A Preferred Shares of a par value of
US$0.00005 each.

On the same date, the shareholders have approved and the Directors
were authorised to capitalise an amount of approximately US$15,000
(equivalent to RMB93,000) standing to the credit of the share premium
account to be applied in paying up in full 211,600,000 ordinary shares
of US$0.00005 each and 90,685,716 non-redeemable convertible
Series A Preferred Shares of US$0.00005 each to be allotted and
distributed as fully paid to shareholders whose names appeared on
the register of members of the Company immediately before Listing,
in the proportion to their then existing shareholdings in the Company.
The Capitalisation Issue was completed on 30 June 2014.

Issuance of new shares in connection with the
listing of the Company’s shares

On 30 June 2014, upon its Listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, the Company issued 196,000,000 new ordinary shares at
par value of US$0.00005 per share for cash consideration of HK$4.25
each, and raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$833,000,000
(equivalent to RMB661,207,000), of which RMB60,000 was credited to
share capital and the balance of RMB661,147,000 was credited to the
share premium account of the Company.

Share issuance expenses mainly include share underwriting
commission, lawyers’ fees, reporting accountant’s fee and other
related costs associated with the Listing. Incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the new shares amounting to
RMB41,391,000 was treated as a deduction against the share premium
account arising from the issuance.

GREBRZERAERAA

23.B5F BREEX W

(ivi ARIIBEREERFIE

(v)

mEBEFLET

BER-ZZTE—NF~A+=ZAAE
BRRREAZER - AR E I
#8 25 90,685,716 % £ B% 1 {8 .0.00005 £
TTHARTIELER - AR EEER
RN EE(ZpE T & AR ET80)
50,0003 JT 3 2 %955,000% JT °

REBBH REEIHEEESE
TEF 1T E AL/ £ B8 4915000
E(HEER AR®930005T) * 5
BROEERNIE #RARE
HYBERARREERSE(EEE
S iNPINYNEET B Sl i & 2 o ] D= O
S4B #9211,600,000 A% 4 A% E 1E &
0.00005 3% 7T H 3% 38 % 2 90,685,716 1%
£ A% M 18 /A 0.00005 3 7T &9 71 1] & [0
AEBARIIEBER ZERER
EELFMAERINARAKRES
e ERELBETER =T —MFX
A=+H%EmK-

HEAFTRGBG LB RTH
B fn

R=ZZFE—HWEANA=ZF+H B
BEZXFTER EWE AR AR
B&% B% {5 M 180000053 JT 3 17
196,000,000/ ¥ E @R - IR K E
BER4sBTL WESHBRA
48 %8 #9833,000,00078 7T (1 & B A
R #661,2070007C ) * A AR
60,0007 5t ABRAS - M 82 T AR
661,147,000 7T 57 A AN R 8] 2 f& 10 )&

BHBETHIETZEBERHD S H
e RAME BRSTMEAR
HEmAENEMBEKRA - B
HEBETHBRGOMEMOKRAR
541,391,000 T 1R B EITE £ 2R
19335 (B AR 2 MR FRIA ©
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23. Share/Paid-In Capital (continued)

23.05F BREEX W

—E—HmHF+=A

(vi) Conversion of Series A Preferred Shares (vi) BiAR Y E B
On 30 June 2014, upon the Listing of the Company on the Main Board RZZE-—NWESA=+H AR
of the Stock Exchange, all the 176,400,000 Series A Preferred Shares ARBXFERLEME A
were automatically converted into ordinary shares, on a one-for-one 176,400,000 3% A & 51 18 5% A 32 — bt —
basis (the “Conversion”). EXEgHEBR AT BER([EIR]) -
(vii) Change of authorised share capital of the (vii REEEREREFT LT E
Company immediately after the completion of EREZEE
the Conversion
Pursuant to the written resolutions of the directors and shareholders BEEEIRER-_Z —EMFEN
passed on 12 June 2014, immediately after the completion of the ATZHBBNEERER K=
Conversion on 30 June 2014, 176,400,000 Series A Preferred Shares of T—FANA=1+H BRE#EKE
a par value of US$0.00005 each in the authorised share capital of the K& RRRDEERAD FIREE
Company was reclassified and re-designated into ordinary shares of a 0.00005 3% 7T 9 176,400,000 i A 5 51| &
par value of US$0.00005 and that the authorised share capital of the EREETOELRENIEEAE
Company was increased from US$55,000 to US$500,000 by the Ji% T {8.0.00005 3% 7T K 3@ % - il
creation of an additional 8,909,314,284 ordinary shares of a par value I8 KA SN 12 2% 5 A% T {8.0.00005 2 JT K
of US$0.00005 each. 8909314284 i E @K * AR FUETE
fi A B3 55,0003 7T & O Z 500,000 3
T o
(viii) Repurchase of shares (viii) & [@] B% {7
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company repurchased BE-_Z—NWE+=-_A=1+—H
its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: WEFEE  RAARRBRFTEREE
AR
Equivalent
Number Highest Lowest Aggregate aggregate
of shares price paid price paid consideration consideration
Month of repurchase repurchased per share per share paid paid
Bm K =30 21t [EREREES
BEAH g §=| BEHXE BREKRE AHRE REZE
HKS HKS HKS$'000 RMB'000
BT BT FHET ARBTT
December 2014 910,000 282 257 2418 1916

As at 31 December 2014, the 910,000 shares repurchased were
recognised as treasury shares and were subsequently cancelled in
January 2015.

R=—FE—HNMNFE+=—_A=+—8"
88 [ 2 910,000 A% f% 17 7 52 & B 77 BX
B EBR -_E—HhE— Ao
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24, Reserves

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share premium

The share premium as at 31 December 2013 represented the excess of
the net proceeds from issuance of the shares of the companies
comprising the Group to the Group over its par value. With the
completion of the Reorganization on 28 January 2014, the Company
became the holding company of the Group and the share premium
as at 31 December 2014 represents the excess of the net proceeds
from issuance of the shares of the Company over its par value, less any
dividends paid out of the share premium account and any premium

paid for the repurchase of shares of the Company.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations for the
companies incorporated in the PRC now comprising the Group, it is
required to appropriate 10% of its annual net profit determined in
accordance with China Accounting Standards for Enterprises issued
by the Ministry of Finance of PRC, after offsetting any prior years’
losses, to the statutory reserve. When the balance of such a reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective company, any
further appropriation is at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory
reserve can be used to offset prior years' losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by issuing new shares to shareholders in
proportion to their existing share holding or by increasing the par
value of the shares currently held by them, provided that the
remaining balance of the reserve after such an issue is not less than

25% of registered capital. The statutory reserve is non-distributable.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value of share options granted
by the Company to employees recognised and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.16.

Other reserve

Other reserve represent (i) capital reserve arises from capital
contribution by the controlling shareholders (including share-based
compensation expense arising from the 2014 Blink Milestones Share
Options under Note 25(a)); and (i) the difference between the
consideration and the carrying amount of the net assets attributable
to the additional and reduction of interests in companies comprising
the Group being acquired from and disposed to non-controlling
equity holders respectively.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

GREBRZERAERAA

24. &% i@

B% {7 & R
R-E—=%F+"A=+—H 'K
MEBERAMANEERETAEEK
BERAKRMMMERBFEREY
HEHEHD RZZE-—HME—A=
TABEREAE  ARAKASR
SENEERAR MR _-F—MOF
T-A=T-"BORMHEERAR
RBEBTRONMERBFER
HEEER D - 8= E AR &R
BERFENNBKRENRAER AR
(B A% 7 32 A5 B AR (B o

i 7 O O

REBEABEERZER - ANEEREE
NG RE R VA SN =R
BAEGHRTERNITECES
FTEARTE  EREEABEFE
% SEFEFMNEN10%D
MEXTHE ERHBELEHES
A E FE M E A H50% 0 AR R A] B 1
REFEME—THDER - EERE
AR BRmBEFEEBIE(WNSE)
B A 4% (% B2 3R A £F A% Lb ) 5k 38 N
HERBROHEEBBEZITH
% F A% SR AR IR A M A R BR 4
BREZSEBRTRATLOREME
AN25% © VA TE N A 9 e

RS A% 12 i O

BREFEREBIARAR T
EENBEREZAAE  BREN
2168 PN M G AT BRE TR IE ©

H fih %

H@EERBOVERBREEEMEL
K& A FEE (BB E25e it =
= — P4 4F Blink Milestones &% % # & 4
ZUBRDABEBROME) : KD
AEFEERERFTFEABARRA
HEEAKXAERBKE QAR
MO HEGEEFENR
EERAE HRERE -
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24. Reserves (Continued)

(e) Reserves of the Company

24. i s ca)

F 2 B Y o 0

Translation Share option  Accumulated
Share premium reserve reserve losses  Total reserves
B 12 %18 RERE BREGE Bt EE EEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR®FTrT ARETT ARETR
At date of incorporation Rz A — = — — —
Loss for the period AEAEE = — — (1,358) (1358)
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=%F
+ZA=+—H — — — (1358) (1,358)
Loss for the year rEERE — — — (24,184) (24,184)
Currency translation BB E R
differences — (3417) = — (3417)
Issuance of Series A BITARGEBER
Preferred Shares (PR 3 23(iii))
(Note 23(iii) 299,976 — — — 299,976
Capitalisation issue EARLET
(Note 23 (i) (B =% 23(v)) (93) = — — 93)
Issuance of new shares NG Sh)
in connection with EmETHRG
the listing of (B EE23(v)
the Company's shares
(Note 23(v)) 661,147 — — — 661,147
Share issuance expenses R ETER
(Note 23(iii) & (v)) (P 5 23(i)&(v)) (41,998) — — — (41,998)
Share-based compensation LA B& {73 & E #E 1)
(Note 25) B (P 5 25) = = 25233 — 25233
Share repurchased and EEEREH
not yet cancelled Z R
(Note 23(viii) (Bt &% 23viii)) (1,916) — — — (1,916)
Dividends paid (Note 8) B 4 3% 8 (i 3 8) (296,498) — = = (296498)
At 31 December 2014 R-_Z—N&F
+=-—F=+—H 620,618 (3,417) 25,233 (25,542) 616,892
As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves available RZE—NE+=_A=+—H" 7

for distribution to equity holders of the Company was RMB595,076,000

(2013: nil).

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
includes a loss of RMB24,184,000 (2013: RMB1,358,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

)

HAOMF ARG EZFE AN
BA LA ARES5950760007T (=
—=F |E)-

RAAAl @A ARBGLGRE R
PRERARAVBEREFEE
ZEEAANRE2418400TT(ZF
— =% : AR 1,3580007T) °
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FRE M BEHRERNE @

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

25, Share-Based Compensation Transactions

(a) Shares awarded to employees by shareholders

of Lianzhong in 2012 and the 2014
Replacement Share Options issued by Blink
Milestones

In 2012, Mr. Zhang Rongming and Mr. Li Jianhua have awarded their
99.99% equity interest in Beijing Tongshengcheng Investment
Management Center (LLP) (the “2012 Awarded Shares”) to certain
employees of the Group (the “Participants”). Beijing Tongshengcheng
Investment Management Center (LLP) (‘“Tongshengcheng”) is a limited
partnership in the PRC which owned 10% equity interest in Lianzhong
at the date of transfer. On 20 February 2014, as part of the
Reorganization, Tongshengcheng ceased to hold shares of Lianzhong
and an agreement was entered between Blink Milestones,
Tongshengcheng, the existing Participants, Lianzhong and the
controlling shareholders that the 2012 Awarded Shares will be
cancelled and replaced by the 12,152,381 options granted by Blink
Milestones to the remaining Participants on the same date with the
same vesting conditions (the “2014 Blink Milestones Share Options”).
The share options are valid for a period of 10 years from 20 February
2014 to 19 February 2024 with an exercise price of RMB0.2625 per
share (subject to adjustment) and are subject to a vesting scale in
equal proportions of 25% on every anniversary date of the date of
listing of the Company's shares on any internationally recognised
stock exchange, starting from the first anniversary date until the
fourth, and for the Participants remaining an employee of the Group
until and on the relevant vesting dates. Blink Milestones is an
investment holding company and owned 12.43% equity interest in
the Company at the date of grant. The incremental fair value of the
2014 Blink Milestones Share Options of approximately RMB9,706,000
will be included in the measurement of share-based compensation
expense from February 2014 to the end of the vesting period, in
addition to the amount based on the grant date fair value of the 2012
Awarded Shares.

The number of share options and exercise price of the 2014 Blink
Milestones Share Options are subject to adjustment upon certain
events. Upon the completion of the Capitalisation Issue as detailed in
Note 23, the number of share options and exercise price per share has
been adjusted to 25,009,600 options in total, at an exercise price of
RMBO0.1276 per share, respectively.

25.%&%&5%&9@“&&

(a)

R-E—_—FHBPRERRT
FREEDEBBERORR =
£ — M £ Blink Milestones
RITHEKRESRR

RZE—ZF REPEERTE
ELAERBERPBEZENILRER
AR & E IR R L (B BR A 1K) 99.99%
HRE(-ZE——FHERM5])
FTETAEEEI((28EE]) -
EREEKEEEERL(BERE
R)YTREK]) BTFREBERE R
¥ REZEABERERI0%A K
R T —WME_H_+H {E
REHEN—F D RAERKTBERFE
B R H9 A% {5+ B Blink Milestones ~ [A]
R HRABESEE R RIERR
Rilvtpsm — T ——_FEBHRMD
15 4% B 38 37 B Blink Milestones LA 48 I8
EERKMHERERARTH TLESE
B9121523811p BE IR ([ =T — Y
4 Blink Milestones i B # |) BT BXAX o
EREE T —HF_RA=1H
BE-Z-_ME-_B+ARIET
FRNERN THEEAERAREK
0.26257C (Al T 58 B ) 3 1 AR 2 7 iR
NEFMBEERANESRR S
ITmHBEzEBFEHE  B% —#
BFEFRE2FENMEARF AT FEMNE
SR Pl EREER - B2 0
HEACEEBEEBEBRABMDALRSE
[E {g B - Blink Milestones & — R & &
ZRAR WRETHBREEARAR
Al 123%H) IR i R — T — —F 1
BROENRETFTEHNALBEH
EH SN » = F — Y 4 Blink Milestones &
BREENHAABERANABARE
9,7060007C * H ¥ # #4 AfE = F —
ME—RREFBEHRUAKRSL B
ERAMerEE -

— T — /M 4 Blink Milestones & A% 1
HERESHRE RTTEENESE T
BT FIARAE o 0l 5E 237 BT
MEREEITTKE  BREN
FERTEBKIAAERE K
25,009,60013 & & % A R #0.12767T ©
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

25. IRin SRR & X

2 @)

25, Share-Based Compensation Transactions

(Continued)

(a) Shares awarded to employees by shareholders (@) WM-S—_FHERERRE
of Lianzhong in 2012 and the 2014 FEENRERKRMORIRZ
Replacement Share Options issued by Blink £ — M £ Blink Milestones
Milestones (Continued) BUORHWKRESTSR W@

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or
settle the 2014 Blink Milestones Share Options in cash. The 2014 Blink
Milestones Share Options entitle participants to obtain existing issued
shares in the Company held by Blink Milestones and will not involve
the Company issuing any new shares, the 2014 Blink Milestones Share
Options were accounted for as a share-based compensation
transaction by way of capital contribution from the shareholders.
Movements in the 2012 Awarded Shares and the 2014 Blink Milestones
Share Options during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014
are stated below.

Movements in the 2012 Awarded Shares are as follows:

ANEFEIWEEFEHEERFE AR
& 77 A B & s05 8 = T — M & Blink
Milestones & % # ¢ — & — U £ Blink
Milestones ¥ IR # 5% T & B &£ B 15
F Blink Milestones# & A AN A 7] 3]
BEBITHRG AT RET
RNRBHEMRFTAR - = F — M FBlink
Milestones & IR #E i 1B IR R )F & &Y
FRIEAAKRODASERENI
RGP REBE_E—ZFR_T—
MNE+—_A=+—HLEEE ' =Z
—ZFHBE M K ZF—EFBlink
Milestones & I # B Z B S 51| 10 T o

T FRBROEBHET

Nominal value of
2012 Awarded
Shares
—E-=F
REBROHNEHE
RMB'000
ARBTT

At 1 January 2013
Forfeited during the year

Sz
N

X5

—=F—H—H

6,952
(3,195)

At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+=-—A=+—8H

3,757

At 1 January 2014
Forfeited during the year F AR IR

Cancelled and replaced during the year

R-—ZE—WmFE—H—H

FAFEHELER

3,757
(92)

(3,665)

At 31 December 2014

R=—ZE—WmF+=-_A=+—H
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

25. IRin SRR & X

25, Share-Based Compensation Transactions 2
€ )

(Continued)

(a) Shares awarded to employees by shareholders (@) WM-S—_FHERERRE
of Lianzhong in 2012 and the 2014 FEENRERKRMORIRZ
Replacement Share Options issued by Blink £ — M £ Blink Milestones
Milestones (Continued) BUORHWKRESTSR W@

Movements in the number of 2014 Blink Milestones Share Options are

as follows:

— Z — P9 £ Blink Milestones B % # 2§
Bz&shmT :

Average

exercise price
in RMB per Number of
share option share options

BHBRE
FHTEE BREHE

RMB

AR T
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—ME—H—H —
Granted during the year* FAR L 0.1276 25,009,600
At 31 December 2014 R-_E—NFE+_A=+—H 25,009,600

*  Adjusted for Capitalisation Issue

For the 2014 Blink Milestones Share Options, the directors have used
the discounted cash flow method and market approach to determine
the underlying equity value of the Company and adopted equity
allocation method to determine the fair value of the underlying share
value of the Company and the key assumption on valuation at the
grant date includes the discount rate of 20% and projections of future
performance and have used the Binomial option-pricing model to
determine the total fair value of the options granted. The inputs into
the model are as follows:

* RERCBEITELHE

#t = T — I £ Blink Milestones i P&
EMs EFEERABERENER
ERMIE A EBEARRNFHEBR
EEE BRATEZIEEEE
RAAaEEROEBEENARE R
EEAHEHEOENBEREE
FE20% K HT IR K R H R R E AR TR
Al WERAT ZBEAHAEEERRN
ErTREBERENAALE %K
N AZERDT :

20 February 2014
“E-NFE=-A=*H

Exercise price TEE
Expected volatility T8 HA K B)
Expected life 8 HA & 2 AR

= [ b FI &
TEHARR B R

Risk-free rate
Expected dividend yield

RMB0.2625
ARHE026257T
50%

10 years

T&

4.6792%




154 Ourgame International Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R HRERME @

For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

25, Share-Based Compensation Transactions

(Continued)

(b) Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of

the Company in 2014

Pursuant to an unanimous written resolution of the Board on 7 March
2014, a share option scheme (‘Management Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) and respective share options granted by the Company on
20 February 2014 was adopted and ratified by the Board. The
Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted for the
purpose of providing participants an opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and help motivate such
participants to optimise their performance and efficiency, and also to
help retain the participants for the continual growth and development
of the Group. The maximum number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 6% of the issued share capital of the Company after
an IPO, as defined. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, share options (in aggregate
to purchase 6% of the issued share capital of the Company after an
IPO) were granted by the Company on 20 February 2014 to senior
management of the Group with estimated total fair value of
approximately RMB52,870,000. The exercise price of the share options
granted is US$0.34398035 per share (subject to adjustment). The share
options are valid for a period of 10 years from 20 February 2014 to 19
February 2024. Twenty five percent (25%) of options granted shall vest
on the first anniversary of the grant date, and the remaining options
granted shall vest on 36 equal monthly instalments with the first
instalment vesting upon the 13th monthly anniversary of the grant
date and each of the remaining instalments vesting on each monthly
anniversary of the 13th monthly anniversary of the grant date, and for
the participant continuing to be an employee of the Group or director
of the Company until and on the relevant vesting dates. In addition,

the share options are only exercisable after the completion of an IPO.

25. IR SERHM &

2 @)

(b)

—E-mEFLAE
ERABRENM

i

BEEFEeRN _T—NF=A+t
BH—BBBNEMRER 59
ERMNBERBARAR T —
ME-_AZ-THEREN —BER
EE((EREEBE R AHEENE
fRHEETEI]) RAAERBRE - KNE
BEE X AREE R ERETE
ThhE2EERE —EREARRQA
B Ee  BERAEZ
ELHEEFERABENRERBE
NEPRBEBZELEBENEASE
EFBEERE -LKRAT RETEE
BALARBERBRETS  BR
HEERITENBEREEESRT
FmETHERRMHEE G HE&
BTAEHBAARRRE XA R
EREBITRAN®%  AREEW
BETRHETEETARESE D R
EEREERRE -

REE-_ZET—HEHF+=_A=+—
BItEE BARAR T —MNE
“AZtHRASESRERE
BREMEREBTEERRRR
BAARAEERE FHITRAN®)
HET R AR ELN R AR KS52870,000
Lo BRENERETEERAER
0343980353 JL (7] T A %) - fE IR
BREB-_Z-—NE-_A=-+H=ZE
—E_WHFEF_At+tAHLETERA
BN e R B AR M A9 25% 1% PR
HHBMNE—FAFTASE  #T
BRI /I A N 36E A A A
LEHEOHEE F—E HEEAR
BHHBHME3EABEE - mF
HEOEREERHBABHEIEAR
FHRGAHEE B2HEAR
EZEEEBRAB(BEZA)MDN
AAEBENEEXAAFNES -
pEoh - BBREETRERARES
STERIEITEE ©
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

25, Share-Based Compensation Transactions

(Continued)

(b) Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of

the Company in 2014 (Continued)

On 30 June 2014, upon the completion of the Capitalisation Issue and
the Listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the total number
of share options granted equate to 50,042,553 share options at an
adjusted exercise price of US$0.16714303 per share. Movements in the

2 @)

g )

(b) ZZ—HFEXLFER
H X 26 % S AR K

—B-mEFH 155

25. IRin SRR & X

R=B-mEXA=+H ZRE
AL B AT RIBS R EIR £ -
ERERETER
XTEREMERESHA B

& 1£0.16714303

number of share options during the year are as follows: 50,042,553 17 B AR #E © 4F A 5 AR #E 28
BB
Granted
Exercise price  Outstanding as at during Outstanding as at
Exercisable period per share 1 January 2014 the year 31 December 2014
R-B-NF R-E-NF
—RA—H t=ZA=+-8”
TR BRITEE HATRE FRERU e R AT
Uss
e
Directors 20 February 2015 to 0.16714303 — 41,702,128 41,702,128
19 February 2024
B= —ZT-Af-A=t+HZE
—E-_ME_A+hAE
Employee 20 February 2015 to 0.16714303 — 8,340,425 8,340,425
19 February 2024
E& “T-hAE-_A-+HE
—E-mNEZA+AH
— 50,042,553 50,042,553
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25, Share-Based Compensation Transactions

(Continued)

25. IRin SRR & X

2 @)

(b) Management Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of

the Company in 2014 (Continued)

None of the share options granted were lapsed or exercised during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

The directors have used the discounted cash flow method and market
approach to determine the underlying equity fair value of the
Company and adopted equity allocation method to determine the fair
value of the underlying share value of the Company and the key
assumption on valuation at the grant date includes the discount rate
of 20% and projections of future performance. Based on the fair value
of the underlying share value of the Company, the directors have used
the Binomial option-pricing model to determine the fair value of the
options granted. The inputs into the model were as follows:

(b)

—E—MEXLFER
HRXRAOMME SRR
g UE)

RBEE_ZT-—NOFE+_A=+—
BIEFE BEEREZBEREX
BT

EECERRRENBELRD
SHEABEERARBRBEERZAA
B BRBERDEEETEAS QA
HERNEENDIAE  RERER
HA 76 B8 4 (B /O BE 52 R 3R & 15 20 1Y
FRREHRKEENEAR - R
ARREERNDEENRIAE &
FERA-_EABEETEEAN
EERLBRENAAE  ZENX
ZEABURIT

20 February 2014
—E-mNE=-A=+*H

Exercise price TR E
Expected volatility T8 B &)
Expected life T8 B A 25 Hf

2 2| fn A1) X
B 8K

Risk-free rate
Expected dividend yield

US$0.34398035
0.343980353< 7T
50%

10 years

+&

46792%
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For the year ended 31 December2014 HZ —T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

25, Share-Based Compensation Transactions
(Continued)

(c)

Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company in November 2014

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 19 November 2014, a share option
scheme was adopted by the Company and is valid and effective for a
period of ten years from 19 November 2014 (the “2014 Share Option
Scheme”).

The purpose of the 2014 Share Option Scheme is to provide eligible
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. All directors, full-time
employees and any other person who, in the sole discretion of the
board of directors, have contributed or will contribute to the Group
are eligible to participate in the 2014 Share Option Scheme. Each
grant of options to any director of the Company, the chief executive
officer or substantial shareholder of the Company must first be
approved by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2014
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share

capital of the Company from time to time.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the 2014 Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of adoption (the
“Option Scheme Mandate Limit").

The Option Scheme Mandate Limit may be refreshed at any time by
obtaining approval of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). However, the refreshed Option Scheme Mandate Limit cannot
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of such approval.

GREBRZERAERAA

25. IR SERHME X

2 @)

(c)

—E-mE+—AFLH
I #0680

BEARBAR-_Z-—NFE+—A
THAERETZERFIASEB
MERARSR  ARRRM—IEE
Mg R=FT—mE+—A+
NBEEFTFRAER(=F—HF
EhEstall) -

TE-MEEREFEEERS
ERATREBARRAEG#
HZEE UHBAERALAR
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HARAREBRND ZEBE -G8
RIABEHAEBEMAERZE
= 2REELHEZSEHNERR
ZIEMEMALTHFEER2H
“E-NEBRETE - AAAA
ERESE TREHIAABLTE
BRRET 28— ABREZRLEN
BARRBILIFATESTZHE-

BE-ZT—MFBERETERA
A EE A E A BB AR A AT 2R R
AT R 2 SRR AR e AT (B
AFETDZBOESHETEE
BARR R B BT Z230% ©
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25, Share-Based Compensation Transactions

(Continued)

(c)

Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company in November 2014 (Continued)

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number
of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and unexercised options) under the 2014 Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes adopted by the Company in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. The options may be
exercised up to 25% for each year after the first anniversary of the date
of grant for four consecutive years.

At the time of grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held and/or any
minimum performance target(s) that must be achieved, before the
option can be exercised in whole or in part. The offer of a grant of
share options may be accepted within 20 business days from the date
of offer, the offer is delivered to that participant and the amount
payable on acceptance of options is RMBT.

The subscription price for the shares under the 2014 Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board, but not less than
the greater of (i) the closing price of shares as stated on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the offer of grant; (i) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

No options may be granted under the 2014 Share Option Scheme
after the date of the tenth anniversary of its adoption.

No option was granted under the 2014 Share Option Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

25. IR SERHM &
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(c)
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25. Share-Based Compensation Transactions 25. IR S ERAIEN & 3

(Continued) E (#&)
(d) The Group recognised a total expense of RMB29,141,000 (2013: (d) x&EERERNERNBEZ A A
RMB490,000) for the year in relation to the above share awards or R #29141000c(ZE—=F: A
share options granted by the shareholders or the Company, and the R #490,0007T ) » It Jb £ f% B 8§ A
share-based compensation expense were shown as a separate item NERE A E iR 5 528 sk EE R
on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. AR MR EERAONEH
XRNGETENERIAEBFA
g o
26. Commitments 26. 7 Iz
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEKIE

At the reporting date, the Group had the following capital REBE  REEB U TEARE
commitments: Z

=

2014 2013
—E-F —ET—=
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETT

Contracted but not provided for: EEEEER T
Expenditure in respect of acquisition of EREKBELEE 2 X H
intangible assets 46,835 1,000
Expenditure in respect of investments FRAKRERE ARz H
in associates 4,837 —
Expenditure in respect of investments in ERKENHREESHEE
available-for-sale financial assets 2 20,000 —

1,000
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26. Commitments (continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases its servers, lines, office and various residential
properties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The
leases have varying lease terms and renewal rights. At the reporting
date, the total future minimum lease payments payable by the Group
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

26. A ¥& ()

(b)

Within one year —F R

In the second to fifth year inclusive “HRFE(BEEENE)

27. Significant Non-Cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 176,400,000 Series A Preferred

Shares
23(vi)).

were converted into ordinary shares, on a one-for-one basis (Note

EEHARRIE

AEERBAATRELZEE R
AHEERBS R BAE

BEREEENE -HEAETRAHR
BRES -RHR&ERH AKER
BAARELEHENRRREE

MERMRBEAT -
2014 2013
—F-mF —FT=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTTT

9,880 9,428
10,767 18,415

20,647 27,843

27. EXFBREXH

REBEE-ZZTE—NF+=-_A=+—HILF
 + 176,400,000 % A R 51| 18 5 & & — bt —
EEEE A A5 AR (B RE23(vi) ©
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28. Significant Related Party Transactions 28. EXKFBA XS
In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere in these B EERREMM A RE 2R
consolidated financial statements, during the year, the Group had the 5B RN £ R E B B E R
following material transactions with related parties: THEARRZZWT :
Key management personnel remuneration FTEEHEAEHNS
Key management of the Group are members of the board of directors and AEBTEZEEEEAESTEKERER
senior management. Included in employee benefit expenses are key EEEBE MARERGINBAYIZTEERE
management personnel remuneration which includes the following BAEBMESEIWOT :
expenses:
2014 2013
—E-WF ZE=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARBTTT

Basic salaries and allowances BEARF & KERL 1,274
Discretionary bonus 1B TE AL —
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFFTEI 3R 57
Share-based compensation expense ARty REROB < =

27,688 1,331
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29. Financial Risk Management and Fair 29,
Value Measurements

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial
instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in its investment
activities. The financial risks include market risk (including foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management strategy seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. Risk management is carried out by the
senior management of the Group and approved by the Board.

(a) Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position relate to the following categories of financial assets
and financial liabilities.

MERBREERLAAE
it E

AEEREEXRBAERREZDFE
RemT AmAENERR - &% ER
BREMSER(EEIERR  FXE
e RERRR) EERBRERDESEA
o AN B Y BB R R A@“*EE%
BAEEYBRANBEENNEZER
RIE - Bk Aﬁﬂmﬁlm@A@F%
TTUREESHME

) EMBEHRARSI

RAEMBARNRAYRE SR
TIeREERSRABIERE
o

2014 2013
—E-F —_F—=
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Financial assets EWMEE
Loans and receivables Bk W T
Trade and other receivables g5 KEAM JTE Wk 117,961 57,652
Loans to shareholders BTFREZER — 25,000
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHBR LIRS 718,979 58,716
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE 40,435 5,000
877,375 146,368
Financial liabilities EsREaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost EEEAANIENERBE
Trade and other payables B 5 &k H A ETFIR 43,820 27,747
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29. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk

(c)

The transactions of the Company are denominated and settled in its
functional currency, USS. The Company’'s foreign currency risk
primarily arose from the bank balances denominated in RMB held by
the Company. If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against US$
with all other variables held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for
the year would have been approximately RMB29,604,000 (2013: nil)
higher/lower.

The Group's subsidiaries mainly operate in the PRC and majority of the
transactions are settled in RMB. Foreign currency risk arises when
future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional
currency. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group's subsidiaries
did not have significant foreign currency risk from its operations.

The Group does not hedge its foreign currency risk. However,
management monitors the foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Interest rate risk

Other than the interest-bearing bank deposits, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets. The directors of the Company do
not anticipate there is any significant impact to interest-bearing assets
resulted from the changes in interest rates, because the interest rates
of bank balances are not expected to change significantly.

GREBRZERAERAA

2. MERBREERERARE
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EREARAFENARES
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29. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

(d) Pricerisk

(e)

The Group is exposed to price risk in relation to the Group's
investment in unlisted trust funds which are carried at fair value. The
sensitivity analysis is determined based on the exposure to price risk
of the unlisted trust funds held by the Group at the end of each
reporting date. If the fair value of the respective instrument held by
the Group had been 5% higher/lower, the revaluation reserve would
have been increased/decreased by RMB1,000,000 (2013: RMB250,000)
respectively, and no change in post-tax profit would have been
expected for the year.

The Group is not exposed to price risk for the Group's equity
investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
reporting date subsequent to initial recognition.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its cash and deposits
and trade and other receivables.

The carrying amounts of each class of the financial assets as
summarised in Note 29(a) above represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. To manage this
risk arising from cash and deposits, the Group only transacts with
state-owned financial institutions and reputable commercial banks
which are all high-credit-quality financial institutions in the PRC and
Hong Kong. There has been no recent history of default in relation to
these financial institutions.

Trade receivables at the end of the year were due from distribution
channels and payment vendors in cooperation with the Group. If the
strategic relationship with the distribution channels and payment
vendors is terminated or scaled-back; or if the distribution channels
and payment vendors alter the co-operative arrangements; or if they
experience financial difficulties in paying the Group, the Group's trade
receivables might be adversely affected in terms of recoverability.

20 MERBREERERARE
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29. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

(e) Credit risk (continued)

(f)

To manage this risk, the Group maintains frequent communications
with the distribution channels and payment vendors to ensure the
effective credit control. In view of the history of cooperation with the
distribution channels and payment vendors and the sound collection
history of receivables due from them, the directors of the Company
believe that the credit risk inherent in the Group'’s outstanding trade
receivable balances due from the distribution channels and payment

vendors is low.

For other receivables, management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables based on historical settlement records and past
experience. The directors of the Company believe that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding balance of
other receivables.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash
and cash equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
business, the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents.

At the end of the reporting dates, all of the Group’s and the
Company’'s non-derivative financial liabilities analysed into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting
dates to the contractual maturity dates were due within one year. The
contractual undiscounted cash flows equal to their carrying balances
as the impact of discounting is not significant.

GREBRZERAERAA
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29. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

(g) Fair value measurements recognised in the

29. MERBREERAE

it E )

() FEMBRARERZL

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with the fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups
financial assets and liabilities into three levels based on the relative
reliability of significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of these

ft E kB

TRBREBERIAABRERI KNGS M
BRAKRPRAIABEAENS R
BERBE ZEMREANGE
ZETREERABZAAER
EXH AENHEYE A ELEKE R

financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following

levels:

Level 1:
£—E&:

Level 2:

F_E&:

Level 3:

FE=EHK:

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial asset or
liability is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

EERBESR=KH - 2R E
BT :

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

FRBEEERABBERERMSNRECREHE)

inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

BRE-—RFANBEIN BEEXAGITEZAIER KHEAZR(BERITE)BENE AR
B R

inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

WHERABEMSEE (A AIERBARBNEERRBENB AL -

BREHAREHEEEAREN
WAE R RS AR A A B R R
6 % BA O S A B B 2 1A
Z2E- B

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the REMBMRAKRFPZRAALBFTE

consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into the fair

MeEREERABBERIREOTA

value hierarchy as follows: AEER:
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
Level 2 Level 2
EER FEZER
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE
Unlisted trust funds FELEMEAES 5,000
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29. Financial Risk Management and Fair 20 MERBEEERAAE

Value Measurements (continued) i E

(g) Fair value measurements recognised in the () FEMERIZEREZL
consolidated statement of financial position REFE @
(Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no transfers REE-_Z-—NF+_A=+—
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2013: HIFFEE F—BHEE_BH2
nil). M mEE TREREE=FR

(ZB—=%F:8\)-

The fair value of unlisted trust funds is determined by reference to the FEETEEFESHAALENKR
net asset value of the underlying investment in the equity fund. ERREESCHBERENEEF
BEmMEE °
30. Capital Management 30. X EH
The objectives of the Group when managing capital are to safeguard the AREEMEARAEEBIZARERNREFRD
ability of the Group in continuing as a going concern in order to provide SIERERE N AR R & A E M
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain BEEAEARBRNS THEEFEZFEER
an optimal capital structure to enhance shareholders’ value in the long term. EBEURABRRRERER -
The Group monitors capital by regularly reviewing the capital structure. As AEBBBTHBRTERERNER
part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost of capital BER - {EEZBTHN—2o RAAE
and the risks associated with the issued share capital. The Group may adjust EEEBESRAREBBCDETIRASNRE
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, repurchase e AEEABRMBERMNOKRES
the Company's shares or sell assets to reduce debts. B BTG BREAR R KRG

EEERBDEL
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31. Subsequent Events

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

following significant events took place subsequent to 31 December 2014:

(a)

(b)

Share options granted in 2015

On 5 January 2015, 47,040,000 options were granted by the Company
to the key employees of the Company, including certain directors,
under the 2014 Share Option Scheme with estimated total fair value
of approximately RMB40,378,000. The closing price of the Company's
shares immediately before the date on which the options granted was
HK$2.53. The exercise price of the share options granted is HK$2.67
per share. The share options are valid for a period of 10 years and
subject to a vesting scale in equal proportions of 25% on every
anniversary date of the date of grant, starting from the first anniversary
date until the fourth.

Additional acquisition in Shanghai Wangyu
Information Technology Company Limited
(“Wangyu IT”) and Shanghai Wangyu Network
Development Company Limited (“Wangyu
Network”)

On 27 January 2015, the Group has obtained an additional 5.7143%
interest in each of Wangyu IT and Wangyu Network, increasing its
equity interest from 4.2857% to 10% at a consideration of
RMB20,000,000 and the acquired companies are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company.

31. i =18

BRAGAVHEHRRE ML T ARE
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(b)
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R=ZZ—RAF—AAAB  AAFE
BT —NEBREFERELA
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47,04000010 BE IR #E - [EET AN EE
H# AR 403780007 - RBEE
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Definitions
EBs

“Articles of Association”

(A Ei2AmA0)

“Board”
[E=g]

“China” or "PRC"

[ B

“Company”, or “our Company”,
or "the Company”

NS

“Concert Party Agreement”

[—BIT8 77 sl

“Contractual Arrangements”

[B# LB

“"Controlling Shareholders”

[ B B3R

“Corporate Governance Code”
or “Code”
[bEER<TAIIKI<FA]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

"Employee Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”

[(EEERAFRBEE
Al g g =T 8

GREBRERAERAIR —E-EFFH

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)

AAREBERAR (ETEER)

the Board of Directors of the Company

ARANEES

the People’s Republic of China, except where the context requires otherwise, excluding Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan

EARKME - BIEXRBAAE  TATREES RFIRAHE

Ourgame International Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4
December 2013
GERBEEERBERAR — KRR E—=F T _ANBCHERSEMERIHAA

the Agreement entered into among Mr. Zhang, Mr. Liu, Mr. Shen, Mr. Li Jianhua, Ms. Long and Beijing
Tongshengcheng Investment Management Center (LLP) on 22 February 2014 pursuant to which Mr.
Zhang, Mr. Liu, Mr. Shen, and Ms. Long undertook to vote unanimously for any resolution proposed at
board and shareholders meetings of our Company and Lianzhong

SRFEEBISEE BRELE FRELRLE BLLIRUERAERKKREERDL(BERE
WRZB-—NEF_A -+ _HFYOHE B REE BIERLE BREEREXL
BAE-—HREERNARAERBBREFERRRAG LRENEMRER

a series of contractual arrangements entered into on 28 January 2014 by, among others, the WFOE,
the PRC Operating Entities and their respective shareholders, details of which are described in the
section headed “Contractual Arrangements” in the Prospectus

SIEBELE FPRKEEELARESERERN_Z—OHF-—AZ+N\BIIHN—F
Flai = HEENERERIAOLH]—

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and means Mr. Zhang, Mr. Liu, Mr. Shen and Ms.
Long, who exercise and have exercised their control directly or indirectly through their respective
wholly owned offshore investment holding companies, namely Elite Vessels Limited, Sonic Force
Limited, Blink Milestones Limited, Proper Macrocosm Limited and Golden Liberator Limited
BErmRAME T2 RE BREE BE4E BEARELRTIEFBAREEELE
8N E 1 A& A R) 0 B Elite Vessels Limited * Sonic Force Limited * Blink Milestones Limited
Prosper Macrocosm Limited } Golden Liberator Limited B $% 8% & #% 17 {5 18 & 15 %1 1%

the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules
EHRAM S 4E I EE S TRIREEE SRS

the director(s) of our Company

RARESE
the pre-IPO share option scheme granted to certain employees of the Group

BYAKEETRERENERAFAZEAEREE
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Definitions (Continued)

BEwm

“Group”, “our Group”,

“the Group”, “we”, “us” or “our”

[ SE B 331

"HK" or "Hong Kong”
[&#]

"Hong Kong dollar” or "HKS"
(%7l

"Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or

“Stock Exchange”

[ BB S P | 2 [ B 52 AT

“IFRS”

[ % B 7 i o5 E B

“Lianzhong”
[ Bt 37

"

“Listing Date
[ 7 B A

"Listing Rules”

[ LRl

“Main Board”

[k

“Management Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”

[(EREERAMEERN

BRER &

“Model Code”

[

=78

“Mr. Liu"
EbA

“Mr. Shen”
[ER 48 4 ]

the Company, its subsidiaries and its PRC Operating Entities from time to time

it

FiN/NE]

il

CEWBAR

all

REAHHEEETR

\r

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
W B E B BT R

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BAEEER
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBERHMBRAF

International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued from time to time by the International
Accounting Standards Board

RE T ERIE =S TR BRI A 2R

Beijing Lianzhong Co., Ltd., a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 23 March 1998
IRBBREIHEERODABRAR  —KEBBEFEEER-NANNF=ZA -+ =B
VA /NC]

30 June 2014, the date of listing of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ZE-MERAZTH ARBIRBEARAER LA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time)

BEBMARGMBERAAESF LHRA (B IREET - MR AT B %)

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange which is
independent from and operates in parallel with the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
BMIXMEENBLERGM(TRIEBFRRETIS) BB PaI R L BE I TEE

the pre-IPO share option scheme granted to certain management members of the Group

BTYTAKEETEERABNERAMEEAEREE

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules
FHRRIMERI0RHEHN EMBETAESETESRHNELETE

Liu Jiang, a non-executive Director and one of the Controlling Shareholders

BT FRTEERERBRRZ -

Shen Dongri, one of the Controlling Shareholders

RIRBE - ERERRZ—



Definitions (Continued)
B @

“Mr. Zhang"

[9R 5 & | i
"Ms. Long”

[+ i
“Prospectus”

[ ERE] i

“Qualification Requirement”

B &K b

"PRC Operating Entity and its
subsidiaries” or “ PRC Operating

Entities”
[FRE=EERANE &
NASH R EEEERE]

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

[AR¥E Eis
"SFO”

[ 5 KBS 5G] b
“Share Option Scheme”

[ B8 e w51 21 i
“Shareholder(s)”

A% =R &
"Shares”

[ ] i
"uss”

E 15

GREBRERAERAIR —E-EFFH

Zhang Rongming, a non-executive Director and one of the Controlling Shareholders

REAH FMTEERIERRRZ —

Long Qi, one of the Controlling Shareholders

Bew  ERBERZ —

the prospectus of the Company dated 18 June 2014
AARBBHA-T—NESATN\BZBRER

the requirement that a foreign investor who invests in a valued-added communications business in
the PRC must demonstrate a good track record period and prior experience in providing value-added
telecommunications outside the PRC prior to acquiring an equity interests in any value-added
telecommunications services business in the PRC
REPBHEERMEREMEERNWBECAREIRESERBEBESMNEABR
FRECHERRREHBINEEEEAEEERHRCEX

Lianzhong and its subsidiaries, i.e. Shanghai Yaozhong Culture Broadcast Co. Ltd., Shanghai Lianzhong
Garden Computer Technology Co,, Ltd, Lianzhong International Company Limited and Nanjing
Shouyou Interactive Network Co,, Ltd, the financial results of which have been consolidated and
accounted for as a subsidiary of our Company by virtue of the Contractual Arrangements

RN ENBAR A ESRREHVLEREREELRA - LEBRKEE KM
EREELA BMRBEBEARAFNLEREELDHEFERLAF  HYBEEERE
ERLHIER/RTRAINERBLGFE AR

Renminbi, the lawful currency of China

ARYE  PEBEEEH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BBEDNESTEES KT GED

the share option scheme of the Company approved and adopted on 19 November 2014

RIZ—MF+— A+ B EIERRA 2 AR R BERESE

holder(s) of the Share(s)
BHEEA

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a par value of US$0.00005 each
2R 2 B B Hh 45 T B /% 0.00005 36 TT ) & R AR

United States dollar, the lawful currency of the United States

X XBEEEY
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Glossary

=
AP Sk

"ARPPU"

(MERFP ABRA

“MAUS”

[FRERAF]

“MPUs"
[BANERF]

P
[P

£

monthly average revenue per paying user, calculated by dividing the average monthly revenue during
a certain period by the MPUs during the same period
NERFABKRA BEEHENFHEARERUARBEANERPFE

monthly active users, which is the number of players, as identified by unique account IDs, who
entered and played a particular game at least once in the relevant calendar month; repeat entries by
the same player account in the same month are counted once only; a player who entered and played
two different games in the same month is counted as one MAU for each game

GAERRBF NEEBIURFNIREE  HXEEEAZL —RBEL 28—
BFEER: A—DmRERRAA-—ANEEEEDEF AR —ENRRAAERET
DEMRA TR EEAFAEREBN -2 AERAP

monthly paying users, which is the number of paying players in the relevant calendar month

SANERP REBEANNENRHKA

personal computer

8 A €M
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